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Revenue
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OURSCALE

£193.3m

+20.1%

(Year-on-year atactual currency)

33

countries

500+

brands

. 3/000

employees

2,600+

units

c. 500+

sites

! Constant currency is based on weighted average exchange rates during the previous financial year.

c. 1,500,000

customers daily

2 Stated on anunderlying basis which excludes amortisation of intangible assets arising on the acquisition of the SSP business in 2006

and the revaluation of the obligation to acquire an additional 16% ownership share of TFS.
Other notes

Like-for-like sales represent revenues generatedinan equivalent periodin each financial year in outlets which have been open for aminimum
of 12months and are presented on a constant currency basis. Net contract gains/(losses) represent the net year-on-year revenue impact from
new outlets opened and existingunits closed in the past 12 months, which are presented on a constant currency basis.

Please refer to page 16 for supporting reconciliations from SSP Group plc's statutory reported results to these performance measures.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

We have delivered a
strong set of results
and have continuedto
invest inthe expansion
of the business across
allregions.

Continued growthin 2018

Once again, Impleased toreport that the Group has delivered astrong set of annual results,
withrevenue growingby /8% to £2,564.9m, and underlying earnings per share increasing
by 23.6%to 25.1 pence per share.

We continued to make good progress against our five strategic levers, as detailed on

pages 8 and 9. Despite anuncertain backdrop inanumber of our key markets, we continued
todeliver good like-for-like sales growth and also made strong progress in net contract gains,
givingus astronger foothold in several strategically important markets. Alongside this, we
have continued ta deliver further operationalimprovements and margin growth through a
number of strategic initiatives.

Our success isunderpinned by our ability to deliver an attractive brand line-up and innovative
bespoke concepts to meet the needs of our customers and the expectations of our clients.

We announcedanumber of important contract wins in the year, further extending our
presence inNorth Americaand in the Rest of the World, where there are significant
structural growth opportunities. Our new Philippines joint venture commenced operations
atMactan-Cebu Airport andwe are on track to complete the acquisition of the final tranche
of 49% of our Indian joint venture, Travel Food Services.

In 2018, capital expenditure went up once again to arecord £ 144.2m, as we continued
toopennew units and invest innew technology, such as self-order kiosks in some of our
quick-servicerestaurants.

We continue toinvest inand develop our people, strengthening central, regional and local
teams aroundthe world.

Dividend

As aresult of the Group's strong performance, | am pleased to announce that the Board has
recommended a final dividend of 5.4 pence per share, making a total dividend for the year

of 10.2 pence per share, which is at the top end of the dividend payout range we announced
at the time of the IPO. The Board has also proposed a special dividend of approximately
£150m expected tobe paidin April 2019, which will be in addition to the final dividend for the
year ended 30 September 2018. Thisreflects our confidence in the future of the business
and our desire to maintain an efficient balance sheet. Both the final and special dividend will
be subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting in February 2019.

Sustainability

Across our markets, we are committed to operating sustainably and to responsibly managing
those environmental and social issues which have beenidentified as material to our business
and communities inwhichwe operate. Our commitments and progress throughout the past
year are outlinedonpages 24 to 2/ of thisreport.

Our employees and stakeholders

The strengthof the Group is principally due to the skills, experience and dedication of the
37000 colleagues we employ across the world. On behalf of the Board, l would like to thank
themall for their contributionto our success during the year.

Outlook

Looking forward, we have secured some important new business wins, and the longer
term pipeline is encouraging, Increasing passenger numbers around the world, both in the
airport andrailway station sectaors, provide significant structural growth opportunities.

| am confident that the Group will continue to benefit from these trends and deliver
sustainable value creation for shareholders. With this in mind, the Board anticipates
another good performance in the year ahead.

y

Vagn Serensen
Chairman

20November 2018
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Another year of strong
performance with
afurtherc. £150m
planned cashreturn

to shareholders.

Overview

The Group delivered a strong performance in the year, drivenby robust like-for-like sales
growth, strong new contract openings across the world and the further implementation of our
programme of strategic initiatives. We are continuing to invest in the growth and development
of the business and to bring new brands and concepts to our clients and customers. We have
made further good progress inthe development of the business in North America, and we
have seenstronggrowth from TFS, our joint venture inIndia. We have delivered another year
of marginimprovement, driven by like-for-like sales growth and the ongoing roll out of our
operational efficiency programmes. Cash flow has been strong, funding another record year
of investment inthe business. The increase in the ordinary dividend, which againrepresents
apay-outratioof 40%, and the proposed c. £ 150m special dividend reflect our confidence
inthe business and our desire to maintain an efficient balance sheet.

Financial results

The Group delivered a strong financial performance in 2018, with underlying operating profit
increasing by 22.7% (ona constant currency basis) to £195.2m. Total revenue increased by
9.5% onaconstant currency basis, including like-for-like sales growth of 2.8%, net contract
gainsof 5.1% andrevenue fromacquisitions of 1.6%.

Like-for-like sales growth has remained at a broadly similar level throughout the year and
was in line with the expectations we set at the start of the year of between 2.0% and 3.0%.
Like-for-like sales growth has beendriven by increased passenger numbers in the air sector,
whilst trading in the rail sector has remained softer, in line withrecent trends.

Net contract gains in the year were 5. 1% benefitting from the full year effect of some significant
contracts whichopenedinthe secondhalf of 2017 including new openings at Chicago Midway
andJFK T/ Airports inNorth America. We also saw a number of important new openings during
thisyear, including at airportsinNorth America at Newark, Seattle, LaGuardia, SanFrancisco
and Toronto, inthe Rest of the World at Shenyang inChina, and DelhiinIndia, and in Continental
Europe at Marseille, Nice, Frankfurt and Barcelona. We continue to focus onretaining profitable
contractsandour contract renewalrate in 2018 wasinline withhistorical levels.

During the year, we wonanumber of important new contracts, including some significant
contractsinContinental Europe, most notably at Montparnasse station in Paris, a portfolio

of 29 Starbucks inrailway stations across the Netherlands, and 22 motorway service areas
across Germany. InNorth Americawe have won contracts at airports in Phoenix, Seattle, San
Francisco andLaGuardia; andin the Rest of the World at airports in Mascow, Beijing, Hong Kong,
and India, including at Goa. We have also secured our first business in South America, with new
contractsatRio De Janeiroand SaoPaulo airports. We expect to begin operating these contracts
progressively over the next twoyears.

The underlying operating marginimprovement of /0 bps, excluding the acquisition

impact of TFS, was drivenby good like-for-like sales and further encouraging progress on

our strategic initiatives. The additional two months of TFS (12 monthsin 2018 comparedto
10monthsin 2017 following its acquisitionin December 2016), contributed a further 10 bps
tothe overall operating margin, taking it to /6%. The improvement in operating margin
alsobenefitted fromasignificant contribution from the new contracts at Chicago Midway,
JFKT7/ and LaGuardia Airports in North America, where we have been aperating the units
ahead of their redevelopments and hence have incurred limited closure periods, pre-opening
and depreciation costs. Furthermore, inIndia, we benefitted from the reversal of the post-
acquisitionintegration costs incurredin the previous year.

We delivered strong operating cash flow of £90.2m, after investing £144.2min capital
expenditure, whichwas af 29 2mincrease onthe prioryear. The higher capital expenditure s
drivenbythenet contract gains of 5.1%.Net debt increased from£ 262 2mto £334./m, mainly
asaresultof the£100.Im special dividend paid in April 2018, leaving leverage at the year end
broadly inline with the prior year at 1.1xNet Debt:EBITDA. Having reviewed our medium-term
capitalrequirements, we have taken the decision to increase the ordinary dividendfor the 2018
financial year, maintaining a payout ratio of 40% of net income (the top of the range of 30%
to40% we gave at the IPO). Furthermore, we are today proposing a second special dividend

of . £150m whichwill be accompaniedby a share consolidation. Both of these reflect our
confidence inthe future of the business and our desire to maintain anefficient balance sheet.

Summary and outlook

The Group delivered a strong financial performance inthe year with good like-for-like sales
growth, strong net gains and further improvement in operating margin. The new financial year
has startedin line with our expectations and the pipeline of new contracts is encouraging,
althoughit is always difficult to predict the precise timing of the opening of these new units.

o—

Kate Swann
Chief Executive Officer

Z0November 2018
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OURBUSINESS

Our marketplace

95% of our business is inour core markets of airports and railway
stations, with the air sector accounting for 64% of revenue and

the rail sector for 31%in 2018,

Present inthirty-three countries around the world, we have leading positions in some of the most attractive sectors andregions of the
travel catering market. We estimate that our core market, comprising food and beverage sales inairports andrailway stations, was valued

atapproximately £1/bn'in 2017/

Themarket benefits fromanumber of long-term structural growthdrivers, which are positively impacting passenger numbers and spend

per passenger inboth airandrail. These include:

* theincreasing propensity totravel, driven by rising GDP and disposable incomes;

* investmentintravel infrastructure, with increasing focus onthe provision of food and beverage offerings in travel hubs to drive additional

commercial revenue streams; and

* theongoing trends towards eating out of home and on the mave.

Air sector

In 2018, 64% of SSP's revenue was generated from the air sector.
According to Airport Council International (ACI)?, air passenger
numbers are expectedtogrow at 5.2% per annumto 2029, reaching
more than double the sevenbillion passengersin 2015. This growth
isunderpinned by a number of factors, whichinclude:

» (lobalisationof business and leisure;

* Risingdisposable incomes (especially in developing markets
with the emergence of a more affluent middle class);

* Rapid development of short haul travel; and

* Lowcostcarrier growth andinfrastructure investments
indeveloping markets.

ACl's longer term outlook (to 2040) anticipates passenger increases
tobe strongest inthe Middle East and Africa (/. /% per annum) and
Asia Pacific (6.2%), with Indiaexpectedto become the third largest
country by total passenger traffic (7.5%). Further strong growth
isforecast for the more mature European (3.7%) and North American
(2.8%)° regions.

Spend per passenger is influenced by several factors, which include
the quality of the catering proposition at airports, the rapid growth of
low-cost airlines with typically limited catering offers, and the scaling
back of on-board services by major flagship carriers.

I Company estimate based on third party market research (March 2014)
commissioned for the SSP IPO. This identified a core market of £13.8bnin
2013, whichincludes airports and railway stations globally, but excludes
railinNorth America. The equivalent marketin 2017 amountstoc.£17bn
ataverage exchangerates or c.£16bnonaconstant currency basis.

Rail sector

In 2018, 31% of SSP's revenue was generated fromthe rail

sector. Rail passengers in SSP's key Europeanmarkets (UK,

France and Germany) were estimated to total 5.8 billion4 in 2017/,
Passenger numbers within these countries have increased at an
average annualrateranging from 2.1%to 24% since 2013, with
moderate growth forecast to continue in the medium term driven by*:

* Infrastructure investments in developing countries;

» Governments seeking to encourage passengers to switch from
road torail transport to reduce road congestion and to address
environmental concerns®; and

+ Continued investment intrack expansion, especially inthe
high-speed rail network, which has increased 28% in our key
markets since 2010. Over this timeframe, France has extended
its track by 33% and Germany by 23%. Inthe UK, 540km of track

(@4/8% increase) is planned for construction across High Speed 2
(HS2), phases 1 & 2°.

The investment innew trains, replacement of existing fleets,
andthe expandedtrack are all set to deliver increased capacity
and to support greater passenger numbers in the future.

2 ACIWorld Traffic Forecast (2016)(2017).

3 ACIWorld 2016 and IATA (2016) (2017).

4 ORR;Eurostat (2018).

> OECD(2017).

6 UIC(2018);includes HS2 planned investment.
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Our brands

We have more than 500 brands in our portfolio, which means we can
respond to the specific needs of passengers as they travel around the
world, ensuring each brand is ideally suited to each location.

Local hero brands International brands

Bringing inwell-known local brands is one of the best ways to evoke
the true atmosphere of the city that the travel hub serves.

Over many decades, we have partnered with some of the world's
biggest names, which trust us to serve their customers to the
highest standards.

M&S

(9% | LEON | CRUSeH %
\M_/’ NATURALLY FAST FOOE s SIMPLY FOOD AISEN FAMEN
‘ ‘ OBERWELS . ‘ ‘ JAMIE'S DELI
wahlbu }g ers e aes“$

Our own brands

Bespoke concepts

We have been creating and running our ownbrands for S0 vyears,
startingwithUpper Crust, first establishedinthe 1960s.

We are experts at creating bespoke concepts whichwe
have created in collaboration with clients, brand partners
andleading chefs.

HOVEnREry,

UFIOE STRé T
gastropub

TER0RSE |
LORAINE

WINE&VIEW
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OURBUSINESS MODEL

Our business model is focused on meeting the food and beverage
needs of our clients and customers in the complex and challenging
travel environment. We are able to achieve this through a combination
of international scale and local expertise.

The business

model is founded on

five key elements

7D

SSP

The Food Travel Experts

Leading market
positions

We have leading positions in some
of the most attractive sectors of the
travel food and beverage market.
These sectors have anumber of long-
term structural growthdrivers, such as
increasing passenger volumes andrising
spend per passenger, and are supported
by clients increasingly seeking to develop
and commercialise their sites.

We have outlets in 33 countries around
the world, anextensive brand portfolio
(as detailed onpage 5), and established
management and operational teams
inall of these countries.

Local insight and
international scale

We have a deep knowledge of

the individual markets in which

we operate, alongside significant
international scale and expertise.
Astrong local presence enablesus to
understand local customers'tastes and
needs, as well as allowing us to maintain
close relationships with clients and brand
partners by creating a‘sense of place’
inthe locations where we operate.

Qur international reach enables us

to benefit from economies of scale with
regardto anumber of central functions
and systems, as well as sharing best
practice across regions, countries

and sites.
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Our proposition to clients is the Food Travel Experts.

This has helped us achieve our leading market position andretain
our clients over the long term. [t will also provide a strong platform
for profitable growth inthe future.

Food travel
expertise

We provide a compelling proposition
for both clients and customers
based on our food travel expertise.
This includes adeep understanding of
what our customers are looking for and
an extensive offering of conceptstomeet
these needs. Managing high passenger
volumes and the complex logistics that
characterise travel environments is an
essential element of our business model.

Operatingretail catering in travel-related
locations is more complex than operating
high street outlets, e.g. longer operating
hours, supply chainand logistics
constraints, space limitations, etc.

Our understanding and ability to

manage these complexities allows us
todeliver consistent, high quality food
andbeverage offerings that fulfil the
requirements of clients and customers.

Long-term client
relationships

Our principal clients are the owners
and operators of airports and
railway stations, with these locations
generating 95% of our revenues

in 2018. We alsohave apresence in
motorway service areas, hospitals, sports
stadiaand shopping arenas. We have
long-standing relationships with many

of our clients, and have maintained high
successrates inretaining our contracts.

Key ta ensuring we continue to
maintainthese strong, profitable client
relationships is adeep understanding
of our clients'needs and those of our
customers. Weregularly seek feedback
on the quality of our customer service,
local management, range of products,
brandportfolio, and our operations
overall, sowe can continue to meet

our clients'expectations.

Experienced
management team

We have highly experienced
colleagues with a broad range

of experience across the food

and beverage, travel and retail
industries. \We also invest torecruit and
developthebest talent inthe industry.
Inall of our key markets, we employ
dedicated teams of senior managers
focused onbusiness development, sales,
marketing and operations, who wark
closely with our clients to ensure their
requirements are met.

They are supportedby experienced,
locally based operational teams who have
atrackrecord of delivering operational
excellence and great customer service.
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OURSTRATEGY

Our strategy is focused on creating long-term sustainable
value for our shareholders, delivered through five key
levers. We continued to make progress on each of the levers

throughout the past year.

1 Optimising our offer to benefit from
the positive trends in our markets

We are focused on the food and beverage markets intravel locations,
which benefit from long-term structural growth. We aim to use our
broad portfolio of brands andretailing skills to drive profitable
like-for-like sales, ensuring that we maximise the benefit from

the positive trends inthese markets.

Like-for-like sales growth in the year was driven by the ongoing

roll out of our retailing programmes which are delivering well.

We continue to optimise our product ranges and this year we have
made good progress in developing anumber of premium products,
bothfor our ownbrands and in conjunctionwith our brand partners,

that will provide customers with additional choice. We have also made
good progress trialling self-order technology within our Quick Service

Restaurants andthe early results are encouraging.

Using self-order technology
to drive transactions

Throughout the past year, we have beeninvesting in a trial of self-order
screens inanumber of Burger King units in the UK, Spain and Sweden.
Intravel environments, speed of service is critical, but peaks in traffic
canmake this challenging.

Where kiosks have been added, however, they have deliveredincreased
transactions versus units without kiosks and improved capacity during
peak times. Additionally, by making further refinements to the order
process as the trial has progressed, we have succeeded in driving
volumes even higher.

> Growing profitable new space

The travel food andbeverage market inairports andrailway stations
isvalued at approximately £1/bnand s characterised by long-term
structural growth. It offers excellent opportunities for us to expand
our business across the globe.

Net contract gains were 5.1%, driven by new unit apenings and high
levels of cantract retention. The high level of net gains was driven by
strong performances inNorth America and in the Rest of the World.
These large and growing markets (where we stillhave arelatively
small share), provide attractive expansion opportunities and the
pipeline of new contracts is encouraging,

Inadditionto our recent entry into the large and growing Indian
market, we have now secured afoothold into the Brazilian air
market with contractsinRio de JaneiroInternational and Sao Paulo
Guarulhos International airports, to be operated through

our joint venture.

Urban Express

Our new retail concept which opened at London Bridge station earlier
thisyearisalready trading above its business case.

Our new business growth is underpinned by our ability to deliver
attractive and effective food solutions at travel locations
internationally. Animportant element of thisis the brand line

up we canoffer. Our brands include both international brands
whichwe franchise, such as Burger King and Starbucks, and also our
own proprietary brands such as Upper Crust and Ritazza, as well
asbespoke conceptsandlocal heraes.

We have continued to develop our ownbrands, this year launching the
first Urban Express, anew food and retailing offer in the UK, including
partnershipswith'Berry Bros. & Rudd'for wines, Cook'for ready
meals and Foyles'for books. We have also continued to expand with
our own brands, for example opening Ritazza, Cabin Barand Nippon
Ramen outlets at Mactan-Cebu Airport in the Philippines, aCamden
food co. at ChicagoMidway Airport, and aRitazza at Mumbai Airport.
We have further extended our relationships with high profile chefs,
forexample in developing a fine dining concepts with Michelin starred
chefs, including the Hermanos Torres at Barcelona Airport, and Michel
Rostang at Le Train Bleu at Gare de Lyonin Paris. We have developed a
new partnership with Crussh, the London healthy food and juice chain,
and we have extended ourrelationship with Leon, opening anew

unit at Victoria station in London. We have also extended our Millie's
Cookies brand internationally, working with franchise partners
inIndia, who openedtwo units this year.
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3 Optimising gross margins and
leveraging scale benefits

Grossmarginincreased by 90 bps in the year at constant currency.
Approximately 50 bps of this improvement was due to higher growth
inthe air sector, which typically has higher gross margins but higher
concession fees thantherail sector.

Therollout of gross margin initiatives is progressing well across our
regions.Key areas of focus include range and recipe rationalisation,
procurement disciplines, and the management of waste and losses.
We continue to make good progress introducing equipment that
automates food preparation processes inour sites. This helps to
improve the product consistency, as well as driving labour efficiency
andreducing waste. This year we have also investedinacentral loss
prevention teamwho are using data analytics tohelp us to better
understand andreduce waste and loss.

Automation

Running an efficient and
effective business

Wehave amulti-year programme of initiatives to improve operating
efficlency, whichisimportant tothe Group giventhebackdrop of
ongoing labour cost inflation. Labour efficiencies contributeda
20bpsimprovement toour operatingmargin.

We continue to develop systemsto better align labour tosales,
allowing us to optimise service levels and [abour costs. We have
developedamore standardised and systematisedapproach tolabour
forecasting andscheduling through our Better Service Planning
programme. We are also trialling self-ordering and self-scan checkout
technology at anumber of units, both of which can contribute to labour
efficlency andanimproved customer experience. The greater

use of automatedequipmentinkitchens canalsohelpindriving
efficlency aswell asinbringing greater consistency tothe product.

Better Service Planning

Allof our new central production units (CPUs) are now designed to
include automated equipment. For example, in Chicago Midway we
openeda 7,000 sq ft new CPU with large items, suchas conveyor tables
and mechanical fillers, and smaller items like automatedjuicers and
vacuum packers.

This equipment helps reduce labour costs on some basic primary tasks,
improves quality, for example with blast chillers and vacuum packers,
and helps us produce amore consistent standard of food.

Better Service Planning (BSP) better matches labour to sales, and is the
labour forecasting tool we have beenusingin the UK for more thanayear.
Followingits successfulimplementation, which has led to more efficient
labour usage, improved service levels, and more consistent weekly labour
spendvs target, we are now utilising the programme in other markets
across the Group.

5 Optimising investment using best
practice and shared resource

Wehave maintained our focus on generating efficiencies to optimise

our investments, drivereturns and use best practice and shared
resaurces. Weare continuing to look at how shared back office services
canreduce cost and drive simpler, more efficient processes. Wehave two
outsourced sharedservice centres in Pune inindiaand Lodz inPoland,
whichare usedby anumber of SSP's countries for financial transaction
processingand dataanalytics support. We continue tolook for further
oppor tunities to outsource administrative and financial processes.

Energy efficiency is animportant priority for the Group andthis year
wehave investedinaspecialist teamwhohave already identifiedenergy
savingopportunities inunits, for example inthe areas of lighting and
kitchenequipment.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Jonathan Davies

Chief Financial Officer

We have delivered a strong set of results
and continue to invest in the growth and
development of the business.

Change
2018 2017 Constant
£m £m Reported currency LFL
Revenue 2,564.9 2,379.1 +/7.8% +9.5% +2.8%
Underlying operating profit 195.2 162.9 +19.8% +22.7%
Underlying operating margin 7.6% 6.8% +80bps +80bps
Operating profit 1933 161.0 +20.1%
Operating margin 7.5% 6.7% +80bps

Group performance

Revenue

Revenue increasedby 9.5% ona constant currency basis, including
like-for-like sales growthof 2 8% and net cantract gains of 5.1%.
Theimpact of acquisitions contributed a further 1.6% torevenue.
At actualexchange rates, totalrevenue grewby /8%, to £2,564.9m.

Like-for-like sales growthwas 2.8%. The growthinthe air channel
has again been strong, driven by increasing passenger numbersin
most of our major markets. Performance intherail sectorhasbeenin
line with recent trends, impacted by ongoing disruptionfrom station
redevelopmentsandclosures inthe UK, and by strikes in France.

Net gains contributed 5.1% to full year revenue growth, drivenby
strong contributions fromNorth America, which benefitted from the
new business opened inthe prior year, and further gains at Newark,
SanFrancisco, Toronto and LaGuardia and the Rest of the World,
primarily driven by new openings in India, China and Thailand.

Tradingresults fromoutside the UK are converted into Sterling at the
average exchangerates for the year. The overall translation impact
onrevenue from the moverment of foreign currencies (principally the
Euro, USDollar, Indian Rupee, Swedish Krona and Norwegian Krone)
in 2018 comparedto the 2017 averagewas-1./%.

Underlying operating profit

Underlying operating profitincreased by 22./% onaconstant
currency basis andby 19.8% at actual exchangerates to£195.2m.
The underlying operating marginimprovement of /0 bps, excluding
the acquisitionimpact of TFS, was drivenby good like-for-like sales
and further encouraging progress onour strategic initiatives.

The additional two months of TFS (12 months in 2018 compared

to 10months in 2017 following its acquisition in December 2016),
contributedafurther 10 bps to the averall operating margin, taking
itto /6%. The improvement in operating margin also benefitted from
asignificant contribution fromthe new contracts at Chicago Midway,
JFKT7 andLaGuardiaairports inNorth America, where we have been
operating the units ahead of their redevelopment and hence have
incurred limited closure periods, pre-opening and depreciation
costs. Furthermore, in India, we benefitted fromthe reversal of the
post-acquisitionintegration costs incurred in the previous year.

Grossmarginincreasedby 90 bps year-on-year, ona constant currency
basis of which 50 bps is due tothe higher sales growthin air, where
grossmargins are typically higher thanin therail sector. The underlying
improvement reflects the ongoingroll-out of our strategic initiatives
tooptimise gross margin. Key areas of focus during the year included
ranging and mixmanagement, food and drink procurement andwaste
andloss reduction.

Labour costsimproved by 20 bps year-on-year, ona constant
currency basis, driven by our broadly based labour efficiency
programmes. These more thanmitigated the ongoing labour
inflationwhichhas arisen from increases in minimum wage levels
andhealthcare costs, most notably inthe UK and the USA.

Concessionfeesroseby /0bps during the year with the stronger
growthinsalesinthe air channel, where concession fees are typically
higher relative torail, contributing 30bps to the year-onyear increase.
Theunderlying increase of 40 basis pointsis inline withrecent
historical trends.

Overheads marginimprovedby 20 bps during the year, onaconstant
currency basis, reflecting further good progress inoverhead
efficiency programmes, particularly with regards to energy costs.
We also benefitted fromalower level of pre-opening costs and the
reversal of post-acquisition integration costs in TFS asfromthe
prioryear.

Thereductionintherate of depreciation of 20 basis points was
largely attributable to our North Americabusiness, where at some

of the large new contracts (e.g. Chicago Midway, JFK T/ and LaGuardia
Airparts), we benefitted from operating units ahead of investing

the capital torebrandthe units.

Operating profit

Operating profitwas£1933m(2017: £161.0m), reflecting an
adjustment for the amortisation of acquisition-related intangible
assetsof £19m (2017:£19m).

Please refer to page 16 for supporting reconciliations from our statutory
reportedresults to the alternative performance measures referredtoin
the financial review.
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Regional performance

The following shows the Group's segmental performance. For full details of our key reporting segments, refer tonote 3.

UK (including Republic of Ireland)

Change
2018 2017 Constant

£m £m Reported currency LFL

Revenue* 798.1 7877 +1.3% +1.3% +0.8%
Underlying operating profit 89.5 821 +9.0% +9.0%
Underlying operating margin 11.2% 10.4% +80bps +80bps

* Note - Statutory reported operating profit was £88.0m (2017:£80.6m) and operating margin was 11.0% (2017: 10.2%) reflecting an adjustment for the
amortisation of acquisitionrelated intangible assets of £1.5m (2017:£1.5m).

Revenue increasedby 1.3% ona constant currency basis, comprising like-for-like growth of 0.8% and net contract gains of 0.5%. Like-for-like
growthinthe air sector was affectedby the collapse of Manarch Airlines and capacity reductions at Ryanair. Like-for-like sales in the rail sector
have remained softer and were impacted by railway station redevelopments and closures across the netwark, most notably inLondon.

Underlying operating profit for the UK increased by 9.0% on a constant currency basis, and underlying operating margin increased by 80 bps
to 11.2%, drivenby the continuedroll out of our operational efficiency initiatives, which helped to mitigate the inflationary cost pressures
fromrising food commodity prices, increases in the National Minimum Wage and National Living Wage and higher business rates.

Change
2018 2017 Constant

£m £m Reported currency LFL

Revenue® 971.7 910.3 +6.7% +6.9% +1.4%
Underlying operating profit 79.5 778 +2.2% +3.9%
Underlying operating margin 8.2% 8.5% -30bps -20bps

* Note - Statutory reported operating profitwas £79.1m (2017: £77.4m) and operating margin was 8.1% (2017:8.5%) reflecting an adjustment for the
amortisation of acquisition related intangible assets of £0.4m (2017:£0.4m).

Revenue increased by ©.9% on a constant currency basis, comprising like-for-like growth of 1.4%, net contract gains of 2.8% andthe impact
of the acquisition of Stockheim in Germany of 2.7%. Like-for-like sales growth in air was stronger than in rail, which was affected by strike
actioninFrance over the spring and early summer, which left like-for-like sales growth for the region weaker in the second half.

Underlying operating profit increased by 3.9% ona canstant currency basis, driven by the higher sales and the roll out of strategic initiatives.
The 20bpsreductioninoperating margin, ona constant currency basis, reflected the pre-opening costsrelating to the new contract at
Marseille and Oslo Airports, and the impact of the strike actionin France.

Change
2018 2017 Constant

£m £m Reported currency LFL

Revenue* 436.3 3729 +17.0% +23.1% +4.2%
Underlying operating profit 27.7 143 +93.7% +102.8%
Underlying operating margin 6.3% 3.8% +250bps +250bps

* Note - There are no adjustments between underlying operating profit and statutory reported operating profit.

North Americahadavery goodyear withrevenue increasing by 23.1% on a constant currency basis, comprising like-for-like growth of 4.2%
andnet contract gains of 18.9%. Like-for-like growth benefited frompositive trends in airport passenger numbers inthe North American
market, although growthinthe first half was impacted by areductionin passengers and new competition at asmall number of our airports,
most notably at Houston Airport. Contract gains included the full year effect of the major contracts that opened in the secondhalf of the
prior year, inparticular at Chicago Midway and JFK T/ We have also opened new business inNewark, Seattle, LaGuardia, San Franciscoand
Toronto Airports.

Underlying operating profitincreased by £134mto£2//m, anincrease of 102.8% at constant currency, witha corresponding increase
inthe operating margin of 250 bps at constant currency. This exceptionally strong result was driven by good like-for-like sales growth, further
good progress on operating efficiencies, and also benefitted from a good performance from our new units at Chicago Midway Airport, JFKT/
andLaGuardia Airport, where we have been operating the units ahead of their redevelopment and hence have incurred limited closure
periods, pre-opening and depreciation costs.
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Rest of the World

Change
2018 2017 Constant

£m fm Reported currency LFL

Revenue* 358.8 308.2 +16.4% +21.7% +10.1%
Underlying operating profit 357 21.2 +68.4% +7/70%
Underlying operating margin 9.9% 6.9% +300bps +310bps

* Note - There are no adjustments between underlying operating profit and statutory reported operating profit.

Revenue increasedby 21.7% on a constant currency basis, with anincrease in like-for-like sales of 10.1% and net contract gains of 70%.
The very strong like-for-like sales were driven by passenger growth across the region, particularly inIndia, and were helped by the temporary
closure of some competitor units for redevelopment inHong Kong, and a further recavery of our business in Egypt, which had been severely
impacted by terrorismin 2016. Net gains came primarily fromnew units at airports inIndia at Delhi, Kolkata and Goa, in China at Shenyang,

in Thailand at Phuket, and inHong Kong,

Underlying operating profit for the Rest of the World was £35./m, an increase of //0% onaconstant currency basis. This exceptional increase
inprofitreflectedthe unusually high like-for-like sales growth and was helped by avery strang performance from India, which benefitted
fromthe inclusion of afull year of trading compared to 10 months inthe prior year, and the reversal of the post-acquisition integration costs
incurredinthe prior year.

Share of profit of associates

The Group's share of profit from associates was £4.8m (2017: £ 34m), reflecting strong performance fromour joint venture operations
intheRest of the World.

Net finance costs

Underlying net finance costs decreasedby £2.0m year-on-year to £15.6m, primarily due to thereductionin interest rates following an
‘Amendand Extend of the Group's debt facilities in October 201/ Reported net finance costs were £15.2m, £4.4m lower year-on-year
duetothe lower interest rates and the revaluation of the financial liability to acquire the remaining 16% interest in TFS (£2 Omreduction
comparedto the prior year).

Taxation

The Group's underlying tax charge for the year was £40.5m (2017: £ 33.8m), equivalent to an effective taxrate of 220% (2017: 22.7%)
of the underlying profit before tax. On areported basis the tax charge for the year was £40.2m (201/: £336m).

Non-controlling interests

Thenon-controlling interests increased year-on-year by £ /1mto £25.5m. The increase reflects the strong performances of our joint ventures
inNorth America andthe Rest of the World, notably TFS inIndia.

Earnings per share

Underlying basic earnings per share increasedby 236%to 25.1 pence per share (201 /: 20.3 pence per share). Reported basic earnings per
share was 249 pence per share (2017/:19.5 pence per share).

Dividends

Inline with the Group's stated priorities for the uses of cash and after careful review of its medium term investment requirements, the Board
is proposing to maintain the dividend payout ratio for this year at 40%, the top end of the range stated inthe IPO prospectus. This willequate
toafinal dividend of 54 pence per share (201/: 49 pence per share), which s subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting,
If approved, thiswill result inatotal dividend per share for the year of 10.2 pence (2017:8.1 pence), anincrease of 25.9%.

Inaddition tothis, the Board proposes a special dividend of c. £ 150m alongside a share consolidation onthe recard date of the special
dividend. Both of these will contribute to maintaining balance sheet efficiency and reflect our confidence in the business.

The final dividend will be paid, subject to shareholder approval, on 29March 2019 to shareholders on the register on 1 March 2019.
The ex-dividend date willbe 28 February 2019. The special dividend is expectedtobe paid in April 2019.

The special dividend and share consolidation will be subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held inFebruary 2019 Further details of the special dividend and share consolidation (including the final amount to be paid, the record date
andproposed payment date for the special dividend) will be set out inthe notice of Annual General Meeting that will be sent to shareholders
inJanuary 2019,
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Cash flow
The table below presents a summary of the Group’s cash flow for 2018:
2018 2017
£m £m
Underlying operating profit 195.2 1629
Depreciationand amortisation 97.7 95.5
Working capital 12.8 183
Net tax (37.2) (33.3)
Other 117 11.9
Net cash flow from underlying operating activities 280.2 2553
Capital expenditure? (144.2) (115.0)
Disposal of associate - 73
Acquisitions in the year (19.0) (35.0)
Net cash flows to/from non-controlling interests/associates (22.5) (9.1)
Other (4.3) -
Underlying operating cash flow 90.2 103.5
Net finance costs (11.6) (14.5)
Underlying free cash flow 78.6 89.0
Dividends paid (145.8) (29.0)
Net cash flow (67.2) 60.0

! Presented onanunderlyingbasis (refer to page 16 for details).
2 Capital expenditure is net of capital contributions from non-controlling interests of £12.4m (2017: £8.4m).

The Group's cash flow remained strong, generating net cash flow from operating activities of £ 280.2m (2017/:£255.3m), whichwas anincrease
of £249myear-on-year, and underlying free cash flow of £ /8.6m (201/:£890).

Capitalexpenditureincreasedby £ 29.2mto £ 144.2m, reflecting the strength of the recent contract opening programme, in particularinNorth
Americaandthe Rest of the World, and ongoing investment in the equipment and technology that is helping to drive operational efficiencies.

Working capital generated £12.8m of cash flow during the year, helped by the new openings and continued good cash management disciplines.
The payment for the acquisition of the Group's investment in the Stockheim business in Germany was £19.0m, net of cash acquired.

Net finance costs paid of £11.6mwere lower thanin 201/ primarily due to lower interest costsinthe year as aresult of the’Amend and Extend’
of the Group's debt facilities in October 2017/

The dividends paid of £145 8mreflected the cost of the 201/ final dividend of 49 pence per share, the 2018 interim dividend of 4.8 pence per
share and the special dividend of £100.1m.

Overall, the Group usednet cash of £6/.2mduring the year.
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Balance sheet and net debt
The Group'sbalance sheet remains strong, withnet debt of £ 334./m (201/: £ 262.2m) and net assets of £458.3m (201 /:£4650m).

The table below explains the increase innet debt during the year:

£m
Opening net debt (1 October 2017) (262.2)
Net cash flow (67.2)
Impact of foreign exchange rates (1.0)
Other (4.3)
Closing net debt (30 September 2018) (334.7)

Theincrease innet debt of £/2.5mwas primarily aresult of the dividend payments of £145.8m, including the Special Dividend of £100.1m
paidinApril 2018.

Net Debt:EBITDA leverage at the year endwas at 1.1x, compared with 1.0x at the end of the prior year. With leverage remaining well below
our target range of 1.5x-20xNet Debt:EBITDA and having reviewed our medium term capital requirements, we are planning to return cash
to shareholders through another special dividend of . £150m, which we propose to pay in April 2019 alongside a share consolidation.

In addition we plan to maintain the ordinary dividend at 40% of net income.

We will continue to keep the balance sheet under review, with the intention of maintaining leverage broadly within the 1.5x- 2.0xNet
Debt:EBITDA range over the medium term.
Post balance sheet events

InAugust 2018, the Group successfully signed anagreement toissue US Private Placement notes (Notes') of US$175m. The Notes were issued
by awholly-owned subsidiary of SSP Group plc and guaranteed by SSP Group plc and two other wholly-owned Group subsidiaries.

The Notes represent SSP's inaugural issue in the US Debt Private Placement market and carry a fixed rate of interest, were issued in October
2018infive series: US540m at 4.35%, maturing in October 2025; US540m at 4.50%, maturing in October 2028, US$40m at 460%, maturing
inOctober 2030, £21mat 2.85% maturing in October 2025 and £ 21mat 3.06% maturing in October 2028,

Summary

Our overall financial performance has been strang, with good progress onnew business with underlying operating margin increasing by
80bps onaconstant currency basis. Cash generation was healthy despite increased investment inthe business, and our balance sheet
remains strong, with leverage below our mediumterm target range.

9°h-

Jonathan Davies
Chief Financial Officer

20November 2018
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Our strategic priorities are:

1 Optimising our offer to benefit from the positive trends in our markets; 2 Grow'ngproﬁtab{e new space; 3 Optimising gross margins

andleveraging scale benefits; 4 Runninganefficient andeffective business;and 5 Optim

sharedresource.

Revenue (actual currency) £2,564.9m

mising investment using best practice and

Year-on-year revenue growth (constant currency) 9.5%

23791
+195%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Strategic priorities 1 2

Definition - Revenue represents amounts for catering and retail
goods and services soldto customers excluding value added tax
andsimilar items.

Comment - Total revenue grew by /8% to £ 2,564.9m (at actual
exchangerates). The overall impact on revenue of the movement
incurrencies (principally the Euro, US Dollar, Swedish Krona,
NorwegianKrone andIndian Rupee) was -1./%.

2014 2015 2016

2017 2018

Strategic priorities 1 2

Definition - Revenue at constant currency eliminates the impact

of foreign exchange rates onrepartedrevenue. Constant currency
isbasedonaverage 201/ exchange rates, weighted over the financial
year by 2017/ results.

Comment - Revenue increasedby 9.5% in 2018 onaconstant
currency basis, comprising like-for-like growth of 2.8%, net contract
gains of 5.19%, and anacquisitionimpact of 1.6%.

Like-for-like sales increase 28%  Underlying operating profit (actual currency) £1952m
5 3.7% 195.2
33% 3.0% 31% 1629 +19.8%
1014 +34.2%
974 +24.6%
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Strategic priorities 1 Strategic priorities 1 2 3 4

Definition - Like-for-like salesrepresent revenues generated
inanequivalent period in eachfinancial year in outlets which have
beenopenfor aminimum of 12 months.

Revenue inoutlets which have been openfor less than 1.2 months
are excluded from like-for-like sales and classified as contract gains.
Prior periodrevenues inrespect of closed outlets are excluded from
like-for-like sales and classified as contract losses.

Comment - Like-for-like sales growth was 2.8%. The growthin the
airchannel has again been strong, drivenby increasing passenger
numbers in all of our major markets. The growthinthe rail channel
inthe UK and Continental Europe continues to be impactedby strike
actioninsome markets andanincrease indisruption due tostation
redevelopments, particularly inLondon.

Definition - Underlying operating profit representsrevenue less
operating costs excluding, inthe current period, the revaluation of
the obligation to acquire an additional 16% ownership share of TFS
by the end of calendar year 2018 and the amortisation of intangible
assets arising onthe acquisition of the SSPbusiness in 2006.

Comment - Underlying operating profit increasedby 22./%ona
constant currency basis, and by 19.8% at actual exchangerates to
£195.2m Operating profitwas £ 1933m(2017:£161.0m), reflecting
anadjustment for the amortisation of acquisition-related intangible
assetsof £19m (2017:£19m).

Underlying operating profit margin (actual currency) 7.6%  Underlying operating cash flow (actual currency) £90.2m
6.8% 7.6% 1035 502
0 +32.2% L
539 8330 783 -12.9%
. -

2014 2015

2016

2017 2018

Strategic priorities 3 4 5

Definition - Underlying operating profit marginrepresents
underlying operating profit as a percentage of revenue.

Comment - Underlying operating profit margin improved by
80bps onaconstant currency basis and at actual exchange rates
to /6%, as the combination of the good like-for-like sales growth
andthe benefits from our strategic initiatives continue to improve
our margins.

2014

2015 2016 2017

2018

Strategic priorities 5

Definition - Underlying operating cash flow represents net cash flow
from operations after capital expenditure, taxand net cash flow to
and fromnon-controlling interests and associates.

Comment - Underlying operating cash flowwas £90.2m, areduction
of £13.3m comparedto the prior year, representing higher capital
investment (+£.29.2m Y-0-Y), of fset by strong growth inunderlying
trading profits.
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Alternative performance measures

TheDirectors use alternative performance measures for analysis as they believe these measures provide additional useful information onthe
underlying trends, performance and position of the Group. The alternative perfarmance measures are not defined by IFRS and therefare may
not be directly comparable with other companies'performance measures and are not intended to be a substitute for IFRS measures.

Revenue growth

Asthe Group operates in 33 countries, it is exposed to translation risk on fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, and as such the Group's
reportedrevenue and operating profit will be impacted by movements in actual exchange rates. The Group presents its financial results
onaconstant currency basis in order to eliminate the effect of foreign exchange rates and ta evaluate the underlying performance of the
Group's businesses. The table belowreconciles reportedrevenue to constant currency sales growth, like-for-like sales growth, net contract
gains/(losses), and the impact of acquisitions.

Continental North RoW

UK Europe America incl TFS Total
2018 Revenue at actualrates by segment (Em) 798.1 9717 436.3 358.8 2,564.9
Impact of foreign exchange (Em) 0.0 1.0 22.8 164 40.2
2018 Revenue at constant currency' (Em) 798.1 972.7 4591 375.2 2,605.1
2017 Revenue at actual rates (Em) 7877 910.3 3729 308.2 2,379.1
Constant currency sales growth 1.3% 6.9% 23.1% 21.7% 9.5%
Whichis made up of:
Like-for-like sales growth? 0.8% 1.4% 4.2% 10.1% 2.8%
Net contract gains/(losses)? 0.5% 28% 18.9% 7.0% 51%
Acquisition impact* - 27% - 4.6% 1.6%
Total constant currency sales growth 13% 6.9% 231% 21.7% 9.5%

! Constant currency is based on average 2017 exchange rates weighted over the financial year by 2017 results.

2 Like-for-like sales represent revenues generated in an equivalent period in each financial year in outlets which have been open for aminimum
of 12months. Like-for-like sales are presented on a constant currency basis.

3 Revenue inoutlets whichhave been open for less than 12 months are excluded from like-for-like sales and classified as contract gains. Prior period
revenues inrespect of closed outlets are excluded from like-for-like sales and classified as contract losses. Net contract gains/(losses) are presented
onaconstant currency basis.

4 The acquisitionimpacts of TFS and Stockheim have been presented separately fromnet contract gains/(losses) from existing SSP business
forthe currentyearonly.
Underlying profit measures

The Group presents underlying profit measures, including operating profit, profit before taxand earnings per share, which exclude
amortisation of intangible assets arising on the acquisition of the SSPbusiness in 2006 and the revaluation of the obligation to acquire
anadditional 16% ownership share of TFS. Areconciliation from the underlying to the statutory reportedbasis is presented below.

2018 2017

Underlying  Adjustments Total Underlying  Adjustments Total

Operating profit (Em) 195.2 (1.9) 193.3 162.9 (1.9) 161.0
Operating margin 7.6% (0.1)% 7.5% 6.8% (0.1)% 6.7%
Profitbefore tax (Em) 184.4 (1.5) 182.9 1487 (3.9) 144.8

Earnings per share (pence) 25.1 (0.2) 24.9 203 (0.8) 195
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RISKMANAGEMENT AND PRINCIPAL RISKS

TheBoardidentifies that effectiverisk management is key to supporting the Group's strategic objectives. The management of risksis
delegatedto the business through avariety of committees that are responsible for reviewing and managing the procedures. We recognise
that the procedures are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives as they can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses, fraud or breaches of laws and regulations.

Furthermore, the Board ensures that the Group maintains astrong capital base and adequate sources of funding at all times, in order
topursueits strategy of growth and the creation of long-term sustainable value for its shareholders. The Board has taken care to ensure that
allrelevantrisks have been appropriately analysed and understood in the context of this strategy. The regional businesses operate withina
Group-wide risk management framework, which allows the regional management teams to utilise their knowledge of their local markets as
effectively as possible to deliver an the Group's strategic priorities as set out on pages 8 ta 9, whilst operating within the risk tolerance levels

set by the Board.

Risk management framework

The Group's risk management framework is designed to ensure that
material risks throughout the business are identified and effectively
managed on anongoing basis.

The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Group.

This process was inplace throughout 2018 and up to the date of
approval of this annual report, whichmeets the requirements of the
guidance produced by the Financial Reporting Council. The Audit
Committee has kept under review the effectiveness of the system
of internal controls and has reportedregularly to the Board.

The key features of the risk management process are as follows:

* the Group conductsanannualrisk assessment and local
management teams maintain country andregionalrisk registers.
Theregional/countryregisters cover the assessment of risks
(including social, environmental, governance and ethical matters),
any major changes inrisks or new initiatives, and any current
aswellas future mitigation activities, which are discussed by
the Executive Committee. The Group maintains atop down
consolidatedrisk register which covers risks to the overall Group.
Risks are evaluatedinrespect of their potential impact and
likelihood, and key risks are presented to the Risk Committee
andthe Audit Committee;

* theBoarddiscusses andagrees the principalrisks that are
includedinthe annual report;

* anannualrisk management actionplanis put inplace to further
enhance the Group's risk management capability; and

* the management of risk and compliance with associated
policies is consideredas part of the Group's performance
management systems.

Thetable onpages 19to 22 summarises the principalrisks and
uncertainties towhichthe Group isexposed, and the actions taken
tomitigate them.Risks are identified as principal' based on the
likelihood of accurrence and the potentialimpact onthe Group.
The principalrisks arelistedin order of priority.

No new risks have been added to the principal risks since last year.

Internal controls framework

Theregional and country management teams are responsible for
implementing internal control and risk management practices within
their ownbusinesses and for ensuring compliance with the Group's
policies and pracedures.

During 2018, the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's
system of controls, risk management and high-level internal control
processes. Thesereviews included anassessment of internal
controls, inparticular operational and compliance controls as well

as their effectiveness, supportedbyreports fromthe internal auditor
aswell as the external auditor on matters identified in the course

of their statutory audit work.

The Audit Committee supports the Board by regularly reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group's system of internal controls.

Therewere no changes to the Group's internal controls over financial
reporting that occurred during the year ended 30 September 2018
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Group's reportedfinancial position.

Thekey elements of the internal control environment inrelation
to the financial reporting process are as follows:

* reviewof the Group's strategic plans and objectives by the Board
onanannual basis;

* adetailedbudget is produced annually in accordance with the
Group's financial processes, whichis reviewed and approved by
the Board,

* operational reports are provided to Executive Directorsona
weekly and monthly basis, and performance against the budget is
keptunder regular review inaccordance withthe Group's financial
procedures manual. The Chief Executive Officer reports to the
Boardon performance andkey issues as they arise;

* the Audit Committee assists the Boardinthe discharge of its
dutieswithregardto the Group's financial statements, accounting
policies and maintenance of proper internal business, operational
and financial controls. The Audit Committee pravides adirect link
betweenthe Board andthe internal and external auditors through
regular meetings;

* theBoardhasformal proceduresinplace toapprove client
contracts, capital investment and acquisition projects, with clearly
designated levels of authority, supported by post investment
review processes for selected acquisitions and capital expenditure;

* eachcountryisrequiredto submit a Controls Self-Assessment
(CSA) confirmation eachyear to verify its compliance with the
controls established over core processes. This must be signed
off by regional senior management before submission to Group;

* theBoard considers social, environmental, governance and ethical
mattersinrelationtothe Group'sbusiness and assesses these
whenreviewing the risks faced by the Group. Further information
regarding environmental and ethical matters is available on
pages 24to 2/,

* the Group has established androlled out a Code of Conduct,
aWhistleblowing Policy, an Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption
Policy, and a GDPR compliance policy as well as training thereof,
allof which arerefreshed onanongoing basis. Training has been
providedto the Board and the senior management, which covers
the obligations and behaviours of a UK listed company, including
thoserelating to compliance, insider trading and market abuse; and

* theGrouphasreviewedits policies and procedures to ensure that
therisk of facilitating tax evasion by associates is minimised.
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The Group's risk management framework

Internal Audit
Carries out assurance
activities to help inform
the Board and committees
of potential risk areas and
mitigating controls

A

Board

The Board has overall responsibility for our system of internal controls and risk
management policies, and is also responsible for reviewing their effectiveness
throughregular risk updates and reports.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviews procedures that relate to risk management
processes and financial controls. The assessment of controls and risk management
processes provide areasonable basis for the Board to make proper judgements on
anongoing basis as to the financial position and prospects of the Group.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports to the Board on any matters that
have arisen from the Audit Committee’s review of the way risk management and
internal control processes have been applied. This includes insights from its review
of thereports of the internal and external auditors.

* Receives andreviews detailed risk
registers, Control Self Assessment
(CSA)results andinternal
auditreports

* Supports the Board by reviewing
risk management processes and
financial controls

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee meets quarterly and operates under the management of the
Audit Committee. The Risk Committee is not a Board committee. It is chaired by
the Chief Financial Officer and comprises the Group General Counsel, the Group
Financial Controller, the Group Head of Financial Reporting, the Director of
Business Controls, senior representatives from Deloitte, which acts as internal
auditor to the Group, and other key colleagues where necessary.

* Reviewsriskregisters
* |dentifies newrisks forinclusion
intheregisters

* Takesaction, asagreedand
documentedintheregisters

* Reviews operationalrisks, controls
andKPIs on an ongoing basis

* Reviewsresults of the CSA process
andinternal audit reports

Business Controls Team

* Coordinates the risk management process
* Conducts meetings with risk owners across the business
» Coordinates and consolidates local risk registers

* Updates the Grouprisk register, assesses risk ratings and documents
the mitigating controls

* Coordinates, consolidates and summarises themes fromthe CSA process

Regional and country management

» Considers, updates and maintains local risk registers and risk maps

» Completes the annual CSA process, and proposes and follows up on action points
toaddress any control gaps

Top down
Oversightand
leadership of risk
management approach

Bottom up
Identification, assessment,
mitigation and escalation
of risks
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Principal risks

Risks are identified as principal' on the basis of their likelihood of occurrence and their potential impact on the Group. Furthermore,
our strategic priorities laid out below form the basis of Group-wide risk identification, assessment and discussions:

1 Optimising our offer to benefit from the positive trends in our markets; 2 Growing profitable new space; 3 Optimising gross margins
andleveraging scale benefits; 4 Runninganefficientandeffective business;and 5 Optimising investmentusingbest practice and

sharedresource.

The principalrisks discussedin the table below are listed in order of priority. Nonew principal risks have been identified since last year.

ﬁ‘ Riskincreasing

Risk/Risk Priority

@ Risk decreasing

Risk Description

<&> Norisk movement

Mitigating Factors

1 Business
environment

<&

Strategic priorities
12

The Group operatesinthe travel environment where
externalfactors suchas the general economic and
geopolitical climate, levels of disposable income,
weather, changing demographics and travel patterns
could allimpactboth passenger numbers and
consumer spending. Thereis arisk that the Group
isunable, or poorly placed, torespond to these
external events.

Thetravel environmentis vulnerable toacts

of terrorismor war, an outbreak of pandemic
disease, or amajor and extreme weather event

or natural disaster which could reduce the number
of passengersintravel locations.

Increased protectionist trade policy and tariffs
inthe US couldresult in US cost inflation.

Business uncertainty in the US could have animpact
oninternational travel and the wider economic
environment.

The Group monitors the performance of individual business units and
markets regularly. The Executive Directors review detailed weekly and
monthly information covering arange of KPIs, and monitors progress
onkey strategic projects with local senior management. Specific
shortand medium termactions are takento address any trading
performance issues which are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group also conducts extensive research to understand
current levels of customer satisfaction and gathers feedback
onchanging requirements.

The Group has business continuity plans in place including liaison with

authorities and clients inkey locations to ensure that contingency
plans are comprehensive and complete.

2 Retentionof
existing client
relationships

&
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The Group's operations are dependent onthe
terms of airport and railway station concession
agreements. Growthis dependentonthe
Group's ability toretain existing concession
contracts and win new contracts from either
new or existing clients.

The Group's clients may turnto alternative
operators, cease operations, terminate
contracts with the Group or increase cost
pressure on the Group.

The Group's local management structures in all its major
geographies allow it to maintain strong relationships with its
clients and to monitor performance in close partnership with
its clients'management teams.

The Group has an established contact strategy withkey clients

to establish and/or maintain ongoing relationships. These are
discussed between Group and local management onaregular basis.

The Group conducts regular online and interview-based client surveys
toensure any concerns are being addressed.

Furthermore, the Group proactively seeks to invest in, extend and
enhance its offersinkey locations, working in conjunction with clients.

3 Brexit
1

Strategic priorities
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Brexit may have anadverse impact on the wider
economic environment inthe UK and across the EU,
resulting inweaker consumer spending in the travel
food andbeverage markets. It would also impact
the travel sector directly if any restrictions in the
freedom of industrial air travel between the UK
and EU countries come into force.

The potential depreciation of the pound could lead
to cost inflation pressures, particularly in the food
commodity markets.

Potential restrictions on mobility of EU nationals
post-Brexit may limit the availability of labour
resource inthe UK.

The Group carefully monitors the ongoing negotiations of the UK's
exit fromthe EU, which are discussed between Group and local
managementon aregular basis.

The Group maintains a global portfolio and regularly monitors
the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on its cash flows,
mitigating the impact from foreign exchange risk.

The Group's pricing and range initiatives are driven by continuous
monitoring of consumer spending benchmarks.

Various gross margin initiatives, including recipe re-engineering
and procurement rationalisation continue to be pursued, inorder
tomitigate theimpact of costinflation.

The Group continues to develop its UK recruitment strategy to
ensure SSP is positioned as an attractive employer in the UK.

4 | abourlaws
andunions

&

Strategic priorities
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Approximately half of the Group's employees are
subject to collective bargaining agreements. These
are principally in France, Germany, Spain, Denmark,
Finland, Norway, Sweden and the United States.

The Group is also subject to minimumwage
requirements and mandatory healthcare
subsidisationin some of the jurisdictions in which
it operates, notably North America, the United
Kingdomand China.

The Group works proactively with all of its unions to ensure that
the various collective bargaining agreements are appropriate
for the Group and therefore minimise commercial risks.

The Group is continually reviewing the impact of changesin
remuneration structures in developing mitigating strategies across
the Group. The reviews include the ongoing impact of the National
Living Wage and the Apprenticeship Levy in the United Kingdom,
and the impact of healthcare legislation in the United States.

Various labour productivity initiatives continue to be pursued by
the Group, in order to mitigate the impact of cost inflation.
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Risk/Risk Priority

5

Risk Description

|mp[ementation The Group is continuously seeking new
. programmes to improve efficiency. Thereisa
of e]Cﬁ(:lency risk that these programmes may not be feasible
programmes toimplement in certainjurisdictions, and
@ furthermore, they could fail to deliver the desired
benefits, e.g. labour efficiency and minimising
waste and loss.

Strategic priorities
3 45

Mitigating Factors

The Group has completed a detailed evaluation, planning and partial
implementation of its major change programmes, and adapts and
responds to feedback on an ongoing basis.

To aid these programmes, the Group continues to utilise specialist
expertise inthe business where required, both at a Group and at
acountry level.

The Group provides central support through its regional CEOs
and CFOs, to facilitate appropriate country actions based
onkey performance indicators linked to margin management.

Group IT also provides support for project management and
implementation, using agreed standard business processes
and controls.

Changing client requirements, such as

splitting tenders across two or more providers,
partnering with operators injoint ventures,
developing third party purchasing models and
favouring localbrand operators or partnering
directly withbrand owners, may adversely
affect the Group's business.

Changing client
behaviours

<&
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The Group has inplace a clear'SSP Value Proposition' that it
presents to the client to address this risk.

The Group Director of Strategic Partnerships and the Group Chief
Commercial Officer work closely with country management teams
to enhance and clarify the Group's proposition to its clients.

The Group's contact strategy with key stakeholders and clients
helps to mitigate this risk. This is informed by its annual client
survey, whichis carried out by anindependent party.

DE
7 Regulatory The laws and regulations governing the Group's The Group has procedures and processes inplace to ensure
l industry have become increasingly complex across  compliance with local laws and regulations. The Group may
compliance anumber of jurisdictions and a wide variety of obtain external advice to supplement the in-house legal and

areas, including, among others, food safety, labour,
employment, immigration, security and safety,
healthand safety, modernslavery, plastic waste,
competition and antitrust, consumer protection
(including data protection), environment, licensing
requirements and related compliance. Witha UK
parent company, the Group is required to comply
with the provisions of the UK Bribery Act and the
legislation aimed at preventing the facilitation of
tax evasion, as well as the local equivalent laws in
the territories inwhich the Group operates. There
is arisk that the Group fails to comply with such
laws and regulations.

als

The Groupis required to comply with data privacy
laws inmany of the jurisdictions inwhich it
operates. Inthe EU, the Company has been subject
tothe new General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR) since May 2018. This requires the
adoption of stricter datamanagement processes
inorder to address greater rights for individuals,
mandatory breachreporting and more rigorous
compliance obligations. Thereis arisk that the
Group fails to comply with the new rules or to
implement adequate processes to safeguard
personal data. This could giverise to larger fines,
penalties and civil action from individuals.

The preparation of food and maintenance of
the Group's supply chainrequire abase level
of hygiene, temperature maintenance and

Strategic priorities traceability, which expose the Group to possible

compliance team.

The Group has a Code of Conduct, and Anti-Bribery and
Anti-Corruption Policy, and training has beenrolled out
internationally. This is continually being reviewed and
updated to improve controls and monitoring.

The Group's procedures under the policy include regular reporting
by the businesses to the Risk Committee. Compliance is monitored
by Internal Audit and the Risk Committee on an ongoing basis,

and all alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct and policy
areinvestigated.

The Group has conducted arisk assessment regarding the new UK
legislation onfailure to prevent the facilitation of tax evasion, and
is updating its policies and procedures in this regard.

The Group has established a GDPR working group with
representatives from each key division to ensure the Group is able
tomanage GDPR compliancerisk. Local champions are in place
toensure local compliance, and the Group is making progress to
ensure it is compliant with the new rules. Furthermore, our supplier
contracts are beingupdated to ensure that suppliers are

GDPR compliant.

The Group has food safety controls and procedures in place that
are embedded in the Group's operations. These are monitored by
the country management teams on aregular basis and appropriate
actionis takenif any issues are identified. Training sessions are also
held atacountry level to ensure compliance with these procedures.

12 food safety liability claims and issues.
8 Executionand Thereis arisk that the Group may not be The Group, as well as regional and country senior management
bilisati £ successful in mobilising new contracts and teams, reviews mobilisation plans to ensure that new openings are
mobilisationo operating them successfully. delivered ontime and in line with the specific agreement or contract.
new contracts

<&
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The Group has strengthened the management teams, including
the business development and property teams in the high-growth
regions of Asia Pacific, India and the US, especially in finance,
operations and construction.

The Group also teams up with its joint venture partners innew
territories to provide local infrastructure and mobilisation support.
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Risk/Risk Priority

Risk Description

Mitigating Factors

9 Expansioninto
new markets

&

Strategic priorities

The Group's strategy involves expanding its
business in developing markets, including Asia
Pacific, India, Eastern Europe and the Middle East.

Political, economic and legal systems and
conditions in these countries are generally less
predictable thanin countries with more developed
institutional structures, subjecting the Group

to additional commercial, reputational, legal

and compliance risks.

The Group has strengthened the management teams in Asia Pacific
and India, especially in finance and operations where this risk is high
and the Group is growing.

Inaddition, the Group adopts ajoint venture modelin certainnew
territories to provide access to existing local infrastructure and
expertise, as well as to help mitigate the risk inherent on entering
new territories.

The Group has clearly defined authorisation procedures for all
contractinvestments, to ensure that they are consistent with the
objectives set by the Board and that they fully consider and evaluate
therisksinherentin expansioninto new locations and territories.

The Group works with in-house and external advisors to ensure
the risks of doing business in developing markets are identified
and where possible, mitigated before entering those markets.
This includes appropriate due diligence of potential joint venture
and other local partners.

The Group legal team works closely with country legal and
operational teams to support business development activities
and to ensure compliance with local requirements.

Therisk of working in developing markets is also monitored

De by the Risk Committee and the Audit Committee.
10 Senior The performance of the Group depends on The Group continues toreview key roles and succession plans
t its ability to attract, motivate and retain key atacountryandataGroup level. Senior resources have been
manag?men employees. The skills developed in our business strengthened inanumber of strategically importantand
capablllty are highly attractive to other companies, which growing businesses.
andretention regularly target our staff for recruitment. The Remuneration Committee monitors the levels of remuneration

&

Strategic priorities
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The Group may not have sufficient management
capability atasenior level, such as country
leadership inboth existing and new territories,
to execute the planned operational efficiency
programmes and to support the growth and
development of the business.

The Group may not have sufficient resources, such
asresourcesinlegal, finance and IT, to meet the
changing and complex needs of aninternational
and growing business.

for senior management and seeks to ensure that they are designed
toattract, retainand motivate the key personnel required to run
the Group effectively.

The Group carries out an annual talent mapping exercise to
identify candidates for future roles and continues to invest in
additionalresources to support change initiatives and business
development programmes.

11 Competitive
intensity

&
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Competitionintensifies as the Group's
competitors become more sophisticated,
diversified, direct moreresources to the
preparation of tenders, and take amore
aggressive position on commercial terms when
tendering for contracts. This could put pressure on
the Group's profitability and reduce the availability
and attractiveness of contracts.

The Group has developed high-quality ‘business-to-business’
marketing collateral to clearly lay out the benefits of working
with SSP, which it shares with the clients to help them better
understand the Group's proposition, from both a quantitative
and a qualitative perspective.

The Group's strengthened business development team utilises the
feedback fromregular client satisfaction surveys when developing
new tenders, to ensure they remain competitive to clients.

The Group has clear internal benchmarking and investment
appraisal processes to evaluate tender proposals and to ensure
that the Group is able to make a competitive offer, as well as meet
itsinvestment criteria.

The Group continues to extend its brand portfolio, including via
partnerships with celebrity chefs, to provide breadth and depth
as partof atender process.

12 QOutsourcing
programmes

&
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The Group fails to execute outsourcing projects
effectively, whichresults inadisruption of the
business as usual and the introduction of new
third party risks.

Furthermore, any benefits expected from the
outsourcing programme may not be realised.

The Group continues to utilise specialist resources in the business
to manage implementation and transition projects, and it continues
touse external advisors to provide input into the management of
risks in such projects. Performance feedback is reported to the
Executive Committee on aregular basis and the Risk Committee
periodically.

Furthermore, the Group has included the outsourcing centres
inits Internal Audit review scope. The outsourcing partners are
highly reputable and were selected after a rigorous tender process
and extensive due diligence.
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13 Cybersecurity
iy

Strategic priorities
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Risk Description

The Group becomes exposed to information
security and cyber threats, e.g. threats detailed
inthe Payment Card Industry Data Security
Standards (PCIDSS).

Therisk of ransomware attacks has increased
duetoageneralincreasein the prevalence

of ransomware attacks and their increasing
sophistication.

Mitigating Factors

The Group continually reviews its business continuity plans for its
supply chain, IT disaster recovery, and information security policies
and practices, to ensure that these meet the changing landscape.

The Group has alsorolled out cyber security training across the
business toreinforce data protection responsibilities and cyber
risks.

The Group's segmental business model and IT systems structure
help to ensure that potential cyber attacks are likely toremain
isolated locally rather thanimpact the entire Group.

14 Maintenance/
development
of brand
portfolio

<&

Strategic priorities
12

The Group's success is largely dependent upon
its ability to maintain its portfolio of proprietary
brands and the brands of its franchisors,

aswell as the appeal of those brands to clients
and customers.

The loss of any significant partner brands, the
inability to obtainrights to new brands over time
or the diminution in appeal of partner brands or
the Group's proprietary brands, could impair the
Group's ability to compete effectively in tender
processes and ultimately have amaterial adverse
effect onthe Group's business.

The Group continues to strengthen its dedicated brands and
marketing teams, to work closely with its partner brands and to
enable greater capacity to attract and manage a broader portfolio
of external brands.

The Group also carries out extensive customer research into
passengers'needs and continually analyses market trends in order
toenhance its brand and concept portfolio on an ongoing basis.

Finally, the Group continuously looks to strengthen the depth
and breadth of its brand partners.

15 Business
development
capability and
investment

&
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The Group may not have the capabilities in key
markets to maximise business development
opportunities, in order to win profitable business
innew markets.

The Group prioritises its investment in new contracts as part
of the ongoing review of its global pipeline, and the prioritisation
of its capital investment and resources.

The Group has also strengthened the management teamin
Asia Pacific and India, especially in finance and operations.

Furthermore, the Group works with local joint venture partners
innew markets to access support and advice on business
development activities.

16 Taxstrategy
&

Strategic priorities
12

The Group suffers reputational damage if
customers, clients and/or suppliers believe
that the Group is engaged in aggressive or
abusive tax avoidance.

Thereis arisk that the Group may not be tax
compliant due to complicated local tax laws
across different geographical territories.

The Group has a tax management policy whichis based
onthe Board's guidance to adopt a low risk tax strategy.

The Group alsoregularly reviews its tax priorities and has
strengthened the tax team at the centre.
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Viability statement

SSP Group's operations are managed on aregional basis and are primarily focused on the airport and railway station food and beverage sales
markets. As detailed on page 4 (Our marketplace’), the market benefits fromanumber of long-term structural growth drivers. Our business
modelis focused onmeeting the food and beverage needs of our clients and customers ina complex and challenging environment.

Our strategy to achieve this consists of five key levers, which provide us with a strong platform to achieve profitable growth, which in turnis
consistent withthe Group's objective to create long-term sustainable value for its shareholders.

The Directors have assessed the Group's prospects and viability over a five-year planning cycle. As the business is now globally established
withinafairly mature yet dynamic market, the Directors believe that forward planning over alonger time horizon will enable the Company
totake advantage of the structural growthdrivers inthe market. This time horizon is also consistent with the Group's typical lease contract
length, financing arrangements and global expansion plans through organic growth.

The assessment process and key assumptions

The Directors have performed anassessment of the Group's prospects through its annual strategic and financial planning process.

This process is led by the Group CEO and CFO in conjunction with the Executive Committee and the country management teams. The results
of the assessment are then summarised within the five-year strategic plan (the Medium Term Plan or MTP), which is discussed and approved
by the Board annually. The most recent MTP was approved in July 2018, which covers the period from 2019 to 2023.

The MTPisunderpinned by a detailed financial model, which includes the following key factors:

* revenue assumptions basedanrecent trends have been adjustedfor any macro-economic factors in the regions;

* margins assuming that cost inflation pressures will continue, however the impact of those pressures is offset by efficiency programmes
and operational leverage;

» dividend policyremains unchanged; and

* the Group's capital structure, which consists of long term debt and abank facility (which includes arevolving credit facility)
remains unchanged.

The first year of the financial forecasts forms the basis of the Group's operating budget and is subject to arolling quarterly forecast
process throughout the year. Subsequent years of the forecasts are extrapolated fromthe first year, based on the overall content of the
strategic plan. The MTP review is supported by briefings provided by the regional and country management teams, which consider both
the market opportunities and the associated risks and mitigating factors. These risks are alsoreviewed as part of the Board's annual risk
assessment process.

Assessment of viability

The Directorsrecognise the importance of considering the long term viability of the business when executing strategic decisions. As aresdult,
the Directors place ahigh degree of importance on maintaining an effective Group-wide risk management framework, which ensures a
disciplined approach torisk taking. Such an approach ensures that the upside patential of all relevant risks is understood and capitalised upan
asdirectedby the Board, whilst the downside is appropriately mitigated. The Group's risk management process and its effectiveness thereof
aredetailedonpages 1/to 18.

The Directors have also performed arobust assessment of the Group's principal risks, which canbe found onpages 19to 22. Therisks are
listedinorder of priority. Therisk descriptions explainwhy the relatedrisks are important, and the Directors believe that the corresponding
mitigating factors adequately address eachrisk, such that any residual risk falls within the Board's risk tolerance.

Whilst the principalrisks canimpact the normal performance of the business, under highly stressed market conditions some of them could
present threats to the existence of the organisation. As aresult, the Directors have assessed the Group's resilience to anumber of alternative
scenarios. These scenarios represent stresses which include the following circumstances:

* onethatuses as its reference point the 2008/09 financial crisis, when global economic conditions adversely impacted both passenger
volumes and the spending habits of customers, leading to arapid and unprecedented drop in like-for-like sales;

 onethatenvisages anexternalevent, e.g aterrorist incident that has a significant impact onthe travel sector for anumber of months; and

* one that considers the impact of acombined short-term decrease in sales and a longer-term sustained decline in like-for-like sales.

Theresults of the stress tests, including one that combined the individual scenarios, demonstrated that due to the Group's high cash

generation, it would be able towithstand the impact in each case. Mitigations considered as part of the stress tests included reductions

inadditional capex, reductions indiscretionary spending, lower dividend payments and client rent re-negotiations.

Viability statement

Basedon theresults of the analysis, the Directors have areasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation

andmeet its liabilities as they fall due over the five-year period of their assessment to September 2023

Going concern

Finally, based onthe detailed cash flow projections discussed above and the stress-tested scenarios considered, the Directors are confident
that the Group will be able to operate within its banking covenants and have sufficient liquidity levels for the next 1.2 months from the

date of thisreport. Accordingly, the Directors believe it appropriate to prepare the Annual Report and Accounts onagoing concern basis
(further details canbe found onpage 59).
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At SSP we recognise the impact our business has on others, and

we are committed to managing this impact in aresponsible way:.

We divide our sustainability programme into four areas: Marketplace,
People, Environment and Cormmunity, each with appropriate policies
and commitments to ensure that we address the most material
environmental and social issues facing our business.

Anamed member of the Executive Committee isresponsible for each of the four areas, and the Board regularly reviews progress against
our strategy andKeyPerformance Indicators. We listento our stakeholders and regularly review our approach to meet their expectations.

Thisreport provides a summary of howwe manage the most material sustainability issues for our business. More detail, together with

relevant policies, is available at www.foodtravelexperts.com.

Non-financial information statement

We note the requirements under the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006, relating to the preparation of the Strategic report which
have been amended by the Companies, Partnerships and Groups
(Accounts and Non-Financial Repor ting) Regulations 2016, which
implements EUDirective 2014/95/EU (on non-financial and diversity
information). As aresult of these changes, we have integrated the
required informationinto the Strategic report, the majority of which
is detailed throughout this Sustainability report.

Marketplace

Our priorities

We are committed to providing quality products and services to our
customers, and to ensuring the safety and sustainability of those
products andof the supply chain behind them.

Our progress

Customer satisfactionisour priority,and our colleagues seek to
empathise with our customers'needs. Inmost of our global markets,
we use our Eat on the Move'platformto ask customers for their
feedback so that we canreview our performance and identify

ways toimprave the service we provide.

We seek to ensure that our product ranges and menus offer our
customers choice, including healthier choices, such as lower fat, lower
sugar or low carbohydrate options. We also look at ways to improve
the health credentials of recipes. This will include using low fat mayo
or spread as standard and eliminating the use of artificial transfats.

One example is our focus on sugar reduction within the productswe
sell inthe UK. Our cold beverage range now has awider selection of
low calorie and diet drinks. In our Camden and Whistlestop units, for
example, we have increased the number of low calorie or diet drinks
inour ranges by over 50% since 2015. We have alsa reviewed our
confectioneryrange andincreasedthe number of healthier lines
withinit. InPumpkin, the number of healthier lines has increased by
31% whilst the size of the overall confectionery range has decreased
by 23%. Arecentreview of our muffinrange in our UK ownbrand
coffee shopsalsoresultedina 15% reduction in sugar content and
portionsize.

Ethical trade

Our priorities

Our Supplier Code of Conduct and Human Rights Policy is aligned
tothe Ethical Trading Initiative's Base Code and outlines the labour
standards we expect our suppliers to work towards, sowe can
ensure that they are fairly treated. This is used throughout our
globalbusiness.

Our progress

We have an ongoing programme of engagement with ourkey
suppliers aroundthe world to ensure that they understand and
comply with our Ethical Trade Code of Conduct andHumanRights
policy. Our global purchasing teams receive training to support them
inthis supplier dialogue so they may assess risks within our supply
chain. Anincreasing number of suppliers are now connected with
SSPvia the Supplier Ethical Data Exchange (SEDEX), enabling

our country purchasing teams to access detailed informationon
ethical trade risks and performance. We continue to work with the
management teams, in particular inthose countries deemedto
behighrisk far ethical trade and modern slavery, to ensure that
appropriate controls areinplace.

Inline withthe requirements of the 2015 Modern Slavery Act, we
also operate adue diligence process to ensure that modern slavery
risks are closely monitored within our business and supply chain.
Further detail onour approach is provided in our separate Modern
Slavery statement, available at www.foodtravelexperts.com.

Responsible sourcing

Our priorities

Our Responsible Sourcing Palicy outlines the standards which

we expect aur purchasing teams to implement when sourcing
ingredients for ourmenus. Our objective is that the products we sell
should come from sustainably managed sources wherever possible.

Our progress

We know that animal welfare is a priority for our customers and
stakeholders. We are committed to maintaining high standards of
animalwelfare within our supply chain and expect our suppliersto
meet or exceedthe standards withinthe 'Five Freedoms' concept
proposed by the Farm Animal Welfare Council. Further details onour
animal welfare standards are included in our Farm Animal Welfare
Policy. During the year, we have reviewed our egg sourcing strategy
and made a commitment to source all of the eggs we use within

our proprietary brands across our global business from cage-free
sources by 2025. Our country purchasing teams will be working with
suppliers over the coming years to implement the changes.

We are already making progress towards this target. All of the
hard-boiled eggs and scrambled eggs purchased for SSP UK's
proprietary brands are now from cage-free sources. In Sweden,
allwhole eggs are from cage-free sources.

As hot beverages are such animportant part of our offer, we want
toensure that the coffees and teas are produced inaccordance with
ethical and sustainable standards, such as the Fairtrade or Rainforest
Alliance certification schemes.
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More than 70% of the coffee

we purchase for our proprietary (A
brands is from certified sources <>

People

Our colleagues are at the heart of our business success. We invest
inour people to enable them to reach their full potential, as well
asproviding themwith a positive, non-discriminatory and safe
working environment.

Employee engagement

We want our colleagues to be fully engaged with the business
strategy and objectives. We have aregular programme of briefings,
huddles, employee conferences and news updates via our enterprise
social netwark, SSP Connections. In addition, we encourage our
colleaguestoraise any issues and concerns they might have so that
we canaddress them and improve the colleague experience at SSP.
Inthe UK, forexample, we regularly run listening groups called"Your
Shout! which take place at a local level every month. Feedback is
escalatedtothe operations management and ultimately to our UK
Chief Operating Officer. Based on this feedback, we made anumber
of commitments, whichwe have been putting in place throughout the
past year, such as improvements to our TeamMember bonus scheme.

We have operatedaEuropean Work Council for several years.

This forumis for SSPto provide timely and meaningful information
and consultation to enhance the social dialogue with our European
colleagues. The forumaddresses transnational issues, which

may affect employment, working conditions and the interests of
itsemployees.

Insome countries, we survey our colleagues to monitor levels of
employee engagement. One example is SSP America, where we have
beenpleasedto see improvedresults year-on-year, and we have
used the feedback givenas part of the survey to focus our efforts
toimprove the workplace.

Learning and development

SSP'sstrategy continues to be to grow talent fromwithinthrough a
range of Learning & Development opportunities. Our global online
learning platform, the SSP Academy, continues to grow supporting the
development of our colleagues at all levels and enables us to deliver
corporate andhighrisk training content inall markets. This year our
plans included the expansion of the SSP Academy platforminthe

USA and India. Within the UK, we have moved all of our key induction
training online, giving new colleagues easy access to the training they
needto dotheirjob, andalso opportunities to broaden their knowledge
beyond the requiredbasics. We will be working with our local teams
ineachcountry to support themwith asimilar model over the year
ahead. Our global roll out of the SSP Academy will give us greater
visibility and more accurate reporting for highrisk and corporate
training requirements.

Apprenticeship qualifications formakey part of our learning and
development strategy, giving our teammembers the opportunity
todevelop their careers into junior managerial roles. We offer
apprenticeship qualifications in Sweden, Norway, Finland, Germany,
France and the UK More than 200 colleagues commencedan
apprenticeship this year.

Succession planning and career development has beena focus
inour AsiaPacificbusiness during the year to identify potential

high performers within departmentalheads and managers

across theregion. Eighty colleagues were invited to take part in
Occupational Personality Assessments, designed to gain a greater
understanding of their potential. Across the region, eight individuals

were highlighted as High Potential for promotion within the next
12-18 months. Following in-depth career discussions, Individual
Development Plans have been designed and these will be monitored
onaquarterly basis over the year ahead.

Additionally, many country HR teams have partnerships with local
organisations to offer career opportunities to people from deprived
communities. One example is SSP America's Phoenix locationwhich
has aparticularly strong relationship with St. Joseph the Worker, a
local charity working with people from deprived communities to give
them the resources necessary to gain and maintain employment.
One teammember, DAngelo Charles, hired as a result of this
partnership, was named F&B Team Member of the Year inthe FAB
Awards 2018. The awardrecognised DAngela's excellent work ethic
whichhad seen him promoted from TeamMember to Cashier, then
toaSupervisor and later an Assistant Manager.

t B
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SSP China supports ‘Going Places’
programme

SSP China has beenworking with the China Development Foundation (CDF’)
torunthe programme, Going Places 2018. The objective s tobroaden

the horizons of rural childrenin China by providing thema chance to visit
acity for the first time, helping to connect rural teenagers to the urban
worldand let themunderstand career opportunities they may not have
otherwise considered.

InMarch 2018, the partnership saw 20 young people fromrural China

take partinafourday educational visit to Shanghai Pudong airport and to
learn from SSP colleagues. During the week they gained insight into food
healthandsafety,andlearned about possible careersinthe food and travel
industry. They were also provided with some “technical” training such as
Elementary Baristatraining. On the second day, the childrenalsohad the
opportunity tovisita Science Museum and meet people fromdifferent
professions, e.g.food service, sales, HR and management. SSP Chinahas
beenworkingwith CDF for anumber of years nowand plans to host further
visits in 2019.

Anti-bribery and anti-corruption, and whistleblowing

SSPhas a Group-wide Anti-Bribery and Anti-Carruption Policy
tocomply withthe Bribery Act 2010 and it periodically reviews

its procedures (including due diligence on new partners) to ensure
continued effective compliance inits businesses around the world.

The Group's Whistleblowing Policy provides aframework to
encourage andgive all employees confidence to blow the whistle'
andreport irregularities. Employees are encouraged toraise
concerns with designated individuals, including the Executive
Directors or the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee monitors this policy and reviews annually the number
of mattersreportedand the outcome of any investigations.

The Audit Committee periodically reviews the Group's policies and
proceduresfor preventing and detecting fraud, its systems, controls
and policies for preventing bribery and for preventing the facilitation
of taxevasion, its code of corporate conduct and business ethics
andits policies for ensuring that the Group complies with relevant
regulatory andlegal requirements. The Audit Committee receives
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updates onbribery and fraud trends and activity inthe business,
if any, at least twice ayear, with individual updates being given
to the Audit Committee as needed.

Equal opportunities and diversity

Our Equality Policy outlines our expectation that all our employees
should be treated with respect and be able to work inan environment
inwhich they canrealise their potential, free of harassment and
discrimination inany form. We provide training and guidance toall our
colleagues toensure they understand and comply with this policy.
One of the ways inwhich we measure the success of thisapproach

is by monitoring the number of women in senior management

roles. Asat 30 June, whenwe collected data for the UK's Hampton-
Alexander Review, 14% of our Board of Directors and 25% of our
Group Exec members were female. Since then, we have appointed
CarolynBradley to our Board of Directors.

Employees by gender (J J
'I' Male w Female
Board of Directors 86% (6) 14% (1)
TTTreee® ™
Senior management 72%(100) 28% (39)
L
Allemployees 47%(17,708) 53%(19,841)

WM debi

Health and safety

We are committed to maintaining high standards of health and safety
for our employees and our customers at all times. Allemployees
complete training on health and safety, and we monitor performance
against key safety performance indicators.

Environment

Our Environmental Policy sets out our commitment to responsibly
manage the environmental impact of our business. We believe that
our commitment to good environmental management can contribute
to greater operational efficiency and therefore makes good business
sense. Our core objectives are to reduce the carbon footprint of our
business, through more efficient use of energy in our operations and
through the specification of more efficient equipment, and toreduce
food and packaging waste.

Reducing our carbon footprint

Our progress

One of the key ways inwhich we manage our carbon emissions
isthroughtight control of energy consumptionwithin our units,
specifically through the installation of BuildingManagement Systems
(BMS) and LED lighting. This year, SSP UK has beenrolling out a new
multi-brand efficiency specification for some of our larger sites.
Thiswastrialled at Euston Stationandis currently deliveringan

18% reductioninenergy consumption. Energy savings initiatives
have also beenrolled out across SSP UK's Burger King units and

are currently delivering energy reductions of 20%.

Inour German business, following the successful installation of LED
lighting and BMS in Spar Frankfurt, where over 30% savings were
secured, energy efficiency controls were rolled out to Spar units
inDresden, Berlin Spandauand Chemnitz, and subsequently toa
further 22 Spar sites.

Aspart of our capital projects investments, we are introducing new
equipment that saves onenergy and maintenance. We are trialling
newgrills, for example, whichuse 62% less energy, as well as being
easier to clean and operate.

Across the Group, we measure our progress in reducing our carbon
footprint through our greenhouse gas intensity ratio.

Global greenhouse gas emissions data

2018 2017
Tonnesof  Percentageof Tonnesof
COze carbonfootprint COze
Scope 1 emissions
Combustion of fueland
operation of facilities 13917 12% 8,300
Scope 2 emissions Electricity,
heat, steamand cooling
purchased forownuse 106,634 88% 95,971
Total 120,551 100% 104,271
Intensity measurement
Total emissions reported
above normalised grams per 47.00 45.55
£ of turnover grams/£ grams/£
Scope and methodology

We havereported onall of the emission sources required under the
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Reportand Directors'Report) Regulations
2013.These sources fall within the scope of our consolidated financial
statements. This data covers the continuing activities undertaken by our
retailing operations worldwide.

Themethodology applied to data gatheringand analysis is consistent

with the Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standard for Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions and the DEFRA Environmental
Reporting Guidelines, includingmandatory greenhouse gas emissions
reporting guidance.

Afulldocumentation of the methodology used, including collection of data
fromworldwide operations, exclusions of any non-material emission sources,
emissionfactors used and assumptions madeis available uponrequest.

Reducing our waste to landfill

Our progress

Targetedwaste reduction programmes are being implemented in our
UK business and many of our European operations with afocus on
reducing waste of sandwiches and pastries, as well as wine, beer and
fries.Reductions are being achieved through improved production
planning to ensure that our units'ranges are tailored to customer
demand. We have also introduced planograms which vary our ranges
by time of day, sothat croissants for example are not offered inthe
afternoonwhenthey are unlikely ta selland will be wasted. As aresult
of these initiatives, overall waste across SSP UK, France, Sweden,
Denmark, Finland, Norway, and Spain, has reduced 14% YoY. Inthe
year ahead, the waste controls programme will be rolled out to our
AsianandNorth American operations.

14% reduction in overall waste
tonnage in countries operating waste
controls programmes.
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All 32 SSP units at John F Kennedy
International Airport become
Certified Green Restaurants

Since 2017,SSP Americahas beenworking with Terminal 4 at John .
Kennedy International Airport and the Green Restaurant Association with
thegoal of achieving Level 1 Certified Green Restaurant® status at all dining
locations. Since then, SSP's units in the terminal have implemented a suite of
environmentalinitiatives to achieve certification. Theseinclude aNear-Zero
Waste programme with comprehensive recycling and composting, which can
divertup to 90% of waste from the landfill, installation of LED lightingand
eliminating the use of Styrofoam. In August 2018, Terminal 4 became the
firstairport terminalin the world to have all of its 32 restaurants, all of which
are operated by SSP, become Certified Green Restaurants.

CERTIFIED

“lam proud of the thirty-two Terminal 4 concession locations that have taken
environmental steps tobecome Certified Green Restaurants,” said Michael
Oshman, CEO and founder of the GreenRestaurant Association. “As the very
firstairport terminal to have 100% Certified Green Restaurant concessions,
Terminal 4 is paving the way for amore sustainable travelindustry."

InGermany, France and Norway, we are trialling the use of a third party
app called Too Good to Go, which lets consumers know when unsold
foodisavailable tobe purchasedat reduced prices. Customers come
inhalf anhour before closing and can take a'mystery'bag of food,
whichis going out of date that day. SSPNorway is currently seeing
700 products/month sold via the Too Good to Go app, equating to
2.1tonnes per annum of unsold food diverted from landfill.

Where food waste cannot be avoided, some of our units are
developing partnerships with local charities to donate unsold food.
SSPUK's M&S units have beenworking with an organisation called
Neighbourly, to build links with local charities who would benefit from
unsold food donations. Donations began in December 2017 with
some trials, andthere are currently 2Z8M&S sites taking part in the
scheme. The majority of items donated include chilled sandwiches
and food togo items, ready meals and fruit, vegetables and salads.
M&S Liverpool Lime Street, for example, has a partnership with the
Whitechapel Centre, the leadinghomeless and hausing charity for
the Liverpool region. During July and August 2018, our M&S unit was
able to donate the equivalent of 1,085 meals to the charity, which
would otherwise have gone to waste. We are working to build further
partnerships at other units during the coming year.

We regularly review our product packaging to look for opportunities
toreduceits environmentalimpact. One area of focus thisyear has
beenreducing single-use packaging. During 2018, the team at aur
Indian JV, TFS has workedto completely eliminate single-use plastic
acrossallIndian operations. Plastic plates, cutlery, cups and straws
have all beenreplaced with paper, aluminium or biodegradable
alternatives, making TFS the first retail business inIndiato go plastic-
free. SSPUKhas alsobeen introducing new initiatives tareduce
packaging waste. This includes areusable cup discount to encourage
customers tobring their own cup. We are also phasing out the use of
plastic straws and have set atarget for SSPUK's proprietary brands
tohave movedto paper straws by 2020.In addition, we arereplacing
plastic cutlery and stirrers withwood or bamboo alternatives and
replacing single-use carrier bags with Bags for Life.

Community

Our priorities

As anemployer of over 37,000 colleagues in 33 countries worldwide,
we are present inmany communities. Our Community Engagement
Policy sets out our aims to make the communities where we work
better placesto live and do business, and encourage our colleagues
tobe involved with local communities to their mutual benefit.

We focus many of our community engagement initiatives an
supporting the development of skills for young people and those
from deprivedbackgrounds, aswell as supporting charitable causes,

whichare important to our colleagues and partners
inaspecific location.

Our progress

InIndia, TFShas awell-established partnership with Child Rights

and You, an Indian non-profit organisation whichworks to deliver
sustainable change for over two million under-privileged children
acrossIndia. The charity partnership is promoted to customers
through collectionboxes at the till paint of TFSunits. Inthe last year,
fundsraisedby TFShave supportedaver 2,/00 childrenas part

of projects to prevent childhood malnutrition, get childreninto school,
prevent child labour and promote better healthcare for children.

Within our UK business, the SSP Foundationis aUK registered charity,
whichmakes grants to support employee nominated charities in

the communities where SSP operates, aswell as providing funding
for projectstopromote skills development for young people.

The SSPFoundationhas collection tins in SSP units across the UK.
During the year, the Foundationmade atotal of /1 grantswithatotal
value of £200,000 to arange of both local and national charities.
One beneficiary was a charity called Magic Breakfast, which provides
breakfast for childrenwho are on free school meals and who may
otherwise not get breakfast before they start their school day.

The Foundation grant will fund over 52,000 nutritious breakfasts
for 268 children and unlock over 200,000 hours of learning that
would have otherwise beenlost due to hunger.

During 2018, SSP America's community engagement programmes
provided support worth over US$130,000, to more than 80 charities
acrossNorth America. Charity partnersrange from children's
hospitals andhospices to charities supporting the homeless.

e —

SSP UK colleagues partner with Macmillan
Cancer Care as 2018 Charity of the Year

At the beginning of 2018, SSP UK colleagues were given the opportunity to
vote for their Charity of the Year, and they chose Macmillan Cancer Support.
Anetwork of charity champions was recruited to provide help to coordinate
activities, and teams across the business took on awide range of fundraising
activities, ranging from fancy dress days, baking cakes as part of the World's
Biggest Coffee Morning and undertaking awide range of sponsored and
sporting challenges. Colleague fundraisinghas been supported by the SSP
Foundation, whichmade aninitial grant of £100,000 to kick start colleague
fundraisingand also donated more than 33% of its collection tinincome
duringthe year.

Todate, including the SSP Foundationgrant, SSP UK colleagues are proud to
havebeenable to donate over £220,000 to supportMacmillan’s vital work.
Natasha Parker, Macmillan's Head of Corporate Partnerships, commented,
“We were delighted that SSP colleagues voted to support Macmillan during
2018 andhave been overwhelmedby the dedication of staff across the
organisation. This support enables us to continue to fund essential support
andservices for people with cancer and their families.”

O

Kate Swann
Chief Executive Officer

20November 2018



28 ‘ SSP Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Vagn Serensen
Chairman

()

Kate Swann
Chief Executive Officer

Jonathan Davies
Chief Financial Officer

John Barton

Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

000

Vagnjoined the SSP Board as
ChairmaninJune 2006. Vagn has
extensive experience in global
business and the airline and
transportation industries, with
over twenty years'experience
working within the travel sector.
Vagn brings strong management
and leadership experience to SSP.

Previous experience:

Vagnwas the President and Chief
Executive Officer of Austrian
Airlines Group from 2001 to
2006 and held various senior
commercial positions. He served
as Deputy Chief Executive Officer
with SAS Scandinavian Airlines
Systemfrom 1984 to 2001. Other
previousrolesinclude serving as
the Chairman of the Association
of European Airlines and of British
Midland Airways, as a Director of
Lufthansa Cargo, and as amember
of the Board of Governors of

the International Air Transport
Association. Vagnwas also the
Chairman of Scandic Hotels

Group AB.

External appointments:

Vagn is Chairman of Air Canada
and FLSmidth & Co.A/Sand a
board member of Royal Caribbean
Cruises Limited, VFS Global,
Braganza AS, Nordic Aviation
Capital A/S, TIA Technology A/S,
ZEBRAA/S,CPDyvig&CoA/S
and Unilode Aviation Solutions.

In addition, Vagnis a Senior
Advisor to Morgan Stanley in

the Nordicregionand a Senior
Industrial and Investment Advisor
to EQT Partners.

Qualifications:

Vagn has an MSc in Economics
and Business Administration
from Aarhus Business School
inDenmark.

Kate joined SSP as Chief Executive
Officerin September 2013.Kate
brings invaluable business and
operational leadership experience
tothe Board. She has awealth

of experience working in the

retail sector.

Previous experience:

Katebegan her retail career with
Tesco plc before working with
some of the UK's best-known
companies, including Homepride
Foods, Coca-Cola Schweppes
and Dixons Retail plc. She then
joined Homebase Group Limited
in 1997, ultimately servingin
therole of Managing Director,
and in 2000 was made Managing
Director of Argos. Kate joined
WH Smith plc as Chief Executive
Officerin 2003.1n 2012, she
received both The Daily Telegraph
award for Business Leader of the
Decade at the National Business
Awards, and the Institute for
Turnaround Chairman'’s Special
Award for exceptional and
extraordinary performance in the
transformation of WH Smith. Kate
alsoserved as aNon-Executive
Director of Babcock International
Groupplc.

External appointments:

Kate has beenaNon-Executive
Director of England Hockey since
2016 andis also aNon-Executive
Director of IVC Acquisitions Topco
Limited (Independent Vetcare).

Qualifications:

Kate graduated from the
University of Bradfordin
1986 withaBScinBusiness
Management and received an
Honorary Doctorate from the
university in 2007, where she
isnow Chancellor.

Jonathan has been the Chief
Financial Officer of SSP since
its formation within Compass
Groupin2004. Jonathan brings
extensive financial experience
to SSP and has spent over thirty
years working withinretailand
FMCG companies.

Previous experience:
Jonathanbegan his careerin
Unilever plc's management
development programme before
joining OC&C, the strategic
management consultancy, as a
startupin 1987 where he was
part of its rapid growth and
development to become aleading
international consulting firm. From
1995 to 2004 Jonathan worked
for Safeway plc, where he was
Finance Director onits Executive
Boardbetween 1999 and 2004.

External appointments:
Jonathanwas appointed as a
Non-Executive Director of Assura
plcinJune 2018.

Qualifications:

Jonathanholds adegreein
Chemistry from Oxford University
and an MBA from INSEAD
Business School, France.

Johnjoined the SSP Board as the
Senior Independent Director in
April 2014. John has extensive
boardand general management
experience, especially on advising
boards on executive remuneration
across arange of sectors.

Previous experience:

Johnserved as Chairman of Next
plc, Cable & Wireless Worldwide
plc, Brit Insurance Holdings plc,
Wellington Underwriting plc, and
Catlin Group Underwriting. He was
previously Senior Independent
Director of WH Smith plcand
Hammersonplc.

He was also the Chief Executive
of insurance broker JIB Group plc
from 1984 to 1997. After JIB's
merger with Lloyd Thomsonin
1997 he became Chairman of the
combined group, Jardine Lloyd
Thompson Group plc, until 2001.

External appointments:
Johnhasbeen Chairman of
easyletplcsince 2013 andis
aNon-Executive Director of
Matheson & Co., Limited and
Senior Independent Director
atLucecoplc.

Qualifications:

Johnis aqualified chartered
accountantandreceived an MBA
from Strathclyde University.

Board Committees

O Audit Committee

@ Remuneration Committee
@ Nomination Committee

* Chairman
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lan Dyson

Independent
Non-Executive Director

000

Per Utnegaard

Independent
Non-Executive Director

000

Denis Hennequin

Independent
Non-Executive Director

000

Carolyn Bradley

Independent
Non-Executive Director

000

lanjoined the SSP Board as

an Independent Non-Executive
Director in April 2014. lan brings
significant financial and business
experience to the Board.

Previous experience:

lan was formerly Chief Executive
Officer (and then Non-Executive
Director) of Punch Taverns plc,
Chief Executive Officer of Spirit
Pub Company plc, Group Finance
& Operations Director at Marks
& Spencer Group plcand Finance
Director of The Rank Group

plc. Prior to this he was Group
Financial Controller of Hilton
International Co. He joined Hilton
from Le Meridien, a division of
Forte Group plc, where he had
been Finance Director. lan has also
beenaNon-Executive Director
of Misys plc.

His early career was spent with

Arthur Andersenwhere he was

promoted to partner of the firm
in1994.

External appointments:

lanis Senior Independent Director
of Paddy Power Betfair plcand
ASOS plc, and aNon-Executive
Director of Intercontinental Hotels
Group plc.lanis also Chairman

of the Audit Committee of both
ASOS plcand Intercontinental
Hotels Group plc.

Qualifications:
lan qualified as a chartered
accountantinl986.

Perjoined the SSP Board as

an Independent Non-Executive
DirectorinJuly 2015.Per brings
considerable international

business experience to the Board.

Previous experience:

Per's previous roles include
Group Wholesale Directorand a
member of the Group Board at
Alliance UniChem plc, Senior Vice
President, Corporate Business
Development at Danzas Holding
Limited (a subsidiary of Deutsche
Post AG) and various senior
positions at TNT Post Group.

Perhas alsobeenthe Group
President and the CEQ of
Swissport International Ltd,
the Vice chairman of Swissport

International AG and the Chairman

of the Executive Board of
Bilfinger SE.

External appointments:
Since April 2017, Per has been

aNon-Executive Director of Xovis

AG.Hehasalsobeenaboard
member of the Swiss University
Sports Federation since

April 2016.

Qualifications:

Per graduated from Northern
Michigan University witha
Bachelor's degree in Business
Administration and Marketing.

Denis joined the SSP Board as
an Independent Non-Executive
DirectorinFebruary 2014.Denis
brings significant international
business and management
experience to the Board.

Previous experience:

Denis beganhis career at

The McDonald's Corporation,
becoming President of McDonald's
Europe in 2005.He has also
served as Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Accor S.A.,
the worldwide hotel group, as
aDirector of E-house Concept
Limited, and aNon-Executive
Director at Cojean Limited and
the John Lewis Partnership plc.

External appointments:

Denis hasbeenaNon-Executive
Director of Eurostar International
Limited since 201 2. His other
directorshipsinclude The Green
Jersey Limited, Bakkavor Holdings
Limited (formerly Bakkavor Group
Limited) and Bakkavor Group
plc.HeisalsoapartneratFrench
Food Capital.

Qualifications:

Denis graduated from the
University of Paris with a Masters
inLawand also aBachelor's degree
in Economic Sciences. Denisis also
aqualified accountant.

Carolynjoined the SSP Board as

an Independent Non-Executive
Directorin October 2018. Carolyn
has extensive experience in
marketing and, having worked
intheretail industry for over thirty
years, brings a strong consumer
focus. Carolynbrings significant
board andboard committee
advisory experience to the Board.

Previous experience:

Carolyn spentover twenty five
years at Tesco, holding anumber
of roles including Chief Operating
Officer for Tesco.com, Commercial
Director for Tesco Stores and
Tesco UK Marketing Director,
before being appointed Group
Brand Directorin 2012.

External appointments:
CarolynisaNon-Executive
Director of Legal and General
Group plc (stepping down with
effect from 31 December

2018), Majid Al Futtaim Retail
LLC, Marston's PLC (Senior
Independent Director),

The Mentoring Foundationand
B&M European Value Retail S.A.
Carolyn serves on the Audit,
Nomination and Remuneration
Committees of Marston's PLC and
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committees of Legal and General
Groupplc. She is atrustee and
Deputy Chairman of Cancer
Research UK and a member of

the Advisory Board of Cambridge
Judge Business School.

Qualifications:

Carolyn graduated from the
University of Cambridge with
anMA inEnglish Literature.
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UK Corporate Governance Code compliance

Responsibility for good governance lies with the Board. The Board is accountable to shareholders and is committed to the highest standards
of corporate governance as set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code published in April 2016 (the 'Code’). The Code canbe found onthe
Financial Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk. This Corporate Governance report, together with the Directors remunerationreport
set out onpages 39to 54, describes how the Board has applied the main principles of good governance set out in the Code during the year
under review. The Company also has an Audit Committee which functions as aninternal control and risk management system for the Company,
asmore fully set out on page 34.

Compliance statement

TheBoard considers that for the year ended 30 September 2018, the Company has complied with the relevant provisions set out in the Code
that are applicable to this reporting period.

How we govern the Company

Our governance structure comprises the Board and various committees (detailed below), supported by the Group's standards, policies and
controls, which are described in more detail in this report.

The Board

Composition
As at 30 September 2018, the Boardwas made up of sevenmembers, comprising the Chairman, two Executive Directors and four

Non-Executive Directors. As at the date of thisreport, there are five Non-Executive Directors following the appointment of Carolyn Bradley
tothe Board witheffect from 1 October 2018.

JohnBarton, lanDyson, Denis Hennequin, Per Utnegaard and Carolyn Bradley are considered by the Board to be independent of management
andfreeof any relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement. The Board considers that the
Non-Executive Directors bring theirown senior level of experience gained in their own fields. John Barton is the Cormpany's Senior Independent
Director. Asannouncedon 18 September 2018, Johnwill not stand for re-election and Carolyn Bradley will succeed John as the Company's Senior
Independent Director and Chair of the Remuneration Committee with effect fromthe end of the 2019 AGM. Therole of the Senior Independent
Directorincludes providing a soundingboard for the Chairmanand acting as an intermediary for the Non-Executive Directors, where necessary.

The Board considers that Carolynhas the appropriate experience, knowledge and independence for the Senior Independent Director role. The Board
also considersthat shehas the appropriate experience to Chair the Remuneration Committee, having served on the remuneration committees of
other plcboards formorethan 12 months prior toher date of appointment as Chair of the Company’s Remuneration Committee.

Biographical details of each of the Directors currently in office are shown on pages 28 and 29. The Company's policy relating to the terms of
appointment and the remuneration of both Executive and Non-Executive Directors is detailed in the Directars'Remuneration Report which
isonpages 39to 54

The Board meets regularly during the year, as well as onanadhoc basis, as required by business need. The Board met seven times between
1 October 2017/ and 30 September 2018 and attendance at these meetings is shown in the table on page 32.Each Director is also proposing
toattend the 2019 Annual General Meeting (the' 2019 AGM) to answer shareholder questions.

The Company also has anExecutive Committee, composed of the Executive Directars and senior management, which meets regularly to discuss
the business and strategy of the Group. The Sustainability report includes details of the number of women on the Executive Committee.

Responsibilities

The Board manages the business of the Company and may, subject to the Articles of Assaciation and applicable legislation, borrow money,
guarantee, indemnify, mortgage or charge the business, property and assets (present and future) and issue debentures and other securities
and give security, whether outright or as a collateral security, for any debt, liability or obligation of the Company or of any third party. The Board
has a formal schedule of matters reservedfor its decision and receives routine financial and operating reports, although its primary role is to
debate and direct the strategic development of the Group. In addition, the Board sets the Group's values and standards, and ensures that it
actsethically and that the Company's obligations to its shareholders are understood and met. The Board may delegate any of its powers
toany committee consisting of one or more Directors.

The Boardhas overall responsibility for the Group's systems of risk management and internal control and for reviewing the effectiveness
of such systems. The Audit Committee oversees the risk management process and oversees internal controls on the Board's behalf.
Details of the Group's systems of risk management and internal control (including financial controls, controls inrespect of the financial
reporting process and operational and compliance cantrols) canbe foundin the Strategic report on pages 17 to 18, and Audit Committee
reportonpages 35to 38.

The Board has established a pracedure for Directors, if deemed necessary, to take independent professional advice at the Company's
expense in the furtherance of their duties. EveryDirector also has access to the General Counseland Company Secretary, who is charged with
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that good corporate governance and compliance are implemented throughout the Group.
Togetherwith the Chief Executive Officer and the General Counsel and Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures that the Board is kept
properly informedand is consulted on all issues reservedto it. Board papers and other information are distributed at times to allow Directors
tobe properly briefedinadvance of meetings.

Theroles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and clearly defined in accordance with the division of responsibilities set out
inwriting and agreed by the Board.
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Director effectiveness and training

Inaccordance withbest practice, the Chairman addresses the developmental needs of the Board as awhole, with a view to further developing
its effectiveness as ateam, and ensures that each Director refreshes and updates his or her individual skills, knowledge and expertise. This is
supportedbyregular legal, compliance and governance updates to the Board by the General Counsel and Company Secretary.

Meetings between the Non-Executive Directors, both with and without the presence of the Chief Executive Officer, are scheduled inthe
Board's annual programme. Board meetings are also held at Group business locations to help all Board members gain a deeper understanding
of the business, and to provide senior managers from across the Group with the opportunity to present to the Board, as well as to meet the
Directorsonmore informal occasions.

Aformal, comprehensive and tailored induction is given to all Non-Executive Directors following their appointment, including visits to key
locations within the Group and meetings with members of the Executive Board and other key senior executives. The induction also covers
areview of the Group's governance policies, structures and business, including details of the risks (including environmental, social and
governance risks)and operating issues facing the Group. On joining the Board, Carolyn Bradley received an initial induction to ensure that she
understands the mainareas of business activity and the key risks and issues facing the Group. Carolyn's induction will continue over the coming
months withfurther site visits and meetings with the Board members and other key senior executives.

Succession planning is a matter for the whole Board, rather than for acommittee. The Company's Articles of Association provide that at
every Annual General Meeting (AGM), each Director shallretire and seek re-election. New Directors may be appointed by the Board, but are
subject to election by shareholders at the first AGM after their appointment. The Articles of Association limit the number of Directors tonot
less than two, save where shareholders decide otherwise. Non-Executive Directors are normally appointed for an initial term of three years
whichisreviewed and may be extended for a further three years. The Board may then invite Non-Executive Directors to serve for afurther
additional period.

The Chairman ensures that the Board maintains an appropriate dialogue with shareholders and further details of the shareholder engagement
programme are set out onpages 34 and 39.

Board effectiveness

Eachyear the performance of the Board, its committees and the individual directors is evaluated and, as required by the Code, at least every
thirdyear anexternal evaluationisundertaken. The next external evaluation will take place in 2020. The 2018 internal evaluation was carried
out by way of a questionnaire whichwas facilitated by the General Counsel and Company Secretary. A summary of the results, together with
anonymised comments, was collated into a comprehensive report which the General Counseland Company Secretary presented to the Board
for considerationat its September 2018 Board meeting. The discussion of the performance of each of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer was also under taken by the Non-Executive Directors (without the Chairman being present for the Chairman's evaluation and without
the Chief Executive Officer being present for the Chief Executive Officer's evaluation) as part of the September 2018 Board meeting,

The matters considered in the board evaluation included (i) the size and composition of Board, (ii) the skills and experience of each of the
Directors, (iii) the contribution of the Directors, (iv) shareholder and wider stakeholder engagement and (v) the performance of the committees.
The conclusion of the evaluation was that there are no major areas for action.

Following the evaluation of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, the Non-Executive Directors continue ta consider that each of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is effective. The Non-Executive Directors consider that the Chairman continues to provide effective
leadership of the Board and to exert the required levels of governance and control, and that the Chief Executive Officer continues to provide
effective management of the business. To this extent, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer both continue to have the full support

of the Non-Executive Directors. The Non-Executive Directors will continue to review the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
intheyear ahead.

Further, the Chairman considers that (i) each Director is effective, demonstrates commitment to his or her respective role and has sufficient
time to meet his or her commitment to the Company and (ii) both the Board and its committees continue to provide effective leadership and
exert therequired levels of governance and control. The Board will continue toreview its procedures, effectiveness and development in the
year ahead.

Shareholder feedback

At the 2018 Annual General Meeting (the 2018 AGM') the Company received a vote of more than 20% against (i) the resolution to approve
the Company's remuneration policy and (i) the resolution to re-elect the Chairman, Vagn Serensen. The Board recognised the concerns which
had been expressed regarding the number of Mr Serensen’s external board appointments. Mr Serensen subsequently stood down from

his position as Chairman and Non-Executive Director of Scandic Hotels Group AB with effect from 26 April 2018. The Board and the senior
management teambelieve that Mr Serensen’s knowledge of the business and extensive experience brings many benefits to the Group and
that his time commitment, availability and attention to his role as Chairman has been full and complete, and has not been adversely impacted
by his other Board appointments. The Board is satisfied that Mr Serensen has sufficient capacity to meet his commitments to the Group, but
will continue tokeep the matter under review. The Board consulted with anumber of shareholders to discuss the issuesraised at the time

of the 2018 AGM and will continue to engage with shareholders on this matter. See page 39 for details of the Company's consultation with
shareholders on the remuneration policy.

Conflicts of interest

As part of their ongoing development, the Chief Executive Officer may seek two, and the Chief Financial Officer may seek one, external
non-executive role(s) onanon-competitor board, for which they may retainremunerationinrespect of the appointment. Inorder to avoid any
conflict of interest, allappointments are subject to the Board's approval and the Board monitors the extent of Directors' other interests to
ensure that its effectiveness is not compromised.
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EachDirector has aduty under the Companies Act 2006 to avoid a situation inwhich he or she has, or could have, adirect or indirect interest
that conflicts or possibly may conflict with the interests of the Company. This duty is in addition to the obligation that he or she owes to the
Company to disclose to the Boardhis or her interest in any transaction or arrangement under consideration by the Company. The Company's
Articles of Assaciation authorise the Directors to approve such situations and to include other provisions to allow conflicts of interest to

be dealt with. The Board follows an established procedure when deciding whether to authorise an actual or potential conflict of interest.
Onlyindependent Directors (i.e. those who have no interest in the matter under consideration) will be able to take the relevant decision, and
intaking the decision the Directors must act in good faith and inaway they consider will be most likely to promote the Company's success.
Furthermore, the Directors may, if appropriate, impose limits or conditions when granting authorisation.

Any authorities arereviewed at least every 12 months. The Board considered and authorised each Director's reported actual and potential
conflicts of interest at its September 2018 Board meeting,

Committees of the Board

TheBoardhas established anumber of committees to assist in the discharge of its duties, and the formal Terms of Reference for the principal
committees, approved by the Board and complying with the Code, are available fromthe General Counsel and Company Secretary andalso on
the Company's website. The Terms of Reference are reviewed annually and updated where necessary. Membership and details of the principal
committees are shown onpages 32 to 34. The General Counsel and Company Secretary acts as Secretary to all Board committees.

Meeting attendance

The following table shows the attendance of Directors at meetings of the Board, Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees in the year
ended 30 September 2018:

Name Board Audit Committee Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee
JohnBarton 70f7 3of3 50f5 70f7
JonathanDavies 70f7 - - -
lan Dyson 70f7 3of3 40of5 70f7
Denis Hennequin 70f7 3of3 50f5 70of7
Vagn Serensen 70f7 - 50f5 -
Kate Swann 70f7 - - -
PerUtnegaard 70f7 3of3 20f 2* 70f7

* Per Utnegaard was appointed to the Nomination Committee on 1 July 2018. There were two Nomination Committee meetings held between the date of
Per's appointment and the yearend.

The table shows the number of meetings attended out of the number of meetings that each Director was eligible to attend. Directors who are
not members of individual Board committees have also been invited to attend one or more meetings of those committees during the year.

Nomination Committee

The following sections constitute the Directors'Nomination Committee report.

Key responsibilities

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board and its committees and makes recommendations with
regard toany changes considered necessary in the identification and nomination of new Directors, the reappointment of existing Directors
and the appointment of members to the Board's committees. It also assesses the roles of the existing Directors in office to ensure that there
continues tobe abalanced Board in terms of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity. The Nomination Committee reviews the senior
leadership needs of the Group to enable it to compete effectively inthe marketplace. The Nomination Committee also advises the Boardan

succession planning for Executive Director appointments, although the Board itself isresponsible for succession generally. In addition, the
Nomination Committee advises the Board on significant developments in the law and practice of corporate governance.

The Nomination Committee's key objective is to ensure that the Board comprises individuals with the necessary skills, knowledge and
experience toensurethat it is effective indischarging its responsibilities.

Asnotedin the Sustainability report onpages 24 to 2/, the Group is committed to equal opportunities and non-discrimination throughout the
business, whichincludes its approachto its Board members. Diversity and inclusion are key areas for the Board. Our Equality Policy outlines
our expectation that all our employees should be treated with respect and be able to work inan environment inwhich they canrealise their
potential, free of harassment and discrimination inany form, regardless of their gender, race, religion, disability, age or sexual orientation.

We provide training and guidance to our colleagues to ensure they understand and comply with this policy. All decisions relating to employment
practices willbe objective, free frombias and based solely upon work criteria and individual merit. One of the ways in which we measure the
success of our approach to diversity and inclusion is by monitoring the number of women in senior management roles. As at 30 June 2018,
whenwe collected datafor the UK's Hampton Alexander Review, 14% of our Board of Directors and 25% of our Group Executive members
were female. As noted on page 26, we now have 28% of senior management roles filled by women. Inaddition, we also seek to support minority
groups within our business, for example through SSP America's partnership with www.diversityjobs.com.

The Group believes that diversity, including gender and race diversity, but also diversity of experience and backgrounds, is important not only
inthe business generally, but also withrespect to each Board member. In order to help ensure the Board has the appropriate balance of skills
and attributes requiredfor effective decision making and strategy, Board appointments are made purely on merit - regardless of a person's
gender, age, disability, race, religion or sexual orientation. The Company (and therefore the Nomination Committee) does not therefore have set
targets for the composition of the Board, so that all employees have an equal chance of progressing their careers within the Company and so
that the most appropriate people are appointed to the Board.
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Membership as at 30 September 2018
Chairman: JohnBarton
Members: lan Dyson, Denis Hennequin, Vagn Serensen and Per Utnegaard (with effect from 1 July 2018).

Changes: CarolynBradley became a member from 1 October 2018 and Vagn Serensen will succeed John Barton as Chairman of the Committee
witheffect fromthe endof the 2019 AGM.

Meetings held inthe 2018 financial year: Five

Activities of the Nomination Committee
Matters the Nomination Committee considered during the year include:

* assessing the composition of the Board and its committees;
* succession planning for both Executive and Non-Executive Directors and executive talent review, and management;
* extensionof PerUtnegaard's Letter of Appointment and term of membership of the Remunerationand Audit Committees;

* appointment of Carolyn Bradley as an Independent Non-Executive Director and replacement of John Barton as Senior Independent Director,
and

* carryingout the annualreview of its Terms of Reference.

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee will attend the 2019 AGM to respond to any shareholder questions that might be raised on the
Nomination Committee’s activities.

Board appointment process

The Company adopts a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors and senior executives with due
regard ta diversity and gender. Prior to making an appointment, the Nomination Committee will evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge,
independence, experience and diversity on the Boardand, in the light of this evaluation, will prepare a description of the role and capabilities
required, with a view to appointing the best-placed individual for therole.

Inidentifying suitable candidates, the Nomination Committee:

* usesopenadvertising or the services of external advisers to facilitate the search;
* considers candidates from different genders and a wide range of backgrounds; and

» considers candidates onmerit and against objective criteria, ensuring that appointees have sufficient time to devote to the position,
inlight of other significant commitments.

The Committee approached Spencer Stuart to assist with the search to identify a suitable candidate to be aNon-Executive Director and
member of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees. The Committee prepared detailed role specifications including the
expectedtime commitment and duties ta be performed, following a review of the required skills, knowledge, experience and diversity to
enhance the composition of the Board. The Chairman of the Committee submitted a short-list of candidates to the other members of the
Nomination Committee and the CEO. The Committee Chairman, John Barton and the CEQ met the short-listed candidates, and following
this, Carolyn Bradley met with Vagn Serensen andlan Dyson. Following a thorough process, the Committee recommended that Carolyn
Bradley be appointed to the Board and be appointed as Senior Independent Director from the end of the 2019 AGM. The Board accepted
the recommendations and accordingly, Carolynwas duly appointed as aNon-Executive Director and member of the Audit, Nominationand
Remuneration Committees, with effect from 1 October 2018.

Inthe year ahead, the Nomination Committee will continue to assess the Board's composition and how it may be enhanced. The Committee
will consider diversity (gender and experience) and geographic representation, and will use independent consultants as appropriate to ensure
abroadsearchfor suitable candidates.

Remuneration Committee
Key responsibilities

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations on remuneration policy for the Chairman, Executive Directors
and Senior Management.

Membership as at 30 September 2018

Chairman: JohnBarton
Membership:lanDyson, Denis Hennequin and Per Utnegaard.

Changes: Carolyn Bradley became amember from 1 October 2018, and will succeed John Barton as Chairman of the Committee with effect
fromthe end of the 2019 AGM.

Meetings held inthe 2018 financial year: Seven

The Directors'remunerationreport is set out on pages 41 to 54, and includes details of the Remuneration Committee's activities during the
year and the Company's policy onremuneration. The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee will attend the 2019 AGM torespand to any
shareholder questions that might be raised on the Remuneration Committee's activities.
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Audit Committee

Key responsibilities

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board with the discharge of its responsibilities inrelation to financial reporting, including
reviewing the Group's half-year and annual financial statements and accounting policies, internal and external audits and controls, reviewing
and monitoring the scope of the annual audit, the independence of the external auditors and the extent of the non-audit work undertaken by

external auditars, advising onthe appointment of external auditors and reviewing the effectiveness of the internal audit, internal contraols,
whistleblowing and fraud systems in place within the Group.

Membership as at 30 September 2018

Chairman:lanDyson
Membership: John Barton, Denis Hennequin and Per Utnegaard.

Changes: Carolyn Bradley became amember from 1 October 2018, and John Barton will cease to be amember with effect fromthe end
of the 2019 AGM.

Meetings held inthe 2018 financial year: Three

The Audit Committee'sreport is set out onpages 35 to 38 and includes details of the Audit Committee’s responsibilities and activities during
theyear. The Chairman of the Audit Committee will attend the 2019 AGM to respond to any shareholder questions that might be raised
onthe Audit Committee's activities.

Other Committees

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is not aBoard committee, but is the key management committee for the Group and is made up of the Executive
Directors and Senior Management.

The Executive Committee meetsregularly and isresponsible for developing the Group's strategy, capital expenditure and investment budgets,
andreporting onthose areas to the Board for approval; implementing Group policy, monitoring financial, operational and quality of customer
service performance, health and safety, purchasing and supply chainissues, succession planning, and day-to-day management of the Group.

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee is responsible for risk management. It is not a Board committee and is made up of the Chief Financial Officer, Senior
Management and representatives from Deloitte, the Group's internal auditor. It meets quarterly and reports to the Audit Committee.
Further details of the Risk Committee are set out inthe Strategic report onpages 1/ and 18.

Disclosure Committee

The Disclosure Committee is responsible for ensuring compliance with the Company's disclosure obligations under the Market Abuse
Regulation. It is not aBoard committee and is made up of the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary.
It meetsonanadhocbasisandreports to the Board.

Communicating with shareholders

The Company places considerable importance on communication with its shareholders, including its private shareholders. The Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer are closely involved ininvestar relations supported by the Group's investor relations function, which has

primary responsibility for day-to-day communication with investors. The views of the Company’s major shareholders are reportedto the Board
by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, as well as by the Chairman, and are discussed at its meetings.

The Boardrecognises the importance of promoting mutual understanding between the Company and its shareholders through a programme
of engagement. This includes the maintenance of aregular dialogue between the Board (including the Chairman) and Senior Management,
and major shareholders. As part of this dialogue, the Executive Directors and the Investor Relations Director regularly meet with institutional
investors to make presentations on the Company's results. The AGM provides an opportunity for all shareholders to meet the Board, and
shareholders are encouragedto attend and toraise any questions at the meeting or in advance of the 2019 AGM (using the email address
showninthe Notice of AGM).

The primary method of communication with shareholders is by electronic means, helping to make the Company more environmentally friendly
by reducing waste and pollution associated with the printing and posting of its annual report. The SSP Group Annual Report and Accounts
2018isavailable toall shareholders and can be accessedvia the Company's website at www.foodtravelexperts.com. The Group's annual and
interimresults announcements are also published on the Company's website, together with other announcements and documents issued
tothemarket, suchas trading updates and presentations. The website also provides shareholders and the wider stakeholder community
withanarchive of information onthe Company, including governance details, policies and up-to-date share price information. Enquiries from
shareholders may also be addressed to the Group's investor relations function through the contacts provided onthe Group's website.

The Notice of AGM s circulated to shareholders at least 20 working days prior to the AGM, and it is company policy not to combine resolutions
tobe proposed at general meetings insofar as they relate ta separate issues. All shareholders are invited to the Company's AGM, at which
theyhave the opportunity to put questionsto the Board, and it is standard practice to have the Chairmen of the Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees available to answer questions. The results of proxy voting for and against each resolution, as well as abstentions,
are announced to the London Stock Exchange and are published on the Company's website shortly after the AGM.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder
Onbehalf of the Audit Committee (the' Committee’), |am pleased to present its report for the year ended 30 September 2018

Throughout the year, our focus has been on monitoring the integrity of the Group's financial reporting, internal control and risk management
systems; reviewing the effectiveness of key internal and external audit programmes; maintaining processes to oversee business conduct
and ethics, including anti-bribery and anti-corruption, as well as whistleblowing arrangements; and ensuring that the Group's processes

and controls prevent the facilitation of tax evasion. This year we have cavered other important areas, such as reviewing the impact of new
accounting standards, acquisition accounting and the Group's viability and going concern statements.

The Committee seeks to balance independent oversight of matters withinits remit, with providing support and guidance to management. | am
confident that the Committee, supparted by members of senior management as well as the internal and external auditors, has carried out its
duties effectively and to ahigh standard during the year.

Composition and meetings

The Committee held three meetings during the year and comprises myself and three other independent Non-Executive Directors namely, John
Barton, Denis Hennequin and Per Utnegaard (with Carolyn Bradley being appointed with effect from 1 October 2018). Attendance at these
meetings is shownonpage 32. As Chairman, [have recent and relevant financial experience through my past roles as a Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer of publicly quoted companies. The expertise and experience of the members of the Committee is summarised on
pages 28and 29. The Company Secretary, Helen Byrne acts as Secretary to the Committee.

At the Committee’s request, the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Financial Officer and senior members of the SSP Group finance and business
controls departments attend meetings of the Committee, together with senior representatives fromthe internal and external auditors.

The Committee holds private sessions with the internal and external auditors without management being present. I regularly keep intouch with
the Group Chief Executive Officer, the Group Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary. | also meet privately with boththe internal and
external auditars and provide regular updates to the Board on the key issues discussed at the Committee’'s meetings.

The Committee receives independent assurance fromthe Group's internal audit function, which is outsourcedto Deloitte, and alsoreceives
updatesfromthe external auditors across awide range of issues. The Committee is further supported by the Risk Committee which meets
quarterly, and s chaired by the Group CFO.

The terms of reference of the Committee can be found at www.foodtravelexperts.com.

Overview of the year
During the year, the Audit Committee has:

* reviewedthe Group's risk assessment, with particular focus onthe risks which were deemedto have increased, either in likelihood or impact,
along with the supporting action plans to mitigate therisks. In 2018, areas of particular focus included the impact of Brexit, especially inthe
UK market, cyber security and compliance with various legislations (e.g. GDPR, Criminal Finances Act, Modern Slavery Act and Bribery Act);

« reviewedandevaluatedthe Group's internal financial control and risk management systems, whistleblowing arrangements and other audit
andrisk-related arrangements to assist the Board infulfilling its responsibilities relating to the effectiveness of those systems. It also
reviewed anumber of detailedreports on the internal controls, including the Control Self-Assessment results, which form a broad ranging
set of processes across the countries and business units;

* agreedthe scope of boththe external and internal annual audit programmes, reviewed the outputs and monitored the effectiveness
of the internal and external audit process;

* reviewedand monitored the external auditor's independence and objectivity, and approved the policy on engagement with the external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

* oversaw the relationship with the external auditor and made recommendations to the Board inrelation to reappointment, remuneration
and terms of engagement;

+ monitared theintegrity of the Group's financial statements and continued ta challenge the assumptions and judgements made by management
indetermining the financial results of the Group, including ensuring that the disclosures in the financial statements were appropriate;

* oversawthe process for determining whether the Annual Report and Accounts presented afair, balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's pasition and performance, business model and strategy; and

* evaluatedand approved the going concern assumption andlonger-term viability statements, especially taking into account the guidance
issuedby The Investment Association and the Financial Reporting Council (FRC).
Inaddition to the above, the Committee reviewed the following matters during the year.

* accountingimpact andimplementation plan for IFRS 16;

* impact of other new accounting standards (IFRS 9 and IFRS 15);
+ compliance with the Group's fixed asset palicy; and

* update ontaxmatters, including the Group's tax strategy.

Afuller description of the operation of the Committee during the year is set out inthis report. lwill be available at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting (AGM)to answer any questions from shareholders about the work of the Committee.
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Risk management and internal control

The Boardhas overallresponsibility for risk management and the system of internal control, and for reviewing their effectiveness, whichis
overseen by the Committee onthe Board's behalf. The system of internal controlis designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has established a clear organisational structure with defined autharity levels. The day-to-day running of the Group's business is
delegated to the Executive Directors of the Group. The Executive Directors meet with both operational and financial management on a weekly
and monthly basis. Key financial and operational measures are reported on a weekly and monthly basis, and are measured against both budget
andreforecasts inthese meetings.

The Group maintains Group and regional/country level risk registers which outline the key risks faced by the Group including their impacts
andlikelihood, along with relevant mitigating controls and actions. Onan annual basis, regional and country management teams are required
toupdatetheir local risk registers andrisk maps to ensure that the key strategic, operational and financial risks in each location are captured
and prioritised according to likelihood and impact, and to identify the risk management activities for eachrisk. The regional and country
riskregisters are used in conjunction with input from the Executive Committee, to update the Group risk register. The Risk Committee and
Executive Committee review the assessment of risks, as well as current and future mitigation activities at both the Group and regional/country
levels. The Committee reviewed this process and a summary of therisk registers during the year.

Following this process, asummary of the principal risks and uncertainties which are currently judged to have the most significant impact
onthe Group's long-termperformance are set out onpages 19to 22.

The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's financial and other internal control systems through the annual Control Self-
Assessment process, as well as the reports of the internal and external auditors during the year.

Internal audit

Deloitte acts as internal auditor to the Group, and the partner responsible reports directly to the Audit Committee, inadditionto being
apermanent member of the Risk Committee. Internal audit plays animportant role in assessing the effectiveness of internal controls through
aprogramme of reviews based on a continuing assessment of business risks across the Group.

Internal audit is inregular dialogue with the regional Chief Financial Officers and the Group Chief Financial Officer, to discuss the output from
the assurance work and acquire an update on the business risks across the Group. Where control deficiencies are noted through the assurance
work performed, Deloitte will performfollow-up reviews and visits.

The Committee meets regularly with Deloitte toreview and progress the Group's internal audit plan. The relevant audit planand procedures
are aimed at addressing risk management objectives and providing coverage of therisks identified in the regional and country risk registers.
The internal audit plans have been prepared in accordance with standards promoted by the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors.

The Committee continues tomonitor the effectiveness of internal audit plans in accordance with the Group's ongoing requirements.

The Committee considered the output from the 2018 annual internal audit programme of assurance work, reviewed management's responses
tothemattersraisedand ensuredthat any action was timely and commensurate with its level of risk, whether real or perceived.

There were no significant weaknesses identified in the year that would materially impact the Group as awhole, but anumber of
recommendations were acted upanwithin the Group to strengthen controls or develop action plans to mitigate risk. The Committee remains
satisfied that the Group's system of internal controls works well.

The Committee determines the adequacy of the performance of the internal audit process through the quality and depth of findings and
recommendations. During 2018, the Committee also carried out a formal assessment of the internal audit process, using questionnaires
completed by senior finance personnelboth at Group and in country, along with key members of the business controls, legal and tax
departments. The survey covered areas such as organisation, purpose and remit, process management, quality of the team, knowledge and
expertise, and communication of results and recommendations. The survey indicated an overall satisfaction with the internal audit process,
including Deloitte’s interactions with the local teams as well as their understanding of the business and the issues it faces. The Committee
discussedtheresults of the survey with Deloitte and was satisfied with the internal audit process, including Deloitte's responses to the points
raisedinthe survey. The results and feedback from the survey were incorporated into the next year's internal audit plan.
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External audit

The effectiveness and independence of KPMG LLP (KPMG), the Group's external auditor is key to ensuring the integrity of the Group's published
financial information. Prior to commencement of the audit, the Committee reviewed and approved the audit plan to gauge whether it was
appropriately focused. KPMG presented to the Committee its proposed plan of work, which was designed to ensure there are nomaterial
misstatements inthe financial statements. The Committee considered the accounting, financial control and audit issues reported by the
external auditor that flowed fromtheir audit work.

During the 2018 financial year, the Committee carried out an assessment of the external audit process, including KPMGs role in that
process. Thiswas supported by the results of discussions withindividual Committee members and questionnaires completed by senior
finance personnel bath at Group and in country, along with key members of the legal and tax departments. The survey covered areas such as
communication, the audit approach and scope, the calibre of the audit teams, technical expertise, and independence. The survey indicated
overall satisfaction with the services provided by KPMG and the Committee was satisfied with KPMG's responses to the points raised in the
survey. Theresults and feedback from the survey were incorporatedin the next year's external audit plan.

In 2015, the Group tendered its external audit appointment and as aresult, KPMG was reappointed as external auditor. Under the UK
Corporate Governance Cade, the Group is required to put its external audit process out to tender again in 2025. The Committee confirms
itisincompliance with the provisions of the Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market Investigation Order 2014.

Auditor independence and non-audit services policy

The Committee has adoptedaformal policy governing the engagement of the external auditor to provide non-audit services, taking into
account therelevant ethical guidance onthe matter. This policy is reviewed annually by the Committee, which describes the circumstances
inwhich the auditor may be engaged to undertake non-audit work for the Group. The Committee oversees compliance with the policy, and
considers and approves requests to use the auditor for non-audit work.

Recognising that the auditor is best placed to undertake certainwork of anon-audit nature, the engagements for non-audit services that are
not prohibited are subject to formalreview by the Committee based on the level of fees involved, withreference to the /0% cap that applies.
Non-audit services that are pre-approved are either routine in nature with a fee that is not significant in the context of the audit, or are audit-
related services.

Details of fees payable to the external auditor are set out innote 5 on page /8.1n 2018, non-audit fees represented approximately 20% of the
audit fee. KPMG has provided tax compliance services to certain Group companies in 2018 and the non-audit fees in 2018 included £0.1m of
taxcompliance fees, where local regulations require them ta be performedby the local auditor. In 2017, SSP transitioned all other areas of tax
work to other advisors.

The external auditor reported to the Committee onits independence from the Group and confirmed it had complied with the independence
requirements as set out by the APB Ethical Standards for Reporting Accountants. The Committee is satisfied that KPMG has adequate policies
and safeguards in place to ensure that auditor objectivity and independence are maintained.

Financial reporting
As part of our work to ensure the integrity of financial reporting, the Committee focused onthe following areas during the year:

* Goodwillandintangible assets

The Group has a significant goodwill balance, mainly representing the consideration paid in excess of the fair value of the identified net
assetsacquired inrelationto the 2006 acquisition of the SSPbusiness by EQT Partners, through the purchase of various Compass Group plc
subsidiaries, by various subsidiaries of SSP Group plc. The net assets acquired included intangible assets relating to the Group's own brands,
andfranchiserights inrespect of third party brands that were identified and valued at the date of acquisition. The goodwill and intangible
assetsbalance alsoincludes amounts recognised on acquisitions during the current and previous financial years.

The Committee recognises that there is arisk that an asset canbecome impaired, for example due to changes inmarket conditions. As a
result, the Group monitors the carrying values of goodwill and intangible assets to ensure that they are recoverable and any specific
indicators of impairment are discussed by the Executive Directors withboth operational and financial management at Group and in country.

The carrying value of goodwill is subject toimpairment testing, at least onan annual basis. The carrying values of goodwill and
intangible assets arereviewedfor the identification of a possible indicator of impairment, to ensure that the carrying values are
recoverable. Thistesting, including the key assumptions and sensitivity analysis, is reviewed by the Chief Financial Officer and the Group
Financial Controller.

After reviewing reports frommanagement and consulting, where necessary, with the external auditor, the Committee is satisfied that the
financial statements appropriately address the critical judgements and key estimates, both inrespect of the amounts reported and the
disclosures provided. The Committee agrees withmanagement that no impairment needs to be recognised.
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» Taxation

The Group operates, andis subject to income taxes, inanumber of jurisdictions.Management is required to make judgements and estimates
indetermining the provisions for income taxes and the amount of deferred taxassets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Committee recognises that management judgement is required in determining the amount and timing of recognition of taxbenefits
andanassessment of the requirement to make provisions against the recognition of such benefits.

The Committee reviewed the Group's tax strategy and received reports and presentations from the Head of Tax, highlighting the principal
taxrisks that the Group faces, the tax strategy and the judgements underpinning the provisions for potential tax liabilities. The Committee
alsoreviewed the resuilts of the external auditor's assessment of provisions for income taxes and deferred taxassets and liabilities, and
having done sowas satisfied with the key judgements made by management.

* Viability statement
The Committee agreedthe parameters and the supporting analysis for the viability statement as presented on page 23 of the
Strategicreport.

* Alternative performance measures

Inaddition to IFRSbased performance measures, the Directors also use alternative performance measures (APMs) to provide additional
useful information on the underlying trends, performance and position of the Group (see page 16). These measures are not defined nor
specifiedunder IFRS andtherefore are not intended to be a substitute for the same.

The Audit Committee noted the guidance issued by the FRC inrelation to the use of APMs and considered whether the performance
measures used provided meaningfulinsights for shareholders into the Group's results. The Committee also reviewed the treatment of items
considered for separate disclosure in the Annual Report and Accounts, ahead of their approval by the Board. The Committee also continued
to support the judgements made by the management regarding those items considered as exceptional and requiring separate disclosure.

The Committee concluded that clear and meaningful descriptions had been provided for the APMs used and that the relationship between
these measures and the statutory IFRS based measures was clearly explained. It was also concluded that the Committee supported the
considered understanding of the financial statements, and that the APMs had been accorded equal prominence with measures that are
definedby, or specified under, IFRS.

» Fair,balanced and understandable financial statements

Anintrinsic requirement of a Group's financial statements is for the Annual Report and Accounts to be fair, balanced and understandable.
The coordination andreview of the Group-wide input into the annual report is a sizeable exercise performed within an exacting timeframe,
whichruns alongside the formal audit process undertaken by the external auditor.

The process to ensure that the Committee, and then the Board, are satisfied with the overall fairness, balance and clarity of the document
hasbeenunderpinnedby:

* puidanceissuedtocontributors at anoperational level;
* averification process dealing with the factual content of the reports; and
» acomprehensive review by the Directors and the senior management team.

Mhpoe

lan Dyson
Chairman, Audit Committee

20November 2018
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STATEMENT BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholder

|amdelighted to present our Directors'remuneration report for the financial year ended 30 September 2018, which comprises this statement,
the Annualreport onremuneration onpages 41 to 4/ and the Directors' remuneration policy on pages 48 to 54.

Our current remuneration policy was approved by shareholders at our 2018 AGM. The current remuneration policy is simple and clearly aligns
remuneration outcomes to shareholder's interests, with the significant majority of remuneration linked to performance.

TheRemuneration Committee (the' Committee’) has operated in accordance with that policy during the 2018 financial year. The Palicy is set
outonpages 48to54.

Key decisions and pay outcomes for the year ended 30 September 2018

Following areview during the year, our Executive Directors'base salaries were increased by 2 0% effective 1 June 2018, in line with the average
salary increases awardedto UK employees who are paid onamonthly basis. The current base salaries are £811,824 per annum for Kate Swann
andf£432.9/3 per annum for Jonathan Davies.

In 2018, the Group delivered another year with excellent sales and profit growth. Organic like-for-like sales were 2.8%, and the year also saw
net contract gains of 5.1%, withvery strong performance inNorth America (18.9%) and inthe Rest of the World (/0%). The Group's strategic
initiatives continued to drive marginimprovement across all cost lines and coupled with the sales growth resulted in Group operating profit
increasing 22./% year-on-year and exceeding the budget target by 13.7/%. As at 30 September 2018, the TSR for the Group stood at 142%
since 1 October 2015 compared to the top quartile peer group performance of 48%. Further informationregarding the Group's performance
canbefoundinthe Strategic report onpages 1 to 27/

Inview of this performance, the Committee awarded an annual bonus of 200% of salary to Kate Swannand 106% of salary to Jonathan
Davies. Further details of performance achieved and the bonus targets set are shown on page 42. Indetermining these reward outcomes,
the Boardalso consideredthe performance on sustainability as described in the Sustainability report. The Sustainability report explains the
environmental, social and governance context within which these results were delivered.

For the Company's Performance Share Plan and the PSP awards made inNovember 2015 (with a vesting date of November 2018), both the
EPSand TSR performance conditions have been met in full as the Company exceeded the maximumrelative TSR and EPS growth targets for
the performance period. Full details are provided on page 42. The value of these awards as at 30 September 2018 are included in the single
total figure of remuneration table onpage 41.

Remuneration arrangements for the year ending 30 September 2019

The Committee intends to continue to apply the remuneration policy approved at the 2018 AGM during the year ending 30 September 2019.
Within the Policy we intend to make some changes to the operation of our incentives inresponse to the feedback that we have received from
our shareholders. The approachfor 2019 is summarised here and the progressive changes are identified below.

* Thecurrent salaries of Executive Directors will continue to apply from 1 October 2018. We will review the salaries during the year with any
changes effective from 1 June 2019, in line with our usual timetable.

* Theannualbonus planwill operate anbroadly the same basis as in 2018. Awards will be primarily based on underlying Group operating
profit. For 2019, any annual bonus earned may be subject to abonus deferral as set out below.

¢ ThePerformance Share Planwill operate onbroadly the samebasis as in 2018. We agreed to grant PSP awards in November 2018 equal
to 200% of salary toKate Swannand 125% of salary to Jonathan Davies. These awards will be subject to performance over the three
financial years to 30 September 2021. The performance measures will continue tobe /5% EPS growthand 25% relative TSR performance.
The targets for these awards are set out on page 43. After the end of the three-year performance period, these awards will be subject to an
additional two-year holding period. The total vesting and holding period from award will be five years.

Engaging with our shareholders

Following the 2018 AGMwe wrote to anumber of the Group's largest shareholders to discuss the current remuneration policy. We particularly
wanted to understand the concerns of those who were unable to support the resolution at the AGM. | am grateful to all the shareholders and
investor bodies who engaged with our consultation process for their time and input. We received a strong level of support for our approach to
remuneration through that process. We have incorporated investor feedback inthe remuneration arrangements we are planning to adopt for
2019 (see below for the changes to the structure of executive remuneration that we have implemented). We are keen to encourage an ongoing
dialogue with our shareholders and value active participationin that process.

Proposed changes

As aresult of the input we have received from our shareholders andfollowing the release of the updated 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code:

» PSP awards granted from and including in November 2018 will include a two-year holding period for any award to an executive director,
following the three-year performance period.

* Annualbonus deferral has beenintroduced with effect from 1 October 2018 for any executive director who does not meet their minimum
shareholding guidelines. Under the bonus deferral plan, 50% of any bonus will be deferred into SSP shares for three years.

* Thetermsof boththe 2018/19 annual bonus plan and the PSP have been updated with effect from 1 Octaber 2018, toinclude the ability
for the Committee to apply discretionto adjust formulaic incentives autcomes.

We intend that these changes will formally be included in our Directors'remuneration policy when it is next put to our shareholders for their
approvalat our AGMin 2021.
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STATEMENT BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Inaddition tothe above changes, the Committee has decided to widen its scope to include setting remuneration for Executive Committee
members, effective for the next salary and incentive review cycle. The Committee intends to further review its policies and practices, including
those relating to the wider workforce, during the year ended 30 September 2019 and will provide details of any further changes proposed
inrespanse to the updated Code inthe 2019 Annual Report.

Changes to the Remuneration Committee

Further to the Group's announcement in September 2018, I will be standing down as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and will not
standforre-election at the Annual General Meeting inFebruary 2019. Carolyn Bradley was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company witheffect from 1 October 2018 and will succeed me as Senior Independent Director and chair of the Remuneration
Committee. We warmly welcome Carolynwho brings extensive commercial, operational and remuneration committee experience, aswell as
broad non-executive experience. lwould also like to personally thank our shareholders far their support and constructive challenges since my
appointment in 2014.

What is included in this report
Theremainder of the Directors'remuneration report is split into two sections in line with legislative reporting regulations.

* The Annual report onremuneration - contains details of pay received by Directors for the whole of the year ended 30 September 2018.
We have also explained how we intend to implement our pay model during the year ended 30 September 2019. The Annualreporton
remuneration will be subject to anadvisory vote at the AGMin February 2019,

* TheDirectors'remuneration policy - contains details of our current policy, as appraved at our AGMin February 2018, setting out various
elements of our approach to Directors remuneration.

Ihope very muchthat shareholders will support the Committee's continuing overall approach to remuneration and, on behalf of the Committee,
Irecommend our report toyou.

The Directors'remunerationreport as set out on pages 41 to 54 was approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

{BbL\, {» o

JohnBarton
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

20November 2018
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Audited information

The information presentedinthis report up until the end of page 43 has been audited.

Single total figure of remuneration

The following table sets out the total remuneration for Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors for the year ended
30 September 2018. All figures are for the full financial year.

Salary Annual Long-term
and Feesl Benefits® Pension® bonus® incentives®) Other(e Total

Allfiguresshownin£000 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Executive Directors

Kate Swann 758 746 73 66 280 275 1,592 1561 3543 4739 1 1 6,247 7388
JonathanDavies 427 413 15 15 20 88 451 416 1,181 1579 1 1 2165 2512

Non-Executive
Directors®®

Vagn Serensen 187 185 - - - - - - - - - - 187 185
JohnBarton 69 68 - - - - - - - - - - 69 68
lan Dyson 59 58 - - - - - - - - - - 59 58
Denis Hennequin 49 48 - - - - - - - - - - 49 48
Per Utnegaard 49 48 - - - - - - - - - - 49 48

1,598 1,566 88 81 370 363 2,043 1977 4724 6318 2 2 8,825 10,307

Notes to the table

(a) Salaryandfees-thisrepresents the base salary or fees paid inrespect of the relevant financial year. These figures are net of £43k for Kate Swann
inrelationto salary sacrificed for additional annual leave (2017:Kate Swann - £39k and Jonathan Davies - £6k).

(b) Benefits - thisrepresents the taxable value of all benefits paid inrespect of the relevant financial year. Executive Directors’ benefits may include
private healthcare (for the Director and their family), car allowance, company fuel card and travel to and from work (including associated tax paid).

(c) Pension-Executive Directors receive a cash allowance in lieu of pension contributions. Kate Swann received a cash allowance of 35% of salary per
annum and Jonathan Davies received a cash allowance of 21% of salary per annum.

(d) Annualbonus - this represents the annual bonus payable for the financial year. Further details on the performance assessment for the 2018 financial
yeararesetoutonpage42.

(e) Long-termincentives 2017 - The value for 2017 isinrespect of the awards granted in 2014. The value presented in the Single total figure of
remuneration table inthe 2017 Annual Report on Remuneration has been adjusted to show the final outcome of the vesting of the awards granted in
2014 (alongwith accrued dividend equivalents including associated tax credits where appropriate) at the mid-market closing share price on the date
of vesting of £6.3808.

(f) Long-termincentives 2018 - The value for 2018 represents the vesting of awards granted inNovember 2015 and accrued dividend equivalents
(including associated tax credits where appropriate), which are due to vest at the end of November 2018. The value shown is based on an assessment
of performance achieved to 30 September 2018 (100% of maximum under the EPS element and 100% of maximum under the relative TSR element).
Inaccordance with UK regulations, the share price is assumed to be the average market price for the fourth quarter to the year ended 30 September
2018(£6.8644). The value willbe updated in the 2019 annual report once the final vesting outcome is known.

(g) Other - this column shows the face value (at the date of issue) of Matching Shares and Dividend Reinvestment provided to the Executive Directors
under the UK Share Incentive Plan as adjusted for the share consolidation that took place in April 2018.

(h) Non-Executive Directors - following areview of the Non-Executive Directors' fee arrangements during the 2018 financial year, the Chairman's fee
increased from£185,000 per annum to £194,000 per annum, with effect from 1 July 2018. The basic fee for other Non-Executive Directors increased
from £48,000 per annum to £50,000 per annum, with effect from 1 July 2018. The additional fee for the Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee increased from£10,000 per annumto £11,000 per annum, with effect from 1 July 2018. The fee for the
Senior Independent Director remained at £10,000 per annum.

(i) Non-Executive Directors - the single total figure of remuneration table does notinclude Carolyn Bradley as she was appointed with effect from
1 October 2018. Details of her remuneration will be included in the Annual Report on Remuneration for the 2019 financial year.

Additional disclosures in respect of the single figure table

Base salary
The base salaries of the Executive Directors are:

From1 June 2018 From1 June 2017 Change
Kate Swann £811,824 per annum £795,906 per annum 2.0%
Jonathan Davies £432,973 perannum £424,483 per annum 2.0%

Annual bonus
TheBonuses for the year ending 30 September 2019 willuse underlying Group operating profit as the financial target. Jonathan Davies'bonus
will also be determined by reference tohis personal performance.

Under this framework, Kate Swann had the opportunity toreceive an annual bonus up to amaximum of 200% of her base salary and
Jonathan Davies hadthe opportunity toreceive anannual bonus of up to 125% of hisbase salary.
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The Underlying Group operating profit targets and Group perfarmance for the year are set out in the table below.

Target set at the start of the 2018 financial year* 2018 financial year

Threshold Target/Budget Maximum Group

(30% of maximum) (50% of maximum) (100% of maximum) Performance

Underlying Group operating profit Budget-3.0% £175.1m Budget +7.0% +13.7%

* Budget target adjusted for the acquisition of Stockheim
Underlying Group operating profit performance in the year, at constant currency, exceeded budget by 13.7%.

In considering Jonathan Davies'persanal performance during the year, the Committee took into account the following objectives
and performance.

Objective Performance delivered Overall assessment
Financing * Amend &Extend of our Debt Facilities completed, Ahead of target
* Inaugural US Private Placement completedin July 2018
Operational Efficiency * Outsourcing programme of finance &administration to India and Poland ahead Ahead of target
of budget

* Groupwide operational efficiency programmerealised savings ahead of target
Mergers and Acquisitions * Stockheim(Germany) deal successfully executed In line with target
» TFS(India)integration

Ahead of target

Indetermining these bonus outcomes, the Board has also considered performance on sustainability as discussed in the Sustainability report
(this includes the environmental, social and governance context within which these results were delivered) and has concluded that these bonus
outcomes were appropriate.

Based onthis performance, Kate Swann earned abonus of £1,591,812 (200% of salary) and Jonathan Davies earned abonus of £451,013
(106% of salary).
Scheme interests awarded during the financial year

SSP Performance Share Plan awards
The following PSP awards were made to the Executive Directors on 23 November 2017

Numberof  Facevalue (E) Face value % of salary Award receivable for End of

Typeof award awards granted at date of grant at date of grant minimum performance performance period

Kate Swann Nil Cost Options 242,008 £1,591,812 200% 25% 30September 2020
JonathanDavies Nil Cost Options 80,669 £530,603 125% 25% 30September 2020

The closing price anthe day before grant was used to calculate the number of shares over which each awardwas granted (£6.5/75 on
22 November 2017).

Awards will vest subject to the achievement of the performance conditions which will be measured at the time the Group publishes its full year
financialresults for the relevant financial year and completion of a three-year vesting period. The awards will vest subject to achieving two
performance measures, namely earnings per share (EPS) target (/5% weighting) and relative total shareholder return (Relative TSR) target
(25% weighting). The performance targets for these awards granted are summarised on page 43.

Share Incentive Plan awards

Executive Directors were eligible to participate in the UK SIP on the same basis as other eligible employees.

The table below provides details of Partnership Shares purchased by and Matching Shares awarded to the Executive Directors under the
UK SIPduring the year ended 30 September 2018, as adjusted by the impact of the share consolidation that took place in April 2018 (Share

Consolidation). Inaddition, it shows any Dividend Shares purchased under the UK SIP from any dividends declared on the Partnership Shares
or Matching Shares held at the date of the dividend, again as adjusted by the Share Consolidation.

Total SIP shares held Partnership Shares Matching Shares  Dividend Shares Adjustmentfor  Total SIP shares held

at 1 October 2017 purchased® awarded® purchased© Share Consolidation at 30 September 2018
Kate Swann 2,084 236 114 111 (77) 2,468
Jonathan Davies 2,085 236 114 110 (77) 2,468

(a) Partnership Shares purchased during the 2018 financial year at a price of between £5.50 and £6.907 per share.

(b) Matching Shares awarded during the 2018 financial year at nil consideration.

(c) Dividend Shares purchased during the 2018 financial year from the proceeds of dividends payable on the UK SIP Partnership Shares, Matching Shares
and previously purchased Dividend Shares.
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Payments for loss of office and payments to past Directors
There have beennopayments to Directors for loss of office or payments to past Directors inthe 2018 financial year (201 /:£nil).

Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests

Shareholding guidelines require Executive Directors to build up over time a personal shareholding in the Company equivalent in value to 200%
of salary for the CEO and 125% of salary for the CFO. Executive Directors are encouraged to retain vested shares earned under the Company's
incentive plans until the shareholding guidelines have been met. The Chairman and each Independent Non-Executive Director are expectedto
build andthen maintain a shareholding in the Company equivalent invalue to 100% of their annual gross fee.

The period aver which the minimum shareholding must be built up is a three-year period, either from the date of admission (15 July 2014),
or fromthe date of appointment if later. The table below shows details of the Directors'shareholdings as at 30 September 2018.

Interests in unvested

Shareholding guidelines Shareholdingasa%  Shares owned outright at PSP awards at
Director asa% ofsalary/fees  of salary/fee achieved® 30 September 2018® 30 September 2018
Kate Swann 200% 3,978% 4,455,822 1,194,835
Jonathan Davies 125% 2,331% 1,392,826 398,273
Vagn Serensen 100% 1,783% 477239 N/A
JohnBarton 100% 306% 30,000 N/A
lanDyson 100% 218% 18,317 N/A
Denis Hennequin 100% 266% 18,317 N/A
Per Utnegaard 100% 100% 6,870 N/A

Notes:

(a) Forthe purposes of determining Executive Director shareholding requirements, the individual's salary/fee at 30 September 2018 and the share price at
28 September 2018(724.85 pence) have been used. Further, the total shareholding used to calculate the shareholding percentage excludes Matching
Shares issued under the UK Share Incentive Plan that remain subject to holding conditions (599 for each Executive Director as at 30 September 2018).

(b) ‘Shares owned outright at 30 September 2018'includes shares held by persons connected with a Director. It also includes Partnership Shares
purchased, Matching Shares awarded and Dividend Shares purchased, under the UK Share Incentive Plan. This column shows the total shareholdings
as adjusted by the impact of the Share Consolidation.

(c) ‘Interestsinunvested PSP awards'refers to Performance Share Plan awards granted inNovember 2015, November 2016 and November 2017.

The performance conditions for each award are described in the table below.

1 October 2015 to 1 October 2016 to 1 October 2017 to
Performance period 30 September 2018 30 September 2019 30 September 2020
Performance CompoundEPS  Relative TSR vs CompoundEPS  Relative TSR vs CompoundEPS  Relative TSR vs
condition and growth comparator group growth comparator group growth comparator group
weighting (75%) (25%) (75%) (25%) (75%) (25%)
Maximum target
(100% vesting) 12%p.a. Upper-quartile 12%p.a. Upper-quartile 12%p.a. Upper-quartile
Threshold target
(25% vesting) 7%p.a. Median 7%p.a. Median 7%p.a. Median

Notes to table:

(i) Vestingis calculated onastraight line basis between maximum and threshold targets. There is no vesting for performance below the
threshold target.

(i) The TSR comparator Group is disclosed on page 46.

(ii)) A three-month average share price prior to the start and end of the performance period will be used to calculate TSR.

(d) ‘Interestsinunvested PSP awards'includes dividend equivalents (including associated tax credits where applicable) payable in shares that have
accrued on the Performance Share Plan awards since they were granted in November 2015, November 2016 and November 2017 respectively.
Dividend equivalents (including associated tax credits where applicable) payable in shares will continue to accrue (on a cumulative basis) until the
vesting dates of these awards, subject to and in accordance with the rules of the Performance Share Plan.

(e) Unvested awards under the Company's share plans will be satisfied by the transfer of existing shares held by the Company's employee benefit trust
(EBT), market purchased shares (which will be held by the EBT) or the issue of new shares within limits agreed by shareholders when the plans were
approved. These limits comply with the Investment Association’s guidelines which require that no more than 10% of a company's issued share capital
beissuedinaccordance with allemployee share plans inany 10-year period, with no more than 5% issued in accordance with discretionary employee
share plans.

(f) Thetable of the Directors' shareholdings does not include Carolyn Bradley as she was appointed with effect from 1 October 2018. Details of her
shareholdings will be included inthe Annualreport onremuneration for the 2019 financial year.

At 20 November 2018, other than as set out below, there had beenno movement in Directors'shareholdings and share interests from
305eptember 2017

Shares owned outrightat  Shares owned outright at

Director 20 November 2018 30 September 2018 Change
Kate Swann 4,455,876 4,455,822 54
Jonathan Davies 1,392,880 1,392,826 54

Note: ‘Shares owned outright’includes shares held by persons connected with a Director. It also includes Partnership Shares purchased, Matching Shares
awarded and Dividend Shares purchased, under the UK Share Incentive Plan.
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This isthe end of the audited section of the Annual report onremuneration.

Historical TSR performance

Asthe Company isaconstituent of the FTSE 250, the FTSE 250 Index provides an appropriate indication of market movements against which
tobenchmark the Company's performance. The chart below summarises the Company's TSR performance against the FTSE 250 Index over
the period fromadmissionon 15 July 2014 to 30 September 2018,

TSR performance since Admission
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Chief Executive Officer remuneration outcomes

The table below summarises the Chief Executive Officer single figure for total remuneration, and the annual bonus payable and long-term
incentive plan vesting levels as percentages of maximumopportunity for completed financial years following Admission.

Chief Executive Officer 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Single figure of remuneration £4.5m £2.5m £2.6m £74m £6.2m
Annual bonus payable (as a % of maximum opportunity) 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Long-term incentive vesting out-turn (as a % of maximum opportunity) n/a n/a n/a 100% 100%

No long-termincentive planawards vestedin 2014, 2015 or 2016.

The first PSP awards granted in July 2014 following the IPO, vested inFebruary 2018, Inaccordance with UK regulations, for the year ended

30 September 201/ the PSP value in the single total figure of remuneration, was an estimated value. This has nowbeen updatedto include the
finallevel of vesting achieved and the share price on the date of vesting, See note () of the Single total figure of remuneration table (page 41)
for further informationinthisregard.

Totalremunerationfor 2014 includes additional awards of cash and shares made on IPO by the Company and the previous majority shareholder.

Percentage change in remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer

Onthe annualsalary review date of 1 June 2018, the Chief Executive Officer's base salary increased by 2%, comparedwith the average annual
salary increase of 2% awarded to UK employees who are paid ona monthly basis. This population was chosen as a suitable comparator group
because it is considered to be the most relevant in terms of employment location and remuneration structure.

Inaddition, there were no material changes made to the provision of benefits or changes made to the bonus arrangement provided
to the Chief Executive Officer, or the UK monthly paid employees in the year.

Relative importance of the spend on pay
The table below shows the total spend on employee pay inthe 2017 and 2018 financial years and the total expenditure ondividends.

2018 2017 Percentage change
Total staff costs £736.3m £687.2m +/%
Dividends £45.7m £29.0m +58%

Special Dividend £100.1m £nil n/a
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Fees from external directorships

Kate Swannwas aNon-Executive Director of England Hockey during the 2018 financial year, but did not receive afee inrespect of that
directorship for the year ended 30 September 2018 . Kate Swannwas also aNon-Executive Director of Independent Vetcare during the 2018
financial year for which shereceives anannual fee of £45,000.

Jonathan Davies became aNon-Executive Director of Assuraplc during the 2018 financial year andretainedafee of £12,86/ inrespect
of that directorship for the part of the 2018 financial year that he was aNon Executive Director.

All external directorships are approved in advance by the Board.

Implementation of remuneration policy in the year ended 30 September 2019

This section provides an overview of how the Committee is proposing to implement the Group's remuneration policy in the year ending
30 September 2019. The Commiittee is satisfied that this approach does not raise any ESGrisks and supports behaviours consistent with
the Group's purpose, values and strategy.

Base salary
The table below shows base salaries at 1 October 2018.

Base salary at 1 October 2018

Kate Swann £811,824
JonathanDavies £432,973

The Remuneration Committee will review salaries with effect from 1 June 2019, inline with the Group's usual timetable.

Benefits

The benefitsreceived by each Executive Director will continue to include private healthcare (for the executive and their family), life insurance,
car allowance or acompany car, company fuel card and travel to and fromwork (including associated tax paid).

Pension allowance

The current Executive Directors will receive a cash allowance in lieu of pension. The table below shows the expected cash allowances for the
year ending 30 September 2019.

Cashallowance in lieu of pension (% of salary)

Kate Swann 35%
Jonathan Davies 21%
Annual bonus

The maximum annual bonus oppartunity for Executive Directors for the year ending 30 September 2019 will remain 200% of base salary
for the Chief Executive Officer and 125% of salary for the Chief Financial Officer.

The structure of the annual bonus performance measures will remain unchanged. Bonuses for the year ending 30 September 2019 will
use underlying Group operating profit as the financial target. Jonathan Davies'bonus will also be determined by reference to his personal
performance. The Company will disclose the targets retrospectively when they are considered no longer commercially sensitive.

If anExecutive Director has not met their shareholding guideline when the bonus outcome is determined, 50% of any bonus will be deferred
intosharesforthreeyears.

Consistent with the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code the assessment of performance for the 2019 Annual Bonus Plan will also include
the ability for the Committee to apply discretion to adjust formulaic outcomes for non-contractual bonuses.
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Performance Share Plan

The Committee is intending to make PSP awards in the 2019 financial year to Kate Swannand Jonathan Davies inrespect of ordinary shares
withavalue set out below:

Face value (£) Face value (% of salary) End of performance period
Kate Swann £1,623,648 200% 30 September 2021
Jonathan Davies £541,216 125% 30 September 2021

The number of shares subject to anaward will be calculated using the mid-market closing share price on the day before the award date.

The Remuneration Committee has determined that the vesting of these awards will be subject to two types of performance conditions
as detailed below.

/5% of the award - Earnings Per Share (EPS) growth over the three-year period from 1 October 2018 to 30 September 2021,

EPS - compound annual growth Percentage of the award vesting
Lessthan 7% perannum 0%
7% perannum 25%
12% per annum or more 100%

Straight-line vesting operates betweenthese points.

EPS growthwillnormally be calculated using actual foreign exchange rates. However, given the international nature of SSP's business, in order
to ensure that management performance during the performance periodis appropriately rewarded, the Committee may take account of
exceptional movementsin foreign exchange rates during the performance period in determining the outcome of awards.

25% of the award - relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR) performance against a comparator group of companies over the three-year period
from 1 October 2018 to 30 September 2021.

Relative TSR performance Percentage of the award vesting
Below median 0%
Median 25%
Upper quartile 100%

Straight-line vesting operates betweenthese points.

Consistent withthe 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code the assessment of performance for 2018 PSP awards will also include the ability
for the Committee to apply discretion to adjust formulaic outcomes.

Following the assessment of the performance conditions above, any resulting shares will be subject to an additional two-year holding period
following the vesting date.

Therelative TSR comparator group consists of 3/ companies and s set out below.

Autogrill El Group JD Wetherspoon National Express TUIAG

Compass Group First Group JSainsbury Next UDG Healthcare
Debenhams Go-Ahead Group Kingfisher Ocado Group WHSmith

Dignity GreeneKing Marks and Spencer Group The Restaurant Group Whitbread

Dixons Carphone Halfords Group Marston's Sports Direct International Wm Morrison Supermarkets
Domino's Pizza Group  Inchcape Millennium & Copthorne Hotels  Stagecoach Group

Dunelm Group InterContinental Hotels Group Mitchells &Butlers Tesco

Elior JD Sports Fashion N Brown Group Thomas Cook Group

Share Incentive Plan awards
Executive Directors will be eligible to participate in the UK SIP on the same basis as other eligible employees.

Non-Executive Director remuneration

Following the review of Non-Executive Director fees during the year ended 30 September 2018, the fees from 1 July 2018 will be as set out
below. The Company will review these fees inaccordance with the terms of the Non-Executive Director appointment letters, and will undertake
arevieweachyear. Areview may not result inanincrease in fees.

2018 fees
Chairman of the Board £194,000
Board member £50,000
Additional fee for Senior Independent Director £10,000
Additional fee for Chairman of Audit/Remuneration Committee* £11,000

* Inaddition to any additional fee for acting as the Senior Independent Director.
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Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration

TheBoardentrusts the Remuneration Committee with the responsibility for setting the remuneration policy inrespect of Executive Directors
and senior executives and ensuring its ongoing appropriateness andrelevance. In setting the remuneration for these groups, the Committee
considers the pay and canditions of the wider workforce androles inrelevant geographies.

Internal advice

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Group HR Director and Company Secretary attend Committee meetings by invitation, other
thanwhen their personal remunerationis being discussed. The Company Secretary acted as secretary to the Committee.

External advice

During the year ended 30 September 2018, the Committee received independent advice an executive remuneration matters from Deloitte.
Deloittereceived £69950infees for these services. Deloitte is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and, as such, voluntarily
operatesunder the code of conduct inrelation to executive remuneration consulting in the UK. During the year, Deloitte also provided the
Company withinternal audit services, forensic services, tax services and transaction-related services.

The Committee appointed Deloitte to the role of independent advisor to the Committee. The Committee has reviewed the advice provided by
Deloitte during the year and is comfortable that it has been objective and independent. The Committee has reviewed the potential for conflicts
of interest and judged that there were appropriate safeguards against such conflict.

Statement of shareholder voting

Votes cast at the AGM inFebruary 2018 inrespect of the approval of the Directars remuneration report and inrespect of the approval of the
Directors'remuneration policy are given below:

% of issued

Totalshares  share capital
Resolution Meeting Votes for % for  Votes against % against voted voted Voteswithheld
Toapprove February 2018 338,174,723 85.50% 55,989,953 14.20% 394,164,676 82.22% 221,663
the Directors’ AGM
remuneration
report
To approve February 2018 263,554,350 7705% 78,502,459 22.95% 342,056,809 7135% 52,329,530
the Directors’ AGM
remuneration
policy

Following the 2018 AGMwe wrote to anumber of the Group's largest shareholders to discuss the current remuneration policy. We particularly
wanted to understandthe concerns of those who were unable to support the resolution at the AGM. We received astrong level of support
through that process. We have incorporated investor feedback in the remuneration arrangements we are planning to adopt for 2019. We are
keen to encourage anongoing dialogue with our shareholders.
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This part of the Directors'remunerationreport sets out the Directors' remuneration policy as determined by the Remuneration Committee
(the ‘Committee) and approved by shareholders at the 2018 Annual General Meeting. The scenario charts have beenupdated toreflect the
applicationof the policy for the 2018 financial year and references to prior financial years have been updated to aid understanding. A copy

of the shareholder-approved policy (including the scenario charts for the 2017 financial year) is in the Annual Report and Accounts 2017, which
isavailable at wwwfoodtravelexperts.cominthe Investors section.

Key principles of remuneration policy

Theremuneration policy for the Directors of the Company is intended to help recruit and retain executives who can execute SSP's strategy
by rewarding them with appropriate compensation and benefit packages. The policy seeks to align the interests of Executive Directors with
the performance of the Company and the interests of its sharehalders.

Our incentive arrangements are designed toreward performance against key financial and strategic performance objectives. Our aimis
toreward management for delivering sustainable long-termperformance and support the retention of critical talent.

Future policy table

The table below describes the policy inrelation to the components of remuneration for Executive Directors and, at the bottom of the table,
the policy for the Non-Executive Directors.

Element and link to strategy ~ Operation Maximum potential value Performance metrics

Executive Directors

Base salary

Acore element of the Normally reviewed annually. The Salaryincreasesin None

remuneration package used
torecruit, reward andretain
Executive Directors who
candeliver our strategic
objectives.

Remuneration Committee may however award
anout-of-cycleincrease if it considers it
appropriate.

Base salaries are set by the Committee taking
into account anumber of internal and external
factorsincluding:

* theindividual's skills, experience
and performance;

* thesizeandscope of the Executive Director's
role andresponsibilities;

 market positioning andinflation; and
 payand conditions elsewhere inthe Group.

percentage terms will
normally be inline with
increases awarded to other
head office employees in
therelevant geography,
but may be higher in certain
circumstances.

The circumstances may
include but are not limited to:

* WhereanewExecutive
Director hasbeenappointed
atalowersalary, higher
increases may be awarded
overaninitial period as the
Executive Director gains
experienceintherole;

* Wheretherehasbeen
anincreaseinthe scope
orresponsibility of an
Executive Director'srole;
and

* Whereasalaryhas fallen
significantly below
market positioning.

There is no maximum

increase or opportunity.

Pension

To provide anincome
following retirement and
assist the Executive Director
in building wealth for

their future.

The Company operates an approved defined
contribution pension arrangement, to which
the Company may make contributions. A cash
allowance may be provided in lieu of pension
contributions.

Company contributions or
cashallowance of upto 35%
of base salary may be paidin
respect of each financial year
of the Company to each of the
current Executive Directors.

Company contributions or
cashallowance of upto 20%
of base salary may be paid
inrespect of each financial
year of the Company to any
new Executive Director that
may be appointed from time
totime.
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Element and link to strategy Operation

Other benefits

Toprovide appropriate
benefits as partofa
remuneration package
thatassistsinrecruiting,
rewarding andretaining
Executive Directors.

Each Executive Director receives a tailored
benefits package including (but not limited to)
private healthinsurance for themselves, their
spouse and dependent children, annual health
screening, smartphone (or similar devices),
life assurance, business travel and permanent
healthinsurance.

Travelbenefits, including car allowance,
company car, driver, the cost of fuel for private
mileage, insurance, maintenance and servicing
and travel to and from work (including any
associated tax and social security charges)
may also be provided.

Inthe event that an Executive Directoris
required by the Group torelocate, other
benefits may include, but are not limited to,
the costs of relocation, housing, travel and
educationallowances and subsistence costs.

Expensesincurredin the performance of
duties for the Group may be reimbursed
or paid for directly by the Company, as
appropriate, including any tax or social
security charges due on the expenses.

The Executive Directors are eligible toreceive
other benefits (such as a colleague discount
card) on the same terms as other eligible
employees of the Group.

Maximum potential value

Carallowance of up to
£13,000 per annum.

The cost of insured benefits
may vary fromyear to

year depending on the
individual's circumstances,
and therefore the Committee
hasnotimposed any overall
maximum value on the
benefit.

Performance metrics

None

Annual bonus

Toreward performance on
anannual basis against key
annual objectives.

Performance objectives will be determined
by the Committee at the beginning of the
financial year.

The Committee will assess performance
against these objectives following the end
of therelevant financial year.

Awards are delivered wholly in cash, and
are paid once theresults for the year have
been audited.

The Committee may clawback awards up
tothreeyears after vesting if the Group's
accounts have been materially misstated

or there has beenanerrorin the calculation
of any performance conditions whichresults
inoverpayment.

The maximum annual bonus
opportunity is 200% of base
salary per annum.

For 2018/19 maximum annual
opportunities are:

¢ Chief Executive Officer,
Kate Swann-200% of
salary perannum.

» ChiefFinancial Officer,
JonathanDavies-125%
of salary per annum.

Performance is measured
relative to targets inkey
financial, operational and/or
strategic objectives over the
financial year.

The measures selected and
their weightings may vary
eachyearaccording to the
strategic priorities.

Entitlement to bonus

only startstoaccrueata
minimum threshold level
of performance. Below this
level, no bonus will be paid.

To earnamaximum
bonus there mustbe
outperformance against
stretching objectives.
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Element and link to strategy Operation

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

The PSPrewards the delivery
of Company performance and
shareholder value over the
longer term.

The awards are share based
toaligntheinterests of
Executive Directors with
those of shareholders.

Awards may be made to Executive Directors
at the discretion of the Committee in the form
of conditional share awards, nil-cost options,
forfeitable shares or equivalentrights.

Awards will normally be subject to
performance conditions set by the Committee

measured over a period of at least three years.

Awards will vest following the end of the
performance period.

Awards (other than forfeitable shares) may
incorporate theright toreceive (in cash or
shares) the value of dividends that would

have been paid on the award shares that
vestbetween the grant and vesting of awards,
which will, unless the Committee determines
otherwise, assume the reinvestment of

those dividends in the Company's shares
onacumulative basis.

The Committee has the discretiontoreduce
the number of shares subject to unvested
awards if prior to vesting there is amaterial
misstatement in the Company’s annual
financial statements, or amaterial failure

of risk management, or serious reputational
damage to amember of the Group or relevant
business unit.

The Committee may clawback awards up
tothreeyears after vesting if the Group's
accounts have been materially misstated
or there hasbeenanerrorin the calculation
of any performance conditions which
results in overpayment.

Maximum potential value

The maximum award that
may be made is up to 200%
of salary per annumunder
therules of theplanin
respect of any financial year
of the Company.

Performance metrics

Itis currently anticipated that
for PSP awards performance
willbe based on:

e 25%onrelative Total
Shareholder Return (TSR)

* 75%onEarnings per
Share (EPS)

If the minimum level of
performance is not achieved
thennone of the award will
vest and the award will lapse.

Forperformance at the
threshold levels 25%
of the award will vest.

The whole award will vest
if the maximum level of
performance, or above,
isachieved.

Long-termincentive
performance conditions are
reviewed on an annual basis,
and may vary to ensure that
they are aligned with the
corporate strategy.

The Committee would seek
to consult with its major
shareholders as appropriate
onany proposed material
changes.

All-employee share plans Executive Directors may participate onthe Participants can contribute None
same basis as other employees. up to therelevant limits set
outinthe country plan.
Non-Executive Directors Fees
Toattractandretain The Chairman'’s fees are determined by None

Non-Executive Directors
of the calibre required to
oversee the development
and execution of the
Company's strategy.

the Committee.

The Non-Executive Directors' fees are
determined by the Board.

The total fees for Non-Executive Directors,
including the Chairman, will not exceed the

maximum stated in the Company's Articles
of Association.

The level of fees takes into account the time
commitment, responsibilities, market levels
and the skills and experience required.

Non-Executive Directors normally receive
abasic fee and an additional fee for specific
Boardresponsibilities, including chairmanship
or membership of Board committees oracting
as the Senior Independent Director.

Additional fees may be paid to Non-Executive
Directorsonaperdiembasis toreflect
increased time commitment in certain

limited circumstances.

Expensesincurredin the performance of
non-executive duties for the Company may
be reimbursed or paid for directly by the
Company, as appropriate, including any tax
and social security due on the expenses.
Non-Executive Directors may be provided

with benefits to enable them to undertake
their duties.
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Notes to the tables on pages 48 to 50

The Company also operates a shareholding policy - details can be found on page 43 of the Annual report onremuneration.

The PSP will be operated in accordance with the planrules. Inaccordance with the rules of the PSP, any performance conditionmay be
substitutedor variedif the Committee considers it appropriate, provided that the amended performance condition s in its opinion reasonable
andnot materially less difficult to satisfy. The planrules also provide that the Committee may adjust awards (as it reasonably considers

appropriate) in the event of any variation of the Company's share capital, capital distribution, demerger, special dividend or other event having
amaterialimpact onthevalue of shares.

Malus and clawbacks apply where stated in the above table. Other elements of remuneration are not subject to recovery provisions.

Under Kate Swann's service contract, if her employment is terminated by the Company making a payment in lisu of notice and the Company
subsequently discovers that there were grounds for her summary dismissal, Kate Swann may be required to make arepayment equal to the
net of tax value of any payments, benefits or shares received under any relevant bonus or incentive plan.

The Committee reserves the right to make any remuneration payments and payments for loss of office (including exercising any discretions
available tait in connectionwith such payments) that are nat in line with the policy set out above where the terms of the payment were agreed:

(i) beforethe AGMon3March 2015 (the date the Company's first shareholder-approved Directors' remuneration policy came into effect);

(i) beforethepolicy set out above cameintoeffect, provided that the terms of the payment were consistent with the shareholder-approved
remuneration policy in force at the time they were agreed; or

(ili) atatimewhenthe relevant individual was not a Director of the Company and, in the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not
in consideration for the individual becoming a Director of the Company.

For these purposes, ‘payments’include the Committee satisfying awards of variable remuneration and anaward over shares is‘agreed'
at the timethe awardis granted.

Performance measures and targets

Annual bonus

Annualbonus metrics and targets are selected ta incentivise Directors to meet objectives for the year and are choseninline with the

following principles:

* Thetargets set for financial measures should be incentivising and appropriately stretching. Targets may be adjusted by the Committee
to take into account significant capital transactions during the year.

* There should be flexibility to change the measures and weightings year-on-year in line with the needs of the business.

PSP

Performance conditions andtargets are determined by the Committee toreflect the Group's strategy and having regard to market practice
withinthe Company's business sector. For the awards to be made inNovember 2018, the measures were selected taking into account that:
* Earnings per Share is considered by the Company to be the best indicator of long-term performance.

« TotalShareholder Returnis akey objective of most of our shareholders.

Remuneration arrangements throughout the Group

Differences inthe policies for Executive Directors and other employees in the Group generally reflect differences inmarket practice taking into
account role and seniority. The remuneration policies for Executive Directors and the senior executive team are generally consistent interms
of structure and the performance measures used. All eligible employees may participate in the Company's all-employee share plans in the
relevant territory where they operate.
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lllustrative scenario analysis

The following charts show the patential split between the different elements of the Executive Directors remuneration under three different
performance scenarios: Minimum’, Target'and Maximum' (see table below).

CEO: Kate Swann CFO: Jonathan Davies
£4,416k
£1,621k
37%
£2386k Long-termincentives 334% Long-term incentives
17% B Annual bonus B Annual bonus
£1,168k 34% B Fixed pay B Fixed pay
100% 49%
Minimum Target Maximum Minimum Target Maximum
Component ‘Minimum'’ ‘Target' ‘Maximum'
Fixed remuneration Basesalary Annualbase salary for the 2019 financial year**
Pension Chief Executive Officer: 35% of salary; Chief Financial Officer: 21% of salary
Benefits Taxable value of annual benefits provided in the year ended 30 September 2018
Annualbonus Maximum opportunity Chief Executive Officer: 200% of salary; Chief Financial Officer: 125% of salary**
Vesting 0% of maximum 50% of maximum 100% of maximum
opportunity opportunity opportunity
Performance share plan*® Maximum opportunity Chief Executive Officer: 200% of salary; Chief Financial Officer: 125% of salary**
Vesting 0% vesting 25% vesting 100% vesting

* Excludes share price and growth dividends.
**Basedonsalaryasat 1 October 2018.

Approach to recruitment remuneration
Inthe event that the Group appainted a new Executive Director, remuneration would be determined in line with the following principles:

* The Committee will take into account all relevant factors, including the calibre and experience of the individual and the market from which
they arerecruited, while beingmindful of the best interests of the Group and its shareholders and seeking not to pay more thanis necessary.

* Sofaras practical the Committee will look to align the remuneration package for any new appointment with the remuneration policy set out
inthe policy table on pages 48 to 50.

* Salariesmaybe higher or lower than the previous incumbent, but will be set taking into account the review principles set out inthe policy
table. Where appropriate the salaries may be set at aninitially lower level, with the intention of increasing salary at a higher than usual rate
as the Executive Director gains experience in the role. For interim positions a cash supplement may be paidrather than salary (for example;
aNon-Executive Director taking onan executive function on ashort-termbasis)

« Tofacilitate recruitment the Committee may need to buy out terms or remuneration arrangements forfeited on joining the Company.
Any buy-out would take into account the terms of the arrangements, in particular, any performance conditions and the time over which they
would vest. The averriding principle would be that the value of any replacement buy-out awards should be no more than the commercial
value of awards that have been forfeited. The formof any award would be determined at the time and the Committee may make buy-out
awards under LR94.2 of the Listing Rules (for buy-out awards only).

* Themaximumvariable pay opportunity inrespect of recruitment (excluding buy-outs) comprises amaximurm annual bonus of 200% of
annual salary and amaximum PSP grant of 200% of annual salary, as statedin the policy table on pages 48 to 50. The Committeeretains the
flexibility to determine that, for the first year of appointment, any annual incentive award within this maximumwill be subject to suchterms
asitmay determine.

Where an Executive Director is appointed from within the Company or following corporate activity/reorganisation (for example, merger with
another company), the normal policy would be to honour any legacy arrangements in line with the original terms and conditions.

Where the recruitment requires relocation of the individual, the Committee may provide for additional costs and benefits.

Onthe appointment of anew Chairman or Nan-Executive Director, the remuneration package will be consistent with the policy set out above.
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Details of Directors'’ service contracts

Executive Directors

Executive Directors have rolling service contracts. None of the existing service contracts for Executive Directors makes any provision for
termination payments, other than for payment in lieu of notice.

Kate Swann's payment in lieu of notice would be calculated by reference ta the base salary and pension contributions (or equivalent allowance)
inrespect of any unexpired portion of the notice period. This payment canbe made in instalments over the notice period and can be reduced
where alternative employment is commenced during the notice period. Any such payment toKate Swann would be repayable (net of tax) if it
was subsequently discovered that the Company would have been permitted to dismiss her summarily.

Jonathan Davies'payment in lieu of notice would be calculated by reference to the base salary inrespect of any unexpired portion of the notice
period. This payment can be made in instalments over the notice period and can be reduced where alternative employment is commenced
during the notice period.

The Executive Directors'service contracts contain provisions relating to salary, car allowance, pension arrangements, medical insurance, life
insurance, business travel insurance, company car, holiday and sick pay, and the reimbursement of reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred
by the Executive Directors while on company business.

Kate Swann's service contract includes the provision that she is entitled to participate inthe annual bonus scheme. For any new Executive
Directors appointed their participationinthe Company's incentive plans will be at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee.

The following service contracts inrespect of Executive Directors who were inoffice during the year are rolling service contracts and therefore
have no end date:

Date of commencement of contract Notice period for Director Notice period for Company
Kate Swann 15 July 2014 9 months 12 months
Jonathan Davies 15July 2014 9months 12 months

Service contracts for newExecutive Directors will be limited to nine months'notice for the Director and 1.2 months'notice for the Company.

Chairman

The terms of the Chairman’s appointment broadly reflect the terms of the three-year appointments of the Non-Executive Directors.
The Chairman’s appointment can be terminated at any time upon written notice, resignation or in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company.

The Chairmanreceives no benefits from the office other than fees and reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance of his duties,
including any tax due onthe expenses. He is not eligible to participate in Group pension arrangements.

Non-Executive Directors

AllNon-Executive Directors have been appointed on aninitial term of three years, subject torenewal thereafter. Allare subject to annual
re-electionby shareholders.

TheNon-Executive Directors have letters of appointment which can be terminated at any time upon written notice, resignation or in
accordance withthe Articles of Association of the Company. Non-Executive Directors receive no benefits from their office other thanfees and
reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance of their duties, including any tax due on the expenses. They are not eligible to participate
inGroup pension arrangements.

Effective date of appointment letter Current term expires
Vagn Serensen 15 July 2014 14 July 2020
JohnBarton 15 July 2014 14 July 2020
lan Dyson 15 July 2014 14 July 2020
Denis Hennequin 15 July 2014 14 July 2020
PerUtnegaard 1July 2015 30June 2021
Carolyn Bradley 10October 2018 30 September 2021

Directors'service contracts are kept for inspection by shareholders at the Company's registered office.
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Payments to departing Directors

Inthe event that the employment of an Executive Director is terminated, any compensation payable will be determined by reference to the terms
of the service contract between the Company and the employee, as well as the rules of any incentive plans. The Committee may structure any
compensation paymentsinsuchaway as it deems appropriate, taking into account the circumstances of departure. In the event of the Company
terminating an Executive Director's contract, the level of compensationwould be subject to mitigation if considered appropriate.

Payment in lieu Inthe event of termination by the Company of an Executive Director’s employment, a payment in lieu of notice may be

of notice paid. This payment would be equal to a maximum of annual base salary and cash allowance in lieu of pensioninrespect
of any unexpired portion of the notice period. This payment can be made in instalments over the notice period and can
be reduced where alternative employment is commenced during the notice period.

Annual bonus Executive Directors may, at the determination of the Committee, remain eligible to receive an annual bonus for the
financial year in which they ceased employment.

Any such bonus will be determined by the Committee, taking into account time in employment and performance.

Performance Share On cessation of employment, any outstanding unvested awards will lapse unless the participant dies or is deemed
Plan awards tobea’good leaver'by the Committee inits discretion.

Where the participant is deemed to be a‘good leaver’, any outstanding unvested awards will normally continue and
will vest at the normal vesting date to the extent the original performance conditions have been satisfied. Awards will
normally, unless the Committee determines that an alternative proportion of the awards should vest, be pro-rated for
the portion of the vesting period completed in employment.

The Committee may, in exceptional circumstances, or if the participant dies, decide to allow awards to vest on cessation

of employment subject to the Committee’s assessment of performance against the original performance conditions at that
time or the Committee's assessment of the likely achievement of the performance conditions over the original performance
period. Awards will normally, unless the Committee determines that an alternative proportion of the awards should vest,

be pro-rated for the portion of the vesting period completedinemployment.

Paymentsinrelation = The Company may pay anamount considered reasonable by the Remuneration Committee inrespect of an Executive
to statutory rights Director's statutory rights.

Payments required The Company may pay damages, awards, fines or other compensation awarded to an Executive Director by any
by law competent court or tribunal or other payments required to be made on termination of employment under applicable law.
Professional fees The Company may pay an amount considered reasonable by the Remuneration Committee inrespect of fees for legal

and tax advice, and outplacement support for the departing Executive Director.

Award under LR 9.4.2
Were anaward tobe made under LR94.2 then the leaver provisions would be determined at the time of award.

Takeovers and other corporate events

Under the PSP onatakeover or voluntary winding-up of the Company, PSP awards will vest in accordance with the rules of the plan.

Vesting would be determined by the Committee based onthe proportion of the vesting period that has elapsed and the extent to which
the performance conditions have been satisfied, although the Committee has the discretion to determine that such greater proportion
as it considers appropriate of the awards should vest, including where it considers the level of shareholderreturnsis at a superior level.

Inthe event of avariation of share capital, demerger, capital distribution or any other event having amaterial impact on the value of the shares,
the Committee may determine that outstanding PSP awards shall vest onthe same basis as set out above for a takeaver. Alternatively, the
Committee may (with the consent of the acquiring company) decide that PSP awards will not vest on a corparate event but will be replaced

by new awards over shares inthe new acquiring company or another company determinedby the acquiring company.

Bonusesmay be paid inrespect of the year in which the change of control or winding up of the Company occurs, if the Committee considers
thisappropriate. The Committee may determine the level of bonus taking into account any factors it considers appropriate.

Amendments

The Committee may make amendments to the terms of the Company's incentive plans in accordance with the rules of those plans (which were
summarised for shareholders in the Company’s IPO prospectus). The Committee may make minor amendments to the policy set out above
(for regulatory, exchange control, tax, administrative purposes or to take account of achange in legislation) without obtaining shareholder
approval for that amendment.

Consideration of conditions elsewhere in the Group

Inmaking remuneration decisions, the Committee also considers the pay and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group. Whenreviewing
and setting Executive Directors'remuneration, the Committee takes into account the pay and employment conditions of Group employees.
The Group-wide payreview budget is one of the key factors when reviewing the salaries of the Executive Directors. Although the Group has
not carried out aformal employee cansultationregarding Board remuneration, it does comply with local regulations and practices regarding
employee consultation more broadly.

Consideration of shareholder views

The Committee consulted with the Group's largest shareholders when develaping the above policy. Inreviewing and setting remuneration,
including that of Executive Directors, the Committee receives updates oninvestors'views, and may fromtime to time engage directly with
investarsand/or investor representative organisations on remuneration topics as appropriate. These lines of communication ensure that
emerging best-practice principles are factoredinto the Committee's decision-making,
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This section of the annualreport includes additional information required to be disclosed under the Companies Act 2006 (the Act), the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code), the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules (the DTRs) and the Listing Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authority (the LRs).

Certaininformationrequired to be included inthe Directors'report is included in other sections of this annual report, including;

* TheStrategicreportonpages 1 to 2/,

* The Corporate Governance report onpages 30to 34;

* The Audit Committee report onpages 35 to 38;

* TheDirectors'remunerationreport onpages 39 to 54;

* Postbalance sheet events onpage 100; and

* The Company's subsidiaries outside the United Kingdom on pages 106 to 109.

The sections referred to above provide an overview of the strategy, development and performance of the Company's business in the

year endedandas at 30 September 2018, together with information on the approach of the Company to corparate governance and

the constitution, and work and effectiveness of the Board and its principal committees. These sections are incarporated by reference into
theDirectors'report.

Corporate information and Listing on the London Stock Exchange

The Company was incarporated andregistered in England and Wales on 9March 2006 as a private company limited by shares under the
Companies Act 1985 with the registered number 5/35966. On 4 July 2014, the Company was re-registered as a public limited company.
The Company's registered office and principal place of businessis at 169 Euston Road, LondonNW1 2AE.

On 15 July 2014, the entireissued ordinary share capital of the Company was admitted ta the premium listing segment of the Official List
of the Financial Conduct Authority and to unconditional trading on the London Stock Exchange plc’'s main market for listed securities under
the ticker 'SSPG.

Dividends

TheDirectors declared aninterimdividend of 4.8 pence per share in the 2018 financial year amounting to £ 2.2.2m (2017/: £15.2m). In addition,
the Directors are recommending a final dividend of 5.4 pence per share amounting to £25 Zmwhich will result in a total dividend per share of
10.2 pence for the year, amounting to £4/4m (201/: £38.5m).

The final dividend will be paid on 29 March 2019 to shareholders onthe register of members as at the close of business on 1 March 2019,
subject to approval of shareholders at the 2019 AGMtobe held on 21 February 2019. The ex-dividend date willbe 28 February 2019.

On 2/ February 2018, shareholder approval was given at the Annual General Meeting for areturn of 20.9 pence per share to shareholders,
whichwas equivalent to £ 100.1min aggregate (the 'Special Dividend). The Special Dividend was paid on 27 April 2018 to shareholders on the
registeron 13 April 2018. The Special Dividend was accompanied by a share capital consolidation which was also approved by shareholders
atthe 2018 AGM.

During the year, the trustees of each of the employee benefit trustswhich operate in connection with the Company's share plans waived their
rights toreceive dividends onany shares held by them. Details of the trusts can be found innote 21 of this Report. The amount of dividends
waived during the year ended 30 September 2018 inrelationtothe trustswas £114,122.

Share capital

At 30 Septemnber 2018 there were 464,008,266 ordinary shares of 1 and 1/30 pence inissue, which are fully paid up and are quoted on the
London Stock Exchange. Further information regarding the Company's issued share capital and movements in the financial year canbe found
innote 21 to the financial statements onpages 90 and 91.

The Company undertook a share capital consolidation by which every 31 existing ordinary shares of 1 pence were subdivided and consolidated
into 30 new ordinary shares of 1 and 1/30 pence with effect from 16 April 2018. The purpose of the share consolidation was, as far as possible,
tomaintain the comparability of the Company's share price before and after payment of the Special Dividend.

Powers conferred on the Directors inrelation to issuing or buying back shares

Subject to applicable law and the Company's Articles of Association, the Directors may exercise all powers of the Company, including the power
to authorise the issue and/or market purchase of the Company's shares (subject to anappropriate authority being given to the Directars by
shareholders at ageneral meeting and any conditions attaching to such authority). The shareholders delegated the following powers inrelation
totheissuing or market purchase by the Company of its shares at the Company's 2018 AGM:

Issuing Shares
The Directors were granted authority to allot shares in the Company andto grant rights to subscribe for or to convert any security into shares
inthe Company:

(@ uptoanominal amountof £1,597934; and

(b) comprising equity securities up to anominal amount of £ 3,195,868 suchamount to be reduced by any allotments made under (a) above,
inconnectionwithanoffer by way of arights issue.
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The authorities conferred onthe Directars toallot securities under paragraphs (a) and (b) will expire on the date of the 2019 AGM, or close
of business on 2/ May 2019, whichever is sooner, (the Expiry Date). The Directors will be seeking anew authority at the 2019 AGMfor the

Directors toallot shares and to grant subscription and conversion rights to ensure that the Directors continue ta have the flexibility to act
inthebestinterests of shareholders when opportunities arise, by issuing new shares or granting such rights.

The Directors were also given authority to allot equity securities for cash or to sell ordinary shares as treasury shares for cash subject
tocertain limitations, such authority to apply until the Expiry Date. The Directors will seek tarenew this authority at the 2019 AGM.

Todate, neither authority has beenexercised. During the 2018 financial year, a total of 4,248, 289 ordinary shares inthe Company were issued
tosatisfy (g) Matching Share awards under the Company's UK SIPand, (b) the vesting of awards under the Company’s Performance Share Plan.
Of this total, 4,165,886 ordinary shares were issued pre the consolidation in April 2018, and 82,403 ordinary shares were issued post the
consolidationin April 2018 However, these do not count against the authorities granted by shareholders in accordance with the Act.

Buyback of shares

The Directors were granted authority to make market purchases of the Company’'s own shares on behalf of the Company up to a maximum of
approximately 10% of the Company's issued share capital. This standard authority is renewable annually and the Directors will seek to renew
thisauthority at the 2019 AGM.

Todate, this authority has not been exercised.

Rights and restrictions on shares and transfers of shares

Certainrestrictions, which are customary for a listed company, apply to the rights and transfers of ordinary shares inthe Company. The rights
and obligations attaching to the Company's ordinary shares, in addition to those conferred on their holders by law, are set out inthe Company's
Articles of Association, copies of which can be obtained from Companies House inthe UK or by writing to the Company Secretary. The key
points are summarised below.

Ordinary shares

Notice of meetings must be given to every shareholder and to any person entitled to a share unless the Articles of Association or the rights of
the shares say they are not entitled toreceive themfromthe Company. The Board can decide that only people who are entered on the register
of members at the close of business onaparticular day are entitled to receive the notice. On a show of hands at ageneral meeting every
member present inperson or by proxy shallhave one vote and, onapoll, every member present in person or by proxy shall have one vote
forevery ordinary share held. No shareholder holds ordinary shares which carry special rights relating to the control of the Company.

Dividends and distributions on winding up to shareholders

Holders of ordinary shares may receive interim dividends approved by Directors and dividends declared in general meetings. On a liquidation
and subject to a special resolution of the Company, the liquidator may divide among members in specie, the whole or any part of the assets of
the Company and may, for such purpose, value any assets and may determine how such division shall be carried out.

Transfers of ordinary shares

The Articles of Associationplace narestrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares or an the exercise of voting rights attached to themexcept:
(i) invery limited circumstances (such as atransfer to more than four persons) and (ii) where the Company has exercised ts rights to suspend
their vating rights or to prohibit their transfer following the omission by theirholder or any personinterestedin them, to provide the Company
withinformation requestedby it inaccordance with Part 22 of the Act. Restrictions on transfers may apply where the holder is precluded from
exercisingrights by the LRs, the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers ar any other regulations.

Dealings subject to Market Abuse Regulation

Pursuant to the Market Abuse Regulation and the Group's share dealing policy, Directors, other persons discharging managerial responsibilities
and certainemployees require the approval of the Company to deal inthe ordinary shares of the Company.

Exercise of rights of shares in employee share schemes

Awards over shares held by relevant participants under the Company's various share plans carry norights until the shares are issued to
participants or their nominees.

The Trustees of the Company's employee benefit trusts are entitled to vote onunallocated shares held in the trust fund from time to time but
they may consider, in their absolute discretion, any recommendations made to themby the Company before doing so. However, the trustee of
the SSP Group plc Share Plans Trust does not seek to exercise voting rights on existing shares held in the Share Plans Trust (see Note 21 for
further detailsonthe benefit trusts). Inrespect of allocated shares held by the Trustees as nominee (including the Trustees of the Company's
Share Incentive Plans), they must seek instructions from participants on how they should exercise their voting rights before doing so on

their behalf.
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Notification of major shareholdings

Information provided to the Company pursuant to the DTRs is published on aRegulatory Information Service and on the Company's website.
As at 30 September 2018, the following notifications of major shareholdings of 3% or more have been received by the Company under DTRS.

No. of ordinary shares and % of the Company'’s
Name voting rights notified* voting rights*
Old Mutual Global Investors (UK) Limited 45,020,035 9.71%
BlackRock, Inc. 41,967,095 8.83%
Artemis Investment Management LLP 35,067,425 7.38%
APG Asset Management Limited 33,613,765 7.07%
Marathon Asset Management LLP 28,119,834 5.92%
Schroders plc 23,720,071 4.99%
Legal & General Group plc (L&G) 23,554,235 4.96%
JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited and
JPMorgan Investment Management Inc 17,000,000 3.58%
GICPrivate Limited 15,007,263 3.16%
Norges Bank 14,293,152 3.01%

The following notificationwas received after 30 September 2018 and before 20 November 2018:

No. of ordinary shares and % of voting rights as at the
Name voting rights notified date of this report
Artemis Investment Management LLP 23,105,267 498%

* Atthe date of disclosure
Sofaras the Company is aware, no other personheld anotifiable interest in the ordinary share capital of the Company.

The holdings andvoting rights shown above are correct at the date of notification. It should be noted that these holdings may have changed
since the Company was notified including as aresult of the share consolidation that took place in April 2018 and given that notification of any
change is not required until the next notifiable threshold is crossed.

Directors
Particulars of the Directors in office at the date of thisreport are listed onpages 28 and 29.

Appointment and removal of Directors

The Company may, by ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company at a general meeting, remove any Director from office and elect
another personinplace of a Director soremaved from office, following arecommendation by the Nomination Committee in accordance with its
Terms of Reference for approval by the Board.

The processes for the appointment and replacement of Directors are governed by the Company's Articles of Association, the Code, the Act,
the LRsandrelated legislation. In accordance with the Code, all Directors stand for election at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) following their
appointment, and stand for re-election on an annual basis.

Powers of the Directors

Subject tothe Articles of Association, the Act and related legislation, any directions given by special resolution and any relevant statutes and
regulations, the business of the Company will be managed by the Board who may exercise all the powers of the Company.

Directors'interests

TheDirectors'interests in shares and options over ordinary shares in the Company are shown inthe Directors remuneration report on page 43.
Inline with the requirements of the Act, each Director has notified the Company of any situation in which he or she has, or could have, adirect
orindirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the interests of the Company (a situational conflict). These were considered
andapproved by the Board in accardance with the Company's Articles of Association in September 2018 (and inNovember 2018 inrespect of
CarolynBradley, appointed with effect from 1 October 2018) and each Director was informed of the authorisationand any terms onwhich it
was given. The Board has formal procedures to deal with Directors' conflicts of interest. The Board reviews and, where appropriate, approves
certainsituational conflicts of interest that are reported to it by Directors, and aregister of those situational conflicts is maintained and
continues tobe reviewed by the Board.

Directors'indemnities

The Company has made qualifying indemnity provisions, as defined by section 236 of the Act, of which the Directors had the benefit of during
the financial year ended 30 September 2018 and which remain in force at the date of this report. In addition, Directors and Officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries are covered by Directors'and Officers'liability insurance.
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Awards under employee share schemes

Details of the Group's employee share schemes and awards made during the year and held by Executive Directors as at 30 September 2018
are setoutinthe Annual report onremunerationonpages 41 to4/.

Details of awards made during the year and held by employees as at 30 September 2018 under the Performance Share Plan are disclosed in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements on page 93.

Controlling shareholders

Any personwho exercises or controls on theirown or together with any personwith whomthey are acting in concert, 30% or more of the votes
able tobecastonall or substantially all matters at general meetings of a company are known as ‘controlling shareholders’ The LRs require
companies with controlling shareholders to enter into awritten and legally binding agreement, which is intended to ensure that the controlling
shareholder complies with certain independence provisions.

As at 30 September 2018, the Company had no controlling shareholders.
Annual General Meeting

All holders of ordinary shares are entitled to attend the Company's AGM and all holders of ordinary shares onthe register at the relevant record
date are entitled toreceive the Notice of AGM, whichwill be posted at least 20 working days before the AGM. They are also entitled to speak

at general meetings of the Company, to appoint one or more proxies or, if they are corporations, corporate representatives, andto exercise
votingrights. Shareholders may vote and appoint proxies electronically. The Notice of AGM specifies deadlines far exercising voting rights and
appointing aproxy or proxies to vote inrelation toresolutions to be put to the AGM.

The 2019 AGMwillbe held on 21 February 2019. The results of the voting on resolutions will be made available to shareholders on the Group's
website after the meeting, At the meeting, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairmen of the Board Committees will alsa be present to
answer questions onany matters relating to the Group's business. Shareholders will also have an opportunity tomeet Directors informally
after the meeting,

Change of control

Contracts

There are anumber of contracts that allow the counterparties to alter or terminate those arrangements in the event of a change of control of
the Company. These arrangements are commercially sensitive and confidential, and their disclosure could be seriously prejudicial to the Group.

Other agreements

The Company does not have agreements with any Director or Officer that would provide compensation for loss of office or employment
resulting from atakeover, except that provisions of the Company's employee share plans may cause options and awards granted under such
planstovest onatakeover.

The Company's main credit facilities, being the committed bank facilities dated 16 June 2014 (as amended from time to time), containa
provisionsuchthat inthe event of achange of control, if alender sarequires and has notified the agent within 10 business days of the agent
notifying the lenders of the event, the commitment of that lender will be cancelledand all outstanding amounts, together with accruedinterest
under that commitment, will become repayable, on the date notified in writing by the agent that the relevant commitment has been cancelled
(where such date must not be fewer than 10 business days after the date of the notice).

The Company entered into anote purchase agreement (the NPA) on 9 August 2018 inrespect of aUS$1/5missue of US private placement
notes (the Nates'). The NPA contains a change of control provisionwhereby if any one person aragroup of persans acting in concert gain
Controlof the Company (as defined in the NPA), then the Company and SSP Financing Limited must give written notice of this to the holders
of the Nates. The written natice shall containan offer by the Company to prepay the entire unpaid principal amount of the Notes held by each
holder together with interest thereon.

Articles of Association
The Articles of Association of the Company may be amendedby a special resolution of the shareholders.

Political donations

The Company’s policy is not to make political donations. Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries, during the financial year ended

30 September 2018, made any political donationto apolitical party, other political organisation or independent election candidate,

or incurred any political expenditure or made any contribution to anon-EU political party. The Company will propose to shareholders at
the 2019 AGMthat a precautionary authority be granted of up to £25,000 in aggregate. Details are included in the 2019 Notice of AGM.

Environmental, social and governance risks

The Board has identified and assessed the significant environmental, social and governance risks to the Company's shart and long term
value, aswell as the opportunities to enhance value that may arise from improving its environmental performance. The Sustainability report
onpages 24 to 2/ reports on environmental matters, including the impact of the Group's businesses on the environment, the Group's annual
quantity of greenhouse emissions in tonnes of carban dioxide, the Group's employees, and on social and community issues.
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Treasury and risk management

The Group's financial riskmanagement objectives and policies, including its hedging policy, and the main risks arising fromthe Group's financial
assetsand liabilities are summarisedinnote 24 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 98.

Going concern

The financial information has been prepared on a going concern basis, in support of which, the Board has reviewed the Group's trading
forecastsfor thenext 1.2 months. These forecasts, whichinclude detailed cash flow projections, comprise assumptions as to sales and
profit performance by segment and by month, and take account of the normal seasonality profile of the business. As aresuilt, the Directors
are confident that the assumptions underlying their forecasts are reasonable and that the Group will be able to operate within its banking
covenants and available liquidity headroom.

Notwithstanding the above, there remains arisk that a downturninthe global economy couldresult in passenger numbers and consumer
spending in the travel market which are worse than the Board is currently envisaging. As aresult, the Directors have alsoreviewed forecasts
whichinclude sensitivities that make allowances for this risk. Should such a scenario arise, the Directors are confident that they have adequate
liquidity and covenant headroom to ensure that the Group can meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, the Directors believe that it is appropriate to prepare this financial information on a going concern basis.

Inaddition, inaccordance withthe Code, the Directors have assessed the prospects and viability of the Group over aperiod longer than the
12 months required by the Going Concern provision on page 23 of the Strategic report.

Auditor

The auditor, KPMGLLP has indicated its willingness to continue in office, and a resolution that it will be re-appointed will be proposed at the
2019 AGM.

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors

Inso faras each Director in office onthe date of thisreport is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's external

auditor is unaware, and the Directors have taken all the steps which they ought to have taken as Directors, to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establishthat the Company's external auditor is aware of that information. This confirmation is given and

should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Act.

Forward-looking statements

These reports andfinancial statements contain certain forward-looking statements which are subject to assumptions, risks and uncertainties,
and actual future results may differ materially from those expressedin, or implied in such statements. Many of these assumptions, risks
anduncertaintiesrelate tofactars that are beyondthe Company's ability to control or estimate precisely. The forward-looking statements
reflect the knowledge and information available at the date of preparation of this annual report, and will not be updated during the year.

These forward-looking statements include all matters that are not historical facts. They appear inanumber of places throughout this

annual report and include statements regarding the current intentions, beliefs or expectations of the Directors, the Company or the Group
concerning, among other things, the results of operations, financial condition, prospects, growth, strategies, and dividend policy of the
Company and the industry inwhich it operates. In particular, the statements regarding the Group's strategy and other future events or
prospects are forward-looking statements. Nothing in this annual report should be construed as a profit forecast.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

(1 B

Helen Byrne
General Counsel and Company Secretary

20November 2018
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITIES INRESPECT OF THE
ANNUAL REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TheDirectors areresponsible for preparing the annual report and the Group and parent company financial statements inaccordance with
applicable law andregulations.

Company lawrequires the Directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they
arerequiredtoprepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
Furopean Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU) and applicable law, and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements

on the same basis.

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true andfair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and parent company, and of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the Group and parent company
financial statements, the Directors are requiredto:
* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
* makejudgements and estimates that arereasonable, relevant andreliable;
* statewhether they have been preparedinaccordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EUL
* assess the Group and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and
* usethegoing cancern basis of accounting unless they either intendto liquidate the Group or the parent company, or to cease operations,

or have norealistic alternative but todo so.

The Directors areresponsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent company's
transactions and disclose withreasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company, and enable them to ensure that
its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary
toenable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group, andto prevent and detect fraud and
otherirregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are alsoresponsible for preparing a Strategic report, Directors'report, Directors'
remunerationreport and Corporate governance statement that complies with that law and those regulations.

The Directors areresponsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website
Legislation inthe UK governing the preparationand dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect of the annual financial report

We confirm that to the best of ourknowledge:

+ thefinancial statements, prepared inaccordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give atrue and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the cansolidation taken as awhole; and

* theStrategicreport/Directors'report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position
of the issuer and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as awhole, together with a description of the principal risks
anduncertainties that they face.

We consider the AnnualReport and Accounts, taken as awhole, to be fair, balanced and understandable, and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance, business model and strategy.

lhne

Kate Swann
Chief Executive Officer

20November 2018

Job_:.

Jonathan Davies
Chief Financial Officer

20November 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

SSP GROUP PLC ONLY

1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of SSP Group plc (the
'Company’) for the year ended 30 September 2018 which comprise

the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of

other comprehensive income, the consolidated balance sheet, the

consolidated statement of changes inequity, the consolidated cash

flow statement, Company balance sheet and Company statement

of changes inequity, and the related notes, including the accounting

policiesinnotes 1 and 30.

1. In our opinion:

* Thefinancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the

Group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 30 September
2018 and of the Group's profit for the year thenended;

* The Groupfinancial statements have been properly preparedin
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU);

* The parent company financial statements have beenproperly
prepared inaccordance with UK accounting standards, including
FRS101 ReducedDisclosure Framework; and

* Thefinancial statements have been preparedinaccordance with

the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, asregards the

Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit inaccordance with International Standards

onAuditing (UK) (15As (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities

are described below. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained s a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
opinion. Our audit opinionis consistent with our report to the
Audit Committee.

We were first appointed as auditor by the Directors on 20 September
2006. The period of totaluninterrupted engagement is for the
12financial years ended 30 September 2018. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and we remain independent of the
Group inaccordance with, UK ethical requirements including the
FRCEthical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities.

No non-audit services prohibited by that standard were provided.

Overview

Materiality: £9.1m(2017:£10.5m)

Group financial 5.0% of Group Profit before tax
statements as awhole (2017:0.4% of Group revenue)

Coverage 77%(2017:77%) of total profits and losses

that made up Group Profit before tax

Risks of material
misstatement vs 2017

Recurring risks Recoverability of goodwill and indefinite
life intangible assets and of parent's
investmentinsubsidiary undertaking <>

Completeness, existence and
accuracy of current and deferred tax <

2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements and
include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those which
hadthe greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement
team. We summarise below the key audit matters (refined comparedto prior years), in decreasing order of audit significance, in arriving at our
audit opinion above, together with our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for public interest entities, our results
from those pracedures. These matters were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken, inthe cantext of, and solely for
the purpose of, our audit of the financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are incidental to that

opinion, and we do not provide a separate opinionon these matters.

Therisk Our response

Recoverability of goodwill ~ Forecast-based valuation
and indefinite life intangible The valuation of goodwillandintangible
assets and of parent’s assetsandparent’sinvestmentin
investment in subsidiary subsidiary undertaking is inherently
undertaking. judgemental due to the subjectivity and
uncertainty involvedin selecting the
(Goodwill and indefinite appropriate key assumptions and preparing
lifeintangible assets future discounted cash flows. SSP Group
2018:£704.4m; 2017: is subject toanumber of internal and
£688.5m; investment externalfactors, which may influence
in subsidiaries 2018: itstradinginthe short term, as wellas

£939.7m,2017:£932.1m)  the Group's long termstrategy. These
. include economic and politicaluncertainty,
Eefert':tpagRe 35 (tA)Udlt tendering, competition, passenger travel
78'2;%[ 183 (Aecpcoorur{tFi)r?ge trends. The carrying amount of the Group's
licies) and 82 g goodwilland indefinite life assets, and the

podlcllgsg E;‘? pa_gel parent company's cost of investmentsin
3'.1 | (financia subsidiary, is significant, representing 45%

isclosures). of total Group assets and 99% of total
Company assets. Whilst the estimate of the
recoverability of both of these amountsis
inherently subjective, there has historically
beenasufficientlevel of headroomin
the Director's impairment calculations.
We did notidentify any indicators which
would haveresulted in the recoverability
of these balance being subject to highrisk
of material misstatement. However, due
to their materiality in the context of their
relevant financial statements, they are
considered tobe two of the areas that had
the greatest effect onour overall audit of
the Group and the parent company.

Our procedures included:

* Our sector experience: We corroborated our understanding of any changes
inthe business with the Group's forecasts and considered whether or not
these had beenappropriately capturedinthe impairment models;

* Ourvaluation expertise: Our valuation specialists assisted usinassessing
appropriateness of the methodology and assumptions used by the Group,
including discountrates;

* Benchmarking assumptions: We challenged and compared the Group's
assumptions to externally derived data, industry norms and our expectation
based onourknowledge and experience of the Group, inrelationtokey inputs
suchas projected market growth, future capital expenditure levels, revenue
growthrates, cost projections and inflation;

* Sensitivity analysis: We have used KPMG's proprietary data analytics software
tool to prepare multiple scenarios sensitising assumptions in concertand
show instantaneous valuations for multiple assumption changes. We applied
sensitivities to key assumptions to assess theirimpact on the recoverability
of the assets;

* Historical comparisons: We evaluated the historical accuracy of the Group's
forecasts by comparingbudget toactualresults;

» Comparing valuations: \We compared the results of discounted cash flows
against the Group's market capitalisation, after adjusting for its net debt
toassess thereasonableness of those cash flows; and
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Therisk Our response

 Assessing transparency: We also considered the adequacy of the Group's
disclosure of the key risks and sensitivity around the outcome, and whether that
disclosurereflected therisks inherent in the valuation of goodwill and indefinite
lifeintangible assets.

* Valuation of parent company’s investment in subsidiary undertaking:
We compared investment book value to the underlying fair value of the
subsidiary based onadiscounted cash flow model.

Our results
We found the resulting estimates of the following to be acceptable:

* Recoverable amount of goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets in the
Group's financial statements; and

* Recoverableamount of investment in the parent company’s

financial statements.

Completeness of
income tax provision
and recoverability
of deferred tax.

(Net current tax liability
£23.5m;2017:£22.0m,
and net deferred tax
asset:
£11.3m;2017:£9.0m)

Refer to page 35 (Audit
Committee report),
page72and 102
(Accounting policies)
and page 67 and 84

Subjective estimate

Managing taxationrisks and calculations
acrossjurisdictions is acomplex

and highly technical process. SSP

Group operates in many different tax
jurisdictions, which have different rules
that canbe complex and judgemental.
There may therefore be tax exposures at
thelocallevel.

Inaddition, as the Group's profitability
profile changes in the various jurisdictions
inwhich it operates, judgement will be
required to establish the appropriateness
of recognising deferred tax assets and
their recoverability given the timing and

(financial disclosures). level of future taxable income.

Our procedures included:
* Our tax expertise: We used our own tax specialists to assist us inassessing and

challenging the assumptions and judgements made by the Group. We considered
all significant differences between the statutory and effective ratesineach
jurisdictionand assessed whether adjustments fromaccounting profit to
taxable profitareinaccordance with local laws. We considered whether the tax
provisions made by the Group and the underlying assumptions are appropriate.

Our sector experience: Inassessing the Group's calculations, we have used
ourknowledge of recent tax cases and our awareness of the patternof recent
tax settlements. We have also considered developments in the attitudes of
taxauthorities globally and discussed issues with the Directors inorder to
determine whether the tax provisions made by the Group were reasonable.

Comparing assumptions: Inassessing the level of deferred tax asset balances
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet, we compared the assumptions
usedinrespect of future taxable income to the Group's long-term forecasts and
budget for the relevantjurisdictions.

Sensitivity analysis: We considered whether the improving performancein
certainjurisdictions, where there were unrecognised deferred tax assets,
amounted to convincing evidence, sufficient to support the recognition of
deferredtaxassets. Inaddition to profitability, we also considered other
factors, suchas the expected timing of reversal of temporary differences, any
restrictionsinaccessing such temporary differences, and other qualitative
factors specific to each of thejurisdictions in question.

Assessing transparency: We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's
disclosuresinrespectof currentand deferred taxes.

Our results
We found the level of the following to be acceptable:

Completeness of income tax provision; and
Recoverability of deferred tax asset.

3. Our application of materiality and an
overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group financial statements as awhole was set at
£9.1m, determined withreference to abenchmark of Group profit
before taxof £182.9m(2017: £144.8m), of which it represents 5%.
We haverevisedthe benchmark used for materiality calculation
fromrevenuein 201/ to profit before taxin the current year as

we now cansider it to be an appropriate metric for measuring the
Group's performance.

Materiality for the parent company financial statements as awhole
was set at £84m (2017:£84m), determined withreferencetoa
benchmark of Company total assets, of which it represents 1%
(2017:1%).

We reported to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected
identified misstatements exceeding £0.5m (201 7:£0.5m), in addition
toother identified misstatements that warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds.

Of the Group's 15(2017/: 15) reporting components, we subjected
nine (201/:nine) to full scope audits for Group purposes.

The components within the scope of our work accounted for the
percentages illustrated opposite.

Theremaining 22% of tatal Group revenue, 23% of total profits and
losses that made up Group profit before taxand 16% of total Group
assetsisrepresentedby sixreporting components, none of which
individually represented more than 8% of any of the total Group
revenue, Group profit befare taxor total Group assets. For these
residual components, we performed analysis at anaggregated Group
level tore-examine our assessment that there were no significant
risks of material misstatement within these.

The Group audit team instructed component auditors as to the
significant areas tobe covered, including the relevant risks detailed
above andthe information to be reportedback. The Group audit
team approved the component materiality, whichranged from£0.1 m
tof83m(201/:£0.1mto£84m) havingregardto the mix of size
andrisk profile of the Group across the companents. The work on
nine (2017:nine) of the Group's 15 components was performed by
component auditors andthe rest including the audit of the parent
company was performed by the Group audit team.

In 2018, the Group audit team visited eight of the fifteen (2017/: three)
component locations. Video and telephone conference meetings
were also held with these component auditors and the majority of the
others that were not physically visited. At these visits and meetings,
the findings reported to the Group audit teamwere discussedin
more detail.
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Group profit before taxation
£1829m(201/:£144.8m)

Group materiality

£9.1m(2017:£10.5m)

£9.1m

Whole financial statements materiality (2017: £10.5m)

£8.3m

Range of materiality at nine components (£0.1m to £8.3m) (2017:£0.1mto £8.4m)

Group PBT
Group materiality

Total profits and losses that
made up Group profit before tax

Group revenue

=

(2017:80%)

/7%

(2017:77%)

£0.5m

Misstatements reported to the Audit Committee (2017: £0.5m)

Group total assets

84%

(2017: 84%)

B Full scope for Group audit purposes 2018 M Full scope for Group audit purposes 2017/

[JResidual components

4. We have nothing to report
on going concern
Wearerequiredtorepaorttoyouif:

* wehave anythingmaterial to add or draw attention to inrelation to
the Directors'statement in note 1 tothe financial statements on
the use of the gaing concernbasis of accounting with nomaterial
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt over the Group and
Company's use of that basis for aperiod of at least 1.2 months from
the date of approval of the financial statements; or

* iftherelatedstatement under the Listing Rules set out onpage 55
ismaterially inconsistent with our audit knowledge.

We have nothing toreport intheserespects.

5. We have nothing to report on the other
information in the annual report

TheDirectors areresponsible for the other information presented in
the annualreport together with the financial statements. Our opinion
onthe financial statements does not cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion ar, except as explicitly
stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether, based on our financial statements audit work,
the information thereinis materially misstated or inconsistent with
the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on
that work we have not identified material misstatementsin the
other information.

Strategic report and Directors’ report
Based solely onourwork on the other information:

* wehave not identified material misstatementsin the
Strategicreport and the Directors'report;

* inouropinion the information given inthosereports for the
financial year is consistent with the financial statements; and

* inouropinionthosereports have beenpreparedinaccordance
withthe Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ remuneration report

Inour opinion the part of the Directors'remuneration report
tobe auditedhas been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006.

Disclosures of principal risks and longer-term viability

Based onthe knowledge we acquired during our financial statements
audit, we have nothing material to add or drawattentionto inrelation to:

* theDirectors'confirmation within the Viability statement on page
23 thattheyhave carried out arobust assessment of the principal
risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its
business model, future performance, solvency and liquidity;

* theprincipal risks disclosures describing these risks and explaining
how they are being managed and mitigated; and

* theDirectors'explanationin the Viability statement of how they
have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period
theyhave done so and why they considered that periodto be
appropriate, andtheir statement as towhether they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in
operation andmeet its liabilities as they fall due over the period
of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing
attentiontoanynecessary qualifications or assumptions.

Under the Listing Rules we are requiredto review the Viability
statement. We have nothing toreport inthis respect.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SSP GROUP PLCONLY CONTINUED

Corporate Governance disclosures
Wearerequiredtoreport toyouif:

* wehave identifiedmaterial inconsistencies betweenthe
knowledge we acquired during our financial statements audit
and the Directors'statement that they consider that the annual
report and financial statements taken as awhole is fair, balanced
andunderstandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance,
business modelandstrategy; or

* the section of the annual report describing the work of the Audit
Committee does not appropriately address matters communicated
by us to the Audit Committee.

We arerequiredtoreport toyouif the Corporate Governance
statement does not properly disclose adeparture fromthe eleven
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified by the
Listing Rules for our review.

We have nothing toreport in theserespects.
Based solely on our work onthe other information described above:

* withrespect to the Corporate Governance report disclosures
about internal control andrisk management systems inrelation to
financialreporting processes and about share capital structures:

¢ we have not identified material misstatements therein; and

* theinformation thereinis consistent with the financial
statements; and

* inouropinion, the Corporate Governance report hasbeen prepared
inaccordance withrelevant rules of the Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority.

6. We have nothing to report on the other
matters on which we are required to report
by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are requiredtoreport toyouif, in
our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not beenkept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not beenreceived
frombranchesnot visited by us; or

* the parent company financial statements andthe part of the
Directors'remunerationreport to be audited are not inagreement
with the accountingrecords andreturns; or

* certaindisclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are
not made; or

* wehavenotreceivedall the information and explanations we
require for our audit.

We have nothing toreport in these respects.

7. Respective responsibilities

Directors' responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out onpage 60,
theDirectors areresponsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements including being satisfied that they give a true andfair
view; suchinternal controlas they determine isnecessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free frommaterial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group and
parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, mattersrelated to going concern; and using the going
concernbasis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate
the Group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtainreasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as awhole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud, other irregularities (see below), or error, and
toissue our opinioninanauditor's report. Reasonable assurance
isahigh level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit
conductedin accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect amaterial
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from

fraud, other irregularities or error and are considered material if,
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expectedto
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.

Afuller description of our responsibilities is provided onthe FRC's
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

Irreguilarities - ability to detect

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be
expectedtohave a material effect onthe financial statements from
our sector experience and through discussion with the Directors (as
required by auditing standards).

Wehadregardtolaws andregulations inareas that directly affect
the financial statements including financial reporting (including
related company legislation) and taxation legislation. We considered
the extent of compliance with those laws and regulations as part of
our procedures onthe related financial statement items.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our
team, which included individuals with experience relevant to those
laws andregulations and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit. This included communication from
the Group to component audit teams of relevant laws and regulations
identified at group level, witharequest toreport onany indications
of potential existence of non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations (irregularities) inthese areas, or other areas directly
identified by the component team.

Aswithany audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection

of non-compliance withrelevant laws and regulations, as these may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
orthe override of internal controls.

8. The purpose of our audit work and
to whom we owe our responsibilities

Thisreport is made solely to the Company's members, as abody, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has beenundertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matterswe arerequiredtostate to
theminan auditor'sreport and for no other purpose. Tothe fullest
extent permitted by law, we donot accept or assume responsibility
toanyone other than the Company and the Company's members,
asabody, for our audit work, for thisreport, or for the opinians we
have formed.

Nicholas Frost

(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 CanadaSquare

London, E14 5GL

Z0November 2018



65 ‘ SSP Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018 Strategicreport Corporate governance Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 30 September 2018

2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
Underlying* Adjustments Total  Underlying* Adjustments Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 3 2,564.9 - 2,564.9 23791 - 23791
Operating costs 5 (2,369.7) (1.9) (2,371.6) (2,216.2) (1.9) (2,218.1)
Operating profit 195.2 (1.9 1933 162.9 (1.9) 161.0
Share of profit of associates 12 4.8 - 4.8 34 - 34
Finance income 7 1.9 0.9 2.8 0.9 - 0.9
Finance expense 7 (17.5) (0.5) (18.0) (18.5) (2.0 (20.5)
Profit before tax 1844 (1.5) 1829 148.7 (3.9) 144.8
Taxation 8 (40.5) 0.3 (40.2) (33.8) 0.2 (33.6)
Profit for the year 143.9 (1.2) 142.7 1149 (3.7) 111.2
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1184 (1.2) 117.2 96.5 (3.7) 92.8
Non-controlling interests 21 255 - 255 184 - 184
Profit for the year 1439 (1.2) 142.7 114.9 (3.7) 111.2
Earnings per share (pence):
- Basic 4 25.1 24.9 203 19.5
- Diluted 4 248 245 20.0 19.2

* Presented onanunderlyingbasis, refer to page 16 for details.



66 ‘ SSP Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 30 September 2018

2018 2017

Notes £m £m
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
[tems that will never be reclassified to the income statement:
Remeasurements on defined benefit pension schemes 19 0.1 6.1
Tax charge relating to items that will not be reclassified (0.5) (0.9)
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to the income statement:
Net loss on hedge of net investment in foreign operations (1.0 (1.5)
Other foreign exchange translation differences (6.8) (20.1)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 13 1.2
Cash flow hedges -reclassified to income statement 45 4.0
Tax charge relating to items that are or may be reclassified (0.2) (04)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (2.6) (11.6)
Profit for the year 142.7 111.2
Total comprehensive income for the year 140.1 99.6
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 115.8 83.9
Non-controlling interests 21 243 157
Total comprehensive income for the year 140.1 99.6
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

asat 30 September 2018

2018 2017
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 3714 304.5
Goodwill and intangible assets 11 731.2 714.2
Investments in associates 12 10.6 6.8
Deferredtaxassets 13 237 213
Otherreceivables 15 49.2 40.5
Other financial assets 24 51 10.3
1,191.2 1,0976
Current assets
Inventories 14 351 326
Taxreceivable 20 0.1
Trade and other receivables 15 178.0 1354
Cashand cash equivalents 16 1478 178.1
362.9 346.2
Total assets 1,554.1 1,443.8
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 17 (31.5) (31.4)
Trade and other payables 18 (499.7) (419.9)
Tax payable (25.5) (22.1)
Provisions 20 (3.4) (3.7)
Obligation to acquire additional share of subsidiary undertaking 28 (20.5) -
(580.6) (477.1)
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 17 (456.1) (419.2)
Post-employment benefit obligations 19 (13.0) (13.9)
Other payables 18 (2.5) -
Provisions 20 (28.0) (26.4)
Derivative financial liabilities (3.2) (9.0)
Deferred tax liabilities 13 (12.4) (12.3)
Obligation to acquire additional share of subsidiary undertaking 28 - (20.9)
(515.2) (501.7)
Total liabilities (1,095.8) (978.8)
Net assets 458.3 465.0
Equity
Share capital 21 4.8 47
Share premium 21 461.2 461.2
Capitalredemptionreserve 21 1.2 1.2
Otherreserves 21 (13.0) (11.5)
Retained losses (77.7) (55.3)
Total equity shareholders’ funds 376.5 400.3
Non-controlling interests 21 818 64.7
Total equity 458.3 465.0

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 November 2018 and were signed on its behalf by:

90)-

Jonathan Davies
Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY

for the year ended 30 September 2018

Capital Retained Total Non-
Share Share redemption Other earnings/ parent controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserves (losses) equity interests  equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 October 2016 47 461.2 1.2 215 (138.0) 3506 321 3827
Profit for the year - - - - 92.8 92.8 184 111.2
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year - - - (14.1) 52 (8.9) (2.7) (11.6)
Non-controlling interest arising on acquisition - - - - - - 214 214
(note 28)
Obligation to acquire non-controlling interest - - - (18.9) - (18.9) - (18.9)
(note 28)
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests - - - - - - 84 8.4
(note 21)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders (note 9) - - - - (29.0) (29.0) - (29.0)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (note 21) - - - - - - (12.9) (12.9)
Share-based payments - - - - 11.9 119 - 11.9
Tax onshare schemes - - - - 18 18 - 18
At 30 September 2017 47 461.2 1.2 (11.5) (55.3) 400.3 647  465.0
Profit for the year - - - - 117.2 117.2 255 142.7
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - - (1.0) (0.4) (1.4) (1.2) (2.6)
Increase innon-controlling interest equity - - - (0.5) - (0.5) 2.0 1.5
Issue of shares 0.1 - - - - 0.1 - 0.1
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests - - - - - - 124 124
(note 21)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders (note 9) - - - - (145.8) (145.8) - (145.8)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (note 21) - - - - - - (21.6) (21.6)
Share-based payments - - - - 4.6 4.6 - 4.6
Tax onshare schemes - - - - 20 2.0 - 20

At 30 September 2018 4.8 461.2 1.2 (13.0) (77.7) 376.5 81.8 4583
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CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 September 2018
2018 2017

Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flow from operations 23 310.1 280.2
Tax paid (37.2) (33.3)
Net cash flows from operating activities 2729 246.9
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends received from associates, net of increase ininvestment 12 1.3 38
Interestreceived 19 0.9
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 10 (146.6) (107.4)
Purchase of other intangible assets 11 (10.0) (7.6)
Acquisitions in the year, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired 28 (19.0) (27.5)
Disposal of associate 12 - 73
Net cash flows from investing activities (172.4) (130.5)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (31.5) (31.6)
Drawdown onrevolving credit facility 70.0
Repayment of finance leases and other loans (1.7) (1.7)
Realisation/(investment) in other financial assets 5.2 (9.5)
Refinancing fee paid (2.0 -
Interest paid (13.5) (15.4)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders 9 (145.8) (29.0)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests, net of equity issued to them 21 (19.6) (12.9)
Loantoassociate (4.2) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests 21 124 8.4
Net cash flows from financing activities (130.7) (91.7)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (30.2) 247
Cashand cash equivalents at beginning of the year 178.1 155.8
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents (0.1) (2.4)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 147.8 1781
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Net (decrease)/increase in cashin the year (30.2) 247
Cash (inflow)/outflow from movement in debt and finance leases (36.8) 333
Cash (inflow)/outflow from investment in other financial assets (5.2) 9.5
Change innet debt resulting from cash flows (72.2) 67.5
Translation differences (1.0 (3.4)
Other non-cash changes 0.7 (1.4)
Loans and other financial assets acquired through business combination - (7.5)
(Increase)/decrease in net debt in the year (72.5) 55.2
Net debt at beginning of the year (262.2) (3174)
Net debt at end of the year 24 (334.7) (262.2)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation

SSP Group ple (the Company) is acompany incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006. The Group financial
statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group) and equity-account the Group's interest
initsassociates. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the EUandthe Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under [FRS.

The financial statements are presented in Sterling, which is the Company's functional currency. Allinformation is givento the nearest £0.1m.

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except inrespect of the derivative financial instruments that are stated
at their fair value.

The accounting policies set out belowhave, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

1.2 Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Board has reviewed the Group's trading forecasts for the next
12months. These forecasts, which include detailed cash flow projections, comprise assumptions as to sales and profit performance by
segment and by month, and take account of the normal seasonality profile of the business. As aresult, the Directors are confident that the
assumptions underlying their forecasts are reasonable and that the Group will be able to operate within its banking covenants and available
liquidity headroom.

Notwithstanding the above, however, there remains arisk that adownturnin the global economy couldresult in passenger numbers and
consumer spending in the travel market that are worse thanthe Board is currently envisaging. As aresult, the Directors have also reviewed
forecasts that include sensitivities that make allowance for this risk. Should such a scenario arise, the Directors are confident they have
adequate liquidity and covenant headroom to ensure that the Group can meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, the Directors believe that it is appropriate to prepare these financial statements on a going concernbasis.

Inaddition, inaccordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Directors have assessedthe prospects and viability of the Group over
alonger period thanthe 12 months required by the Going Concern provision. Further details of this assessment are provided on page 23 of the
Strategic report.

1.3 Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of the Group consolidate the results of the Company and its subsidiary entities, together with the Group's
attributable share of the results of associates. All intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised profits and losses arising from
intragroup transactions, have been eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is the power ta direct the relevant activities of the subsidiary that significantly affect
the subsidiary's return so as ta have rights to the variable return fromits activities.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even
if doing sa causes the non-controlling interests to have adeficit balance.

Associates
Anassaciate isanundertaking inwhich the Group has a long-term equity interest and over which it has the power to exercise significant
influence.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognised at cost (including transaction costs). The Group's interest
inthe net assets of associates isrepartedas an investment on the consolidated balance sheet and its interest intheir results are included
inthe consolidated income statement below the Group's operating profit. The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified
onacquisition, net of any accumulated impairment losses. The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the total
comprehensive income and equity movements of equity-accounted investees, from the date that significant influence commences until the
date that significant influence ceases. Whenthe Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying
amount of the Group's investment is reducedto niland recognition of further losses are discontinued except ta the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of an investee.

Investments in associates are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The impairment review compares the net carrying value with the recoverable amount, where the recoverable amount is the
higher of the value inuse, calculated as the present value of the Group's share of the associates' future cash flows and the fair value less costs
of disposal.
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1.4 Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at the foreign exchange rate at

the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated to
thefunctional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised
inthe income statement, except for differences arising on the retranslation of a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment
inaforeignoperationthat is effective, or qualifying cash flow hedges, which are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost ina foreign currency are translated using the exchange

rate at the date of the transaction.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated to the
Group's presentation currency, Sterling, at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The revenues and expenses of foreign
operations are translated at an average rate for the period where this rate approximates to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising fromthis translation of foreign operations are reported as an item of other comprehensive income and
accumulated inthe translation reserve or non-controlling interest, as appropriate. When a foreign operation is disposed of, such that cantral,
joint control or significant influence is lost, the entire accumulated amount in the foreign currency translation reserve, net of amounts
previously attributed to non-controlling interests, is recycled to the income statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while still retaining control, the relevant proportion of
the accumulated amount isreattributed to nan-controlling interests. When the Group disposes of only part of its investment in an associate
or joint venture that includes aforeign operation while still retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is recycled to the income statement.

Exchange differences arising fromamonetary itemreceivable fromor payable to a foreign operation, the settlement of which is neither
plannednor likely inthe foreseeable future, are consideredto formpart of anet investment in a foreign operation and are recognised directly
inequity in the translation reserve. Foreign currency differences arising on the retranslation of ahedge of anet investment in a foreign
operationarerecognised directly inequity, inthe translation reserve, ta the extent that the hedge is effective. When the hedged part of anet
investment is disposed of, the associated cumulative amount in equity is recycled to the income statement as an adjustment ta the profit or
lossondisposal.

1.5 Classification of financial instruments issued by the Group
Financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the following two conditions:

(@) theyincludeno contractual obligations upan the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange financial assets or financial
liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Group; and

(b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company's own equity instruments, it is either anon-derivative that includes no
obligation to deliver a variable number of the Company's own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the Company
exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for afixed number of its own equity instruments.

Tothe extent that this definitionis not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as afinancial liability.

1.6 Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, loans and borrowings, andtrade and other payables.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and otherreceivables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Other financial assets
Other financial assets comprise money market funds that are not readily convertible to cash. These are held on the balance sheet at
amortised cost.

Trade and other payables
Trade andother payables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Cashand cash equivalents
Cashand cash equivalents comprise cash balances and short-term deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and forman
integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Interest-bearingborrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

1. Accounting policies continued

1.7 Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financialinstruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately
inthe income statement. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends onthe
nature of the itembeing hedged.

Cashflowhedges

Where aderivative financial instrument is designated as ahedge of the variability in cash flows of arecognised asset or liability, or a highly
probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss onthe derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in the cash
flow hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of the hedge isrecognisedimmediately in the income statement.

If ahedge of aforecast transaction subsequently results inthe recognition of a financial asset or afinancial liability, the associated gains and
losses that were recognised directly in equity are recycled into the income statement in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquiredor liability assumed affects profit or loss, e, when interest income or expense isrecognised.

For cashflow hedges, other thanthose covered by the preceding two policy statements, the associated cumulative gain or loss is removed
fromequity and recognised in the income statement in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit
orloss.

Fair value hedges
Where aderivative financial instrument is designated as ahedge of the variability in fair value of arecognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment, all changes inthe fair value of the derivative are recagnised immediately inthe income statement.

The carrying value of the hedged item s adjusted by the change in fair value that is attributable to the risk beinghedged (evenif it isnormally
carried at cost or amortised cost) and any gains or losses onremeasurement are recognised immediately in the income statement (even if
those gains would normally be recognised directly inreserves).

1.8 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Where parts of anitemof property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property,
plantandequipment.

Leases inwhich the Group assumes substantially all therisks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are classified as finance leases.
Leased assets acquired by way of a finance lease are stated at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the

minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciationis chargedto the income statement onastraight-line basis over the estimated usefullives of each part of anitemof property,
plantand equipment. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

* Freeholdbuildings 50years

* Leaseholdbuildings thelife of the lease
* Plantandmachinery 3to13years

* Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment 3to13years

1.9 Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the date at which controlis
transferredtothe Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is measured at fair value as are the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired. The excess of the fair value of consideration transferred aver the fair value of net assets acquired is accounted for as goodwill.

Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Transaction costs are expensedas incurred.

Non-controlling interests arising from acquisition are accounted for based on the proportionate share of the fair value of identifiable net
assets. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus
the non-controlling interests’share of subsequent changes inequity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests
evenif thisresults inthe non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where the Grouprecognises anon-controlling interest ina subsidiary, based on the rights the non-controlling interest have to their share
of thereturns of such subsidiaries, the Group recognises obligations to acquire additional shares in these subsidiary undertakings as a
liability in the consolidated balance sheet at the present value of the estimated exercise price of the forward contract. The present value of
the obligationis estimated based on expected earnings in Board-approved forecasts and the choice of a suitable discount rate. Upon initial
recognitionacorresponding entry ismade to other equity. For subsequent changes inthe measurement of the liability the corresponding
entry ismade to the consolidated income statement.

1.10 Acquisitions and disposals of non-controlling interests

Acquisitions and disposals of non-controlling interests that donot result ina change of control are accounted for as transactions with owners
in their capacity as owners and, therefore, no goodwill is recognised as aresult of such transactions. The adjustments to non-controlling
interests arebased onaproportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary. Any difference between the price paid orreceived and the
amount by which non-controlling interests are adjustedis recognised directly inequity and attributedto the owners of the parent company.
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1.11 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill
Goodwillis allocated to cash-generating units (CGUs) and is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment. Goodwill is stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.

Indefinite life intangible assets
Indefinite life intangible assets relate to brands recognised on acquisition of the SSP business in 2006. Intangible assets with an indefinite
useful life and goodwill are systematically tested for impairment at each balance sheet date.

Definite life and software intangible assets
Definite life intangible assets, consisting mainly of brands and franchise agreements and software, that are acquired/purchased by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisationand accumulated impairment losses.

Expenditure oninternally generated goodwill and brands isrecognised in the income statement as an expense is incurred.

Amortisation
Amortisationis charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets (between 3 and
14 years)unless such lives are indefinite. Other intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use.

1.12 Inventories

Inventories comprise goods purchasedfor resale and consumable stores and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost s calculated using the ‘first in first out'method.

1.13 Impairment excluding inventories and deferred tax assets

Financial assets (including receivables)

Afinancial asset not carried at fair value through the income statement is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired (with a charge to the income statement) if objective evidence indicates that
aloss eventhas occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event has had anegative effect onthe estimated future
cashflows of that asset, which can be estimated reliably.

Animpairment loss inrespect of afinancial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Interest on the impaired
asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to
decrease, the decrease inimpairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

Non-financialassets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other thaninventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
Forgoodwilland intangible assets that have indefinite usefullives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated
eachperiodat the sametime.

Therecoverable amount of anasset or CGU is the greater of its value inuse and ts fair value less costs to sell. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cashinflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cashinflows of other assets or groups of assets. Subject to anoperating segment ceiling
test, for the purposes of goodwillimpairment testing, CGUs to which goodwill has beenallocated are aggregated so that the level at which
impairment is testedreflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business
combination s allocatedto CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit framthe synergies of the combination.

Animpairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses
arerecognisedin the income statement. Impairment losses recognised inrespect of CGUs are allocated first toreduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the units, and then toreduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) onaproratabasis.

Any subsequent reductioninanimpairment loss inrespect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, any subsequent reductioninan
impairment loss isreversed only to the extent the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if noimpairment loss had beenrecognised.

1.14 Employee benefits

Definedbenefit plans

Adefinedbenefit planis a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group's net obligation inrespect of
definedbenefit plans s calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting the amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit abligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the
calculationresults inapotential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of the economic benefits available
intheformof any future refunds from the plan or reductions infuture contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic
benefits, considerationis givento any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the
effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. Net interest expense and
other expensesrelated to defined plans are recagnised in the income statement.
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1. Accounting policies continued

1.14 Employee benefits continued

Definedbenefit plans continued

When the benefits of a plan are changed or whenaplanis curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gainor
loss on curtailment isrecognised immediately inthe income statement. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined
benefit planwhen the settlement occurs.

Defined contribution plans

Adefined contribution planis a post-employment benefit plan under which the employing company pays fixed contributions into aseparate
entity and willhave no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension
plans arerecognised as an expense in the income statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Short-termbenefits

Short-termemployee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.
Aliability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under a short-term cash bonus if the employing company has a present legal or
constructive obligationto pay this amount as aresult of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimatedreliably.

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value
excludes the effect of service and non-market-based vesting conditions.

The fairvalue determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, witha corresponding adjustment to equity reserves, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest.
At eachbalance sheet date, the Grouprevises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as aresult of service and
non-market-based vesting conditions. The impact of changes to the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the income statement such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to equity reserves.

1.15 Provisions

Aprovisionisrecognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligationas aresult of apast event, that can
bereliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at an appropriate rate.

1.16 Segment information

Segment information is provided based on the geographical segments that are reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker. Inaccordance
withthe provisions of [FRS 8 'Operational segments’ the Group's chief operating decision-maker is the Board of Directors. The operating
segments are aggregated if they meet certain criteria. Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment, as well as those that
canbeallocated onareasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly head office expenses, finance income, finance charges and income
tax.Nodisclosureis made for net assets/liabilities as these are not reported by segment to the chief operating decision-maker.

1.17 Revenue

Revenue represents amounts for retail goods and catering services supplied to third party customers (predominantly passengers) excluding
discounts, value-added taxand similar sales taxes.

Sale of goods
Revenue isrecognised at the paint of sale of food, beverage andretail goods.

Provision of catering services
Revenue isrecognisedinthe period in which services are provided.

1.18 Supplier income

The Group enters into agreements with suppliers to benefit from promotional activity and volume growth. Supplier incentives, rebates and
discounts are recognised within cost of sales as they are earned.

1.19 Underlying items

Underlying items are those that, in management's judgement, need to be disclosed by virtue of their size, nature or incidence, inorder to draw
the attention of the reader and to show the underlying business performance of the Group more accurately. Suchitems are included within the
income statement caption to which theyrelate, and are separately disclosed either in the notes to the consolidated financial statements or an
the face of the consolidated income statement.

1.20 Lease payments

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised inthe income statement onastraight-line basis over the termof the lease.
Contingent rent which is dependent onvariable factors, suchas unit sales, is recognised in the period inwhich it is incurred. Lease incentives
receivedarerecognisedin the income statement as an integral part of the total lease expense.

Finance lease payments
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is
allocatedtoeach period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
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1.21 Finance income and expense

Finance income comprises interest receivable on funds invested and net foreign exchange gains. Finance expense comprises interest payable,
finance charges on shares classified as liabilities, finance lease charges recognised in the income statement using the effective interest
method, the unwinding of the discount on provisions, and net foreign exchange losses that are recognised in the income statement.

Interest income and interest expense are recognised in the income statement as they accrue, using the effective interest method.
Foreign currency gains and losses arereported on anet basis.

1.22 Taxation

Taxonthe profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised inthe income statement except to the extent that
itrelatestoitemsrecogniseddirectly inequity, inwhich case it isrecognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable inrespect of previous periods.

Deferred taxis provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. No provision is made for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill; the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than inabusiness combination; and differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse inthe foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax
providedisbased on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Adeferredtaxasset isrecognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available, against which the temporary
difference canbe utilised.

1.23 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous year.

The following standards, issued by the IASB and endorsed by the EU, have not yet been adopted and unless otherwise stated are not expected
tohave amaterialimpact onthe Group:

IFRS 9'Financial Instruments' replaces 1AS 39 Financial instruments - Recognition and Measurement’ The standard (effective for the year
ending 30 September 2019) covers the classification, measurement, impairment and de-recognition of financial assets andliabilities and
provides newhedge accounting requirements. The Group continues to assess the impact of the new standard, but based on a preliminary
assessment, the Group believes that IFRS 9is not likely to have amaterialimpact onthe Group's financial statements.

IFRS 15'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (effective for the year ending 30 September 2019) is based on the principle that revenue is
recognised when control of goods or services is transferred to the customer. The standard provides a single, principles-based five-step model
tobe applied toall contracts with customers to determine whether, howmuch and whenrevenue is recognised. IFRS 15 replaces the separate
models for goods, services and construction contracts under IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts'and|AS 18'Revenue’ The Group continuesto
assess theimpact of the new standard, but based onapreliminary assessment, the Group believes that IFRS 15 will not have a materialimpact
on the timing and recognition of revenue.

IFRS 16Leases' (effective for the year ending 30 September 2020), requires lessees torecognise operating leases on the Group's balance
sheet, unless the lease term s less than 12 months or the underlying asset has alow value. The standard, which replaces IAS 17 eases;,

will giverise to the recognition of an asset representing the right-of-use of the leased item and arelated liability, being the present value of

the future lease payment obligations. Therefore, costs currently classified as operating lease costs will be reclassified and split between

the depreciation of the asset on a straight-line basis, and interest on the lease liability. This reclassification will increase EBITDA, with
correspondingincreases in the depreciation charge and interest expense. IFRS 16 can either be applied onafully retrospective basis, which will
require the restatement of comparative prior periods, or the cumulative retrospective impact can be applied as an adjustment to equity on the
date of adoption of the standard. The Group is currently working on an implementation planand on an adoption approach. The Group expects
IFRS 16 to have amaterial impact on the Group's consolidated results, with an associated impact on both assets and liabilities.

2. Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions concerning
the future. Theresulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. These estimates and assumptions are
based onhistorical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and assumptions
thathave a significant risk of causing amaterial adjustment to the carrying value of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussedbelow.
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2. Significant accounting estimates and judgements continued

Goodwill and intangible assets

The Group recognises goodwill and intangible assets that have arisen through acquisitions. These assets are subject to impairment reviews
to ensure that the assets are not carried above their recoverable amounts. For goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets, reviews are
performedannually. For other intangible assets, reviews are performed if events or circumstances indicate that thisis necessary.

Therecoverable amounts of CGUs or groups of CGUs have been determined based onvalue inuse calculations. These calculationsrequire the
use of estimates and assumptions consistent with the most up-to-date budgets and plans that have beenformally approved by the Board.
Thekeyassumptionsused for the value inuse calculations are set out innote 11 tothese financial statements.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is requiredto determine the corporate tax provision in each of the many jurisdictions in which it operates. During the ardinary
course of business, there are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate determination is uncertain. As aresult the Group recognises
taxliabilities based on estimates of whether additional taxes and interest will be due. The recognition of taxbenefits and assessment of
provisions against tax benefits requires management judgement. In particular the Group is routinely subject to tax audits in many jurisdictions,
which by their nature are often complexand cantake several years toresolve. Provisions are based on management's interpretation of
country specific taxlawandthe likelihood of settlement, and have been calculated using the single best estimate of likely outcome approach.
Management takes advice fromin-house tax specialists and professional tax advisars, and uses previous experience to inform its judgements.
Tothe extent that the outcome differs from the estimates made, tax adjustments may be required in future periods.

The evaluation of recoverability of deferredtaxassets requires judgements to be made regarding the availability of future taxable income.
Management therefore recognises deferred taxassets only where it believes it is probable that such assets will be realised, taking account of
current levels of profitability and forecasts prepared for budgets and the Group's Medium Term Plan (as referred to in the viability statement in
therisk management section of the Strategic report).

3. Segmental reporting
SSPoperates in the food and beverage travel sector, mainly at airports and railway stations.

Management monitors the performance and strategic priorities of the business fromageographic perspective, and in thisregard has
identified the following four key Teportable segments” the UK, Continental Europe, North America and the Rest of the World (RoW). The UK
includes operations in the UnitedKingdom and the Republic of Ireland; Continental Europe includes operations in the Nordic countries,
Western Europe and Southern Europe; North America includes operations in the United States and Canada; and RoW includes operations in
EasternEurope, the Middle East, AsiaPacificandIndia. These segments comprise countries which are at similar stages of development and
demonstrate similar economic characteristics.

The Group's management assesses the performance of operating segments based on revenue andunderlying operating profit.

Interest income and expenditure are not allocatedto segments, as they are managed by a central treasury function, which oversees the debt
and liquidity position of the Group. The non-attributable segment comprises of costs associated with the Group's head office function and the
depreciation of central assets. Revenue is measuredinamanner consistent with that inthe income statement.

Continental North Non-

UK Europe America RoW attributable Total
2018 Em £m Em £m £m £m
Revenue 798.1 9717 436.3 358.8 - 2,564.9
Underlying operating profit/(loss) 89.5 79.5 277 357 (37.2) 195.2
2017
Revenue 7877 910.3 3729 308.2 - 23791
Underlying operating profit/(loss) 82.1 778 143 21.2 (32.5) 1629

Disclosureinrelationto net assets and liabilities for eachreportable segment is not provided as these are only reported on and reviewed by
management inaggregate for the Group as awhale.

Additional information
Althoughthe Group's aperations are managed onageographical basis, we provide additional information inrelation torevenue, based onthe
type of travel locations as follows:

2018 2017
Turnover £m £m
Air 1,638.7 1,460.1
Rail 795.2 790.2
Other 131.0 128.8

2,564.9 2,379.1
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3. Segmental reporting

The following amounts are included inunderlying operating profit:

Continental North Non-
UK Europe America RoW attributable Total
2018 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Depreciation and amortisation! (12.9) (34.5) (28.0) (17.0) (5.3) (97.7)
2017
Depreciation and amortisation! (12.2) (32.4) (28.5) (17.4) (5.0) (95.5)

! Excludes amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets.

Areconciliation of underlying operating profit to profit before and after taxis provided as follows:

2018 2017

£m £m

Underlying operating profit 195.2 162.9
Adjustments to operating costs (1.9) (1.9)
Share of profit from associates 4.8 34
Financeincome 2.8 0.9
Finance expense (18.0) (20.5)
Profit before tax 182.9 144.8
Taxation (40.2) (33.6)
Profit after tax 142.7 111.2

The Group's customer base primarily represents individuals ar groups of individuals travelling through airparts and railway stations. It does not
rely onasingle major customer. therefore additional segmental information by customer is not provided.

4. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the result for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares autstanding during the year.

Dilutedearnings per share is calculated by dividing the result for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year adjusted by potentially dilutive outstanding share options.

Underlying earnings per share is calculated the same way except that the result for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders is adjusted
for specific items as detailed in the below table.

On 27 April 2018 the Group paid a special dividend of approximately £100m ta shareholders. In order to maintain the comparability of the
Company's share price before and after the special dividend, a share consolidation was undertakenon 16 April 2018, with shareholders
receiving 30 new ordinary shares in exchange for every 31 existing ordinary shares. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the period was adjusted for the share consolidation from the date the special dividend was paid.

2018 2017
Em £m

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 117.2 928
Adjustments:
Amortisation of acquisition-related intangibles 1.9 19
Netrevaluation of obligation to acquire shareholdings from non-controlling interest (0.4) 20
Tax effect of adjustments (0.3) (0.2)
Underlying profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 1184 96.5
Basic weighted average number of shares 471,499,626 475,214,310
Dilutive potential ordinary shares 6,515,410 7,487,883
Diluted weighted average number of shares 478,015,036 482,702,193
Earnings per share (pence):
-Basic 24.9 195
- Diluted 245 19.2
Underlying earnings per share (pence):
-Basic 251 203
- Diluted 24.8 20.0

The number of ordinary shares inissue as at 30 September 2018 was 464,008,266 (2017:475,226,453).
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5. Operating costs
2018 2017
£m £m
Cost of food and materials:
Cost of inventories consumed in the period (763.5) (727.0)
Labour cost:
Employee remuneration (736.3) (687.2)
Overheads:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (90.3) (89.3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (9.3) (8.1)
Rentals payable under operating leases (489.6) (438.0)
Other overheads (282.6) (268.5)
)

(2,371.6) (2.218.1

The Group's rentals payable cansist of fixed and variable elements depending on the levels of revenue earned from the respective sites.
The fixed element of rent during the year was £308.8m (2017: £240.3m).

Adjustments to operating costs

2018 2017
£m fm
Amortisation of intangible assets arising on acquisition (1.9) (1.9)

Underlying operating profit excludes non-cash accounting adjustments relating to the amortisation of intangible assets arising on acquisition
of the SSPbusiness in 2006.

Auditor's remuneration:

2018 2017

£m Em

Audit of these financial statements 0.1 01
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.7 0.7
Tax compliance services 0.1 0.1
Other non-audit services 0.1 01
1.0 1.0

Amounts paid to the Company's auditor and its associates inrespect of services to the Company, other than the audit of the Company's
financial statements, have nat been disclosed as the informationis requiredto be disclosed onaconsolidated basis.
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6. Staff numbers and costs

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, analysed by category, was as follows:

2018 2017
Number of employees
Operations 34,932 34,538
Sales and marketing 182 165
Administration 2,182 2,080
37,296 36,783
The aggregate payroll costs of the Group were as follows:
2018 2017
£m £m
Wages and salaries (627.6) (588.1)
Social security costs (83.5) (75.3)
Other pension costs (13.5) (11.9)
Share-based payments (note 22) (11.7) (11.9)
(736.3) (687.2)
7.Finance income and expense
2018 2017
Em £m
Finance income:
Interestincome 19 0.9
Foreign exchange gains onrevaluation of obligation to acquire additional share of subsidiary undertaking 0.9 -
Total finance income 2.8 09
Finance expense:
Totalinterest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (9.4) (11.2)
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges utilised in the year (4.5) (4.0)
Unwind of discount on provisions (0.6) (0.5)
Net interest expense on defined benefit pension obligations (0.3) (0.3)
Unwind of discount on obligation to acquire additional share of subsidiary undertaking (0.5) (2.0)
Other (1.9) (2.3)
Net foreign exchange losses (0.8) (0.2)
Total finance expense (18.0) (20.5)

Adjustments to finance income and expense

The adjustmentstofinance expense comprise adjustments to the financial liability recognised inrespect of the obligation to acquire an
additional 16% ownership share of TFS.

2018 2017

Em £m

Unwind of discount on obligation to acquire additional share of subsidiary undertaking (0.5) (0.4)
Foreign exchange gains onrevaluation of obligation to acquire additional share of subsidiary undertaking 0.9 0.8
Revaluation of obligation to acquire additional share of subsidiary undertaking - (2.4)

Net revaluation of TFS financial liability 0.4 (2.0)




80 ‘ SSP Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Taxation
2018 2017
£m £m
Current tax expense:
Currentyear (46.9) (39.0)
Adjustments for prior years 33 28
(43.6) (36.2)
Deferred tax credit/(expense):
Originationandreversal of temporary differences 1.9 0.1
Recognition of deferred tax assets not previously recognised 19 -
Adjustments for prior years (0.4) 25
3.4 26
Total tax expense (40.2) (33.6)
Taxrate 22.0% 23.2%

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The tax expense for the year is different to the standardrate of corporation taxin the UK of 190% (2017:19.5%) applied to the profit before
taxfor the year. The differences are explained below:

2018 2017

£m £m

Profitbefore tax 182.9 1448
Tax charge using the UK corporation tax rate of 19.0% (2017: 19.5%) (34.8) (28.2)
Non-deductible expenses (5.1) (4.8)
Taximpact of share of profits of non-wholly owned subsidiaries 31 0.3
Effect of taxrates in foreignjurisdictions (4.4) (4.1)
Withholding taxes (0.8) (0.7)
Secondary andirrecoverable taxes (1.6) (2.3)
Temporary differences for which no deferred tax was recognised (4.5) 0.9
Recognition of deferred tax assets not previously recognised 5.0 -
Adjustments for prior years 2.9 53
Total tax expense (40.2) (33.6)

* Thisrelates to the fact that certain subsidiaries in the US are not wholly owned and whose profits are taxed at the level of the shareholders. Therefore the
Groupis not subject to tax on the profits attributable toits non-controlling interests.

The Group's taxrate is sensitive to the geographic mix of profits andreflects acombination of higher rates in certain jurisdictions, as well
as theimpact of losses in some countries for which no deferredtax asset is recognised. The taxrate in the current year benefitted from
the recognition of previously unrecognised deferredtax assets.

Factors that may affect future tax charges

The Group expects thetaxrate inthe future to be affected by the geographical mix of profits and the different taxrates that will apply
tothose profits.

Themainrate of carporation taxin the UKwillbe reducedto 1/% in April 2020,

InOctober 2017, the European Commission opened a State Aid investigation into the UK's Controlled Foreign Company regime. In common
withother UKbased international companies, the Group applies this regime. The Group is monitoring developments inrelation to the
investigation. Afinal decisionis expected later this year, or inearly 2019, but the Group does not currently cansider any provisionis required
inrespectof theissue.
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9. Dividends
2018 2017
£m £m
Interim dividend paid in the year of 4.8p per share (2017:3.2p) (22.2) (15.2)
Special dividend paid in the year of 20.9p per share (100.1) -
Prior year final dividend of 4.9p per share paid in the year (2017: 2.9p) (23.5) (13.8)
(145.8) (29.0)
The proposed dividend of 5.4 pence per share, amounting to a final dividend of £25.2m, isnot included as a liability in these financial
statements and, subject to shareholder approval, will be paid on 29 March 2019 to shareholders on theregister on 1 March 2019.
10. Property, plant and equipment
Land, buildings Equipment,
and leasehold  fixtures and
improvements fittings Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 1 October 2016 1796 680.9 860.5
Additions 281 793 1074
Disposals (9.8) (52.5) (62.3)
Acquisition from business combinations (see note 28) 94 52 146
Effects of movements in foreign exchange (5.1) (9.1) (14.2)
Other movements! 84 - 8.4
At 30 September 2017 210.6 703.8 914.4
Additions 25.2 1214 146.6
Disposals (15.0) (61.2) (76.2)
Acquisition from business combinations (see note 28) 0.4 3.1 35
Effects of movementsinforeign exchange 36 4.6 8.2
Reclassifications 0.5 (1.0) (0.5)
Other movements? 49 - 4.9
At 30 September 2018 230.2 770.7 1,000.9
Depreciation
At 1 October 2016 (97.1) (491.4) (588.5)
Charge for the year (26.4) (62.9) (89.3)
Disposals 9.8 52.5 62.3
Effects of movements inforeign exchange 25 31 5.6
At 30 September 2017 (111.2) (498.7) (609.9)
Charge for the year (30.9) (59.4) (90.3)
Disposals 15.0 58.1 731
Reclassifications (0.2) 0.8 0.6
Effects of movements in foreign exchange (1.5) (1.5) (3.0
At 30 September 2018 (128.8) (500.7) (629.5)
Net book value
At 30 September 2018 101.4 270.0 3714
At30 September 2017 994 205.1 304.5

! Included in other movementsin 2018is£1.3m (2017: £8.4m)inrespect of increases to the restoration costs provision (see note 20).

At 30 September 2018, the net carrying amount of equipment, fixtures and fittings held under finance leases was £0.5m (201 /:£0.6m).
Depreciation for the year on these assets was £04m (2017:£0.5m). The leased equipment secures lease obligations.
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11. Goodwill and intangible assets

Indefinite life Definite life
intangible intangible

Goodwill assets assets Software Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 October 2016 618.1 58.0 64.5 459 786.5
Additions - - - 76 76
Disposals (5.6) - - (0.4) (6.0)
Effects of movement in foreign exchange (15.2) - (0.1) (0.5) (15.8)
Acquisition from business combinations (see note 28) 33.2 - 15 - 347
At 30 September 2017 630.5 58.0 65.9 52.6 807.0
Additions - - - 10.0 10.0
Business acquisitions 16.5 - 0.6 - 171
Disposals - - - (0.5) (0.5)
Reclassifications - - - 0.6 0.6
Effects of movement in foreign exchange (0.6) - 0.1 0.5 -
At 30 September 2018 646.4 58.0 66.6 63.2 834.2
Amortisation
At 1 October 2016 - - (50.1) (35.1) (85.2)
Charge for the year - - (2.7) (5.4) (8.1)
Disposals - - - 0.4 0.4
Effect of movements inforeign exchange - - - 01 0.1
At 30 September 2017 - - (52.8) (40.0) (92.8)
Charge for the year - - (2.6) (6.7) (9.3)
Disposals - - - 0.2 0.2
Reclassifications - - - (0.6) (0.6)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - - (0.1) (0.4) (0.5)
At 30 September 2018 - - (55.5) (47.5) (103.0)
Net book value
At 30 September 2018 646.4 58.0 111 15.7 731.2
At 30 September 2017 630.5 58.0 131 126 714.2

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs), identified according to operating
segment. Details of goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs are provided in the table below:

Indefinite life
Goodwill intangible assets

2018 2017 2018 2017

£m £m £m £m

UK 163.4 1634 55.5 55.5
Continental Europe 380.5 364.2 25 2.5
North America 14.6 14.2 - -
Rest of the World 879 88.7 - -
646.4 630.5 58.0 58.0

Acquisition amounts of £16.5m during 2018 relate to the Group's purchase of Stockheim (Hbf-Koln) GmbH and Stockheim Systemgastronomie
GmbH& Co.KG (see note 28 for further details).

The Group tests annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indicators that goodwill might be impaired. This did not result inany
impairment inthe year (201 7:£nil).
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Therecaverable amount of a CGU s determined fromvalue inuse calculations. The key assumptions for these calculations are long-term
growthrates anddiscount rates and cash flow forecasts from the most recent financial budgets and five-year medium-term plan approvedby
the Board. The cash flow forecast period is five years, which is based on the management's medium term plan, followed by a final year showing
aterminal value based on expectations of growth thereafter.

The key assumptions for these calculations are shown below:

2018 2017

Growth Discount Growth Discount

rate rate! rate rate!

UK 2.0% 74% 20%t02.3% 72%
Continental Europe 2.0%1t03.0% 6.8%t09.0% 23%t03.0% 6.6%t09.0%
North America 2.0% 7.3% 2.0% 6.5%
Rest of the World 2.0%t06.0% 6.8%t021.1% 50% 9.2%t012.2%

! The discountrates presented are post-tax discount rates.

The values applied to the key assumptions in the value in use calculations are derived from a combination of internal and external factors,
based on past experience together with management's future expectations about business performance. The discount rates are based
on the Group's weighted average cost of capital adjustedfor specificrisks relating to the country inwhich the CGU operates.

Sensitivity analysis
Whilst management believe the assumptions arerealistic, it is possible that an impairment would be identified if any of the above sensitivities
were changed significantly. A sensitivity analysis has been performed on each of these key assumptions with the other variables held constant.

Foreach CGU, anincrease of 0.5% inthe discount rate or adecrease of 0.5% inthe growthrate would not result inthe carrying value for any
CGUoar any group of CGUs exceeding itsrecoverable amount.

12. Investments in associates

The Group uses the equity accounting method to account for its associates, the carrying value of which was £10.6m as at 30 September 2018
(2017:£6.8m). The following table summarises the movement in investments in associates during the year:

2018 2017

Em £m

At 1 October 2017 6.8 9.3
Additions 2.6 -
Disposals! - (1.8)
Profits for the year 4.8 34
Dividends received (3.9) (3.8)
Other - (0.2)
Currency adjustment 03 (0.1)
At 30 September 2018 10.6 6.8

! During 2017, the Group disposed of its investment in Avecra (carrying value at time of disposal of £1.8m) for cash consideration of £7.3m.

The financial information of the Group's associates included in their own financial statements required by IFRS 12 'Disclosure of Interests'in
Other Entities has not been presented as all the Group's associates are immaterial individually and inaggregate. Details of the Group's interests
inassociates are showninnote 40.
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13. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred taxassets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Assets Liabilities

2018 2017 2018 2017

£m £m £m £m
Intangible assets - - (8.6) (8.5)
Property, plantand equipment 11.3 10.2 (2.0 (2.0)
Provisions 37 52 (0.1) (0.1)
Tax loss carry forwards 4.2 2.0 - -
Pensions 0.3 09 - -
Other 76 59 (5.1) (4.6)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 271 242 (15.8) (15.2)
Set-off (3:4) (2.9 3.4 29
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 237 213 (12.4) (12.3)

Recognised

1 October in income Recognised Currency 30 September

2017 statement inreserves adjustment 2018

Movement in net deferred tax during the year: Em £m £m £m £m
Intangible assets (8.5) 0.2 - (0.3) (8.6)
Property, plant and equipment 8.2 1.0 - 0.1 9.3
Provisions 51 (0.5) (1.0) - 3.6
Tax loss carry forwards 20 2.2 - - 4.2
Pensions 09 (0.3) (0.5) 0.2 0.3
Other 13 0.8 0.1 0.3 25
9.0 34 (1.4) 0.3 113

Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Unrecognised deferred taxassets andliabilities in these financial statements are attributable to the following:

Gross value of

temporary differences Assets Liabilities
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Property, plantand equipment 6.8 16.7 0.9 13 - -
Taxlosses 247.8 255.5 60.5 753 - -
Provisions and other temporary differences 225 36.4 4.7 10.8 - -
2771 308.6 66.1 874 - -

The above deferred tax assets have not been recognised either because of uncertainty over the future profitability of the relevant companies
withinthe Group to which the deferredtax assetsrelate, or because the deferred taxassets relate to taxlosses which are subject to
restrictions onuse or forfeiture, due, for example, to time restrictions or change inownershiprules.

£10.5mof the Group's unrecognised deferredtax assets relate to the UK, with the balance relating to unrecognised deferred taxassetsin
overseas jurisdictions, mainly the US andFrance, as well as smaller amounts inanumber of other countries. The largest proportion of the
unrecognised deferredtaxassetsrelate to brought forward losses in territaries where operations have been making tax losses for some
time. Profitability forecasts are reviewed carefully and used as the basis for considering the recognition of deferred tax assets although initial
recognition of adeferred taxasset is not made until anentity is making taxable profits.

No deferredtaxliability has beenrecognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries and associates based onthe current
repatriationpolicy of the Group and the fact that, given the current tax regimes in the countries inwhich the Group operates, no withholding or
other tax should arise should the Group choose to remit the earnings of those subsidiaries, or should assaciates choose to remit their earnings.
As such, no deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of undistributed earnings.



85 | SSP Group plc Annual Reportand Accounts 2018 Strategicreport Corporate governance Financial statements

14. Inventories

2018 2017
£m £m
Foodandbeverages 287 26.5
Other 6.4 6.1
35.1 326

15. Trade and other receivables
2018 2017
£m £m
Tradereceivables 65.7 59.8
Otherreceivables' 95.1 70.7
Prepayments and accrued income 66.4 454
227.2 175.9

Of which:

Non-current (other receivables) 49.2 405
Current 178.0 1354

! Other receivables include long-term security deposits of £16.2m (2017: £13.7m) relating to some of the Group's concession agreements.

16. Cash and cash equivalents

2018 2017
£m £m
Cashatbank and in hand 108.2 1074
Short-termbank deposits 39.6 707
1478 178.1
17. Short-term and long-term borrowings
2018 2017
£m £m
Current liabilities
Bank loans (31.2) (31.1)
Finance leases (0.3) (0.3)
(31.5) (31.4)
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans (454.7) (417.7)
Finance leases (1.4) (1.5)
(456.1) (419.2)

Bank loan

As at 30 September 2018, the Group had Facility A borrowings of £144.4m. This debt matures on 15 July 2022 and accrues cash-pay interest
at therelevantbenchmarkrate plus amargin of 1.0% per annum as at 30 September 2018, Facility A debt requires amandatory payment of
11.7% of the debt annually in July.

As at 30 September 2018, the Group had Facility Bborrowings of £2/1.5m. This debt matures on 15 July 2022 and accrues cash-pay interest
at therelevantbenchmarkrate plus amargin of 1.25% per annumas at 30 September 2018.

As at 30 September 2018, the Group had Revolving Credit Facility drawings of £/0.0m. This £ 150m committed facility expires on
15 July 2022 When drawn, this facility accrues cash-pay interest at the relevant benchmark rate plus amargin of 0./5% per annumas at
30 September 2018. Acommitment fee and a utilisation fee also applies to this facility.

On 17/ October 2017/ the Group completed an‘amend and extend'of its debt facilities. This resulted inthe following changes: a two year
extension of the final maturity fromJuly 2020 to July 2022, areduction in the margin payable on all debt within the facility of 0.25% from
thisdate and anincrease inthe size of the Revolving Credit Facility from £50m to £150m. Arrangement fees associated with the amend and
extendamountedto £2.0m. These costs were capitalised and offset against the amount of the bank loan inthe year. The amend and extend
was arenegotiation of existing debt and did not constitute asubstantial modification as defined by IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition
andMeasurement.
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17. Short-term and long-term borrowings continued

Bank loan continued
During the year, additional interest rate swaps were entered into, to hedge /5% of the floating rate exposure from 15 July 2019 until
15 July 2022, tomatch the debt profile (see note 24 for details of the Group's interest rate profile).

Under the financing agreement, the Group has to comply with covenants relating to net debt cover and interest cover. These covenants are
tested bi-annually. Bank loans are shown net of unamortised arrangement fees totalling £4.4mas at 30 September 2018(201/: £3.6m).
Refer tonate 29, which details the post balance sheet event inrelation to the Group's short and long-term borrowings.

Finance lease liabilities

Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:

2018 2017
£m £m
Less than 1 year (0.3) (0.3)
Between 1and5years (1.4) (1.5)
More than 5 years - -
(1.7) (1.8)

18. Trade and other payables
2018 2017
£m £m
Trade payables (113.3) (99.8)
Other payables* (173.6) (138.6)
Other taxation and social security (25.4) (275)
Accruals and deferredincome (189.9) (154.0)
(502.2) (419.9)

* Including non-current payables amounting to £2.5m (2017: £nil).

19. Post-employment benefit obligations

Group

The Group operates anumber of post-employment benefit schemes including both defined contribution and defined benefit schemes.
Inrespect of the defined contribution schemes, amounts paid during the year were £12.8m (201 /:£11.1m) across the Group. There are no
contributions outstanding at the balance sheet date. The principal defined contribution scheme is called the SSP Group Pension Scheme.

The Group operates a combination of funded and unfunded defined benefit schemes across Europe, the respective net plan liabilities of which
are presentedbelow:

2018 2017

£m £m

Funded schemes (see (a) below) (2.7) (3.5)
Unfunded schemes (see (b) below) (10.3) (10.4)
(13.0) (13.9)

These definedbenefit plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, suchas longevity risk, currency risk, interest raterisk and market (investment)
risk. The plans are administered by pension funds that are legally separate from the Group and are required to act in the best interests of

the planparticipants. The Group expectstopay £ 1.2mincontributions toits defined benefit plansin 2018. As at 30 September 2018, the
weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligationwas 174 years(2017:18 2 years).

Information disclosedbelow is aggregated by funded and unfunded schemes.

(a) Funded schemes

The Group operates funded schemes in the UK and Norway. In the UK, the Group participates in the Railways Pension Scheme (RPS) via the
Rail Gourmet UK Limited Shared Cost Section (RG section), which is a final salary scheme and provides benefits linked to salary at retirement
or earlier date of leaving service. The RG section covers permanent managerial, administrative and operational staff of Rail Gourmet
UKLimitedandis closed tonewentrants.

The RG scheme was subject toits last full actuarial valuation by a qualified actuary as at 31 December 2016. These results have beenused
by aqualified independent actuary in the valuation of the scheme as at 30 September 2018 for the purposes of IAS 19 Employee Benefits!
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In 2016, it was agreed with the Trustees of the RPS that, from 1 January 2016, the employing company contributions would be 18.3% of
pensionable pay (with members paying 12.2%). Inaddition, it was agreed that from 1 January 2016 the employing company would make
monthly lump sum contributions of £2,700. At the most recent funding valuation of the RG scheme as at 31 December 2016 showed a
funding level of 103.6%. Accardingly the contributions that are being paid by the employing company are inrespect of future service

of current members.

On 26 October 2018, the High Court of Justice of England and Wales issued a judgment in a claim regarding the rights of members to equality
of treatment inrelation to pension benefits. The court ruling has made it clear that schemes are under a duty to equalise benefits formenand
women inrelationto guaranteed minimum pension benefits. The extent to which the judgment will increase the liabilities of the Scheme is
currently under consideration and whilst we do not expect the amount to be material, any adjustment will be recognisedin 2019.

Major assumptions used in the valuation of the funded schemes on aweighted average basis are set out below:

2018 2017
Discountrate applied to scheme liabilities 2.6% 2.5%
Rate of increase insalaries 2.9% 2.9%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 1.4% 1.5%
Inflation assumption 2.5% 2.7%
At the balance sheet date, scheme members were assumed ta have the following life expectancies at age 65:

2018 2017
Male pensioner now aged 65 20.6 205
Female pensioner now aged 65 229 226
Male pensioner now aged 45 234 234
Female pensioner now aged 45 25.9 257

Sensitivity analysis
Changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions by 1.0%, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected
the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Defined benefit obligation

Increase Decrease
As at 30 September 2018 Em £m
Discountrate applied to scheme liabilities (7.5) 5.6
Rate of increase in salaries 15 (1.8)
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 0.4 (1.0)
Inflation assumption 3.0 (3.3)
Mortality rates (change of 1 year) 1.0 (1.0

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plans, it does provide an approximation of
the sensitivity.

The major categories of assets in the funded schemes and their percentage of the total scheme assets were:

2018 2017
Equities, of which: 28.6% 33.0%
-actively traded 95.2% 94.2%
Property andinfrastructure 12.4% 12.5%
Fixedinterestinvestments 53.8% 54.5%
Cash 5.2% 0.0%
Totalassetsrelated to:
-RGscheme 84.6% 83.1%
-Norway 15.4% 16.9%
The fair value of the scheme assets and the present value of the scheme liabilities of the funded schemes were:
2018 2017
£m £m
Fair value of scheme assets 39.1 39.1
Presentvalue of funded liabilities (41.8) (42.6)

Net pension liability (2.7) (3.5)
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19. Post-employment benefit obligations

The following amounts have been charged or credited in arriving at the profit for the year:

2018 2017
£m £m
Current service cost (reported in employee remuneration) (0.6) (0.6)
Net interest on pension scheme liabilities (reported in finance income and expense) (0.1) (0.2)
Total amount charged (0.7) (0.8)
Changes inthe present value of the scheme liabilities are as follows:
2018 2017
£m £m
Scheme liabilities at 1 October 2017 (42.6) (46.1)
Current service cost (0.6) (0.6)
Employee contributions (0.1) (01)
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (1.1) (1.0)
Remeasurements:
- arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.1 21
-arising from changes in experience adjustments 0.1 16
Benefits paid 15 16
Currency adjustment 0.9 (0.1)
Scheme liabilities at 30 September 2018 (41.8) (42.6)
Changes in the fair value of the scheme assets are as follows:
2018 2017
£m £m
Scheme assets at 1 October 2017 39.1 377
Interestincome 1.0 0.8
Employer contributions 0.6 0.4
Employee contributions 0.1 0.1
Remeasurement: return onplan assets excluding interest income (0.2) 1.9
Benefits paid (1.5) (1.6)
Currency adjustment - (0.2)
Scheme assets at 30 September 2018 391 391
The following amounts have beenrecognised directly in other comprehensive income:
2018 2017
£m £m
Remeasurements - 5.6
(b) Unfunded schemes

The principalunfunded scheme of the Group operates in Germany. To be eligible for the general plan, employees must complete five years

of service and the normalretirement age for this plan is 65. Employees in Germany are also provided with a long service (Jubilee) award,

which provides amonth's gross salary after the employee has worked a certain number of years of service. Allunfunded schemes are valued
inaccordance with|AS 19 and have been updatedfor the period ended 30 September 2018 by a qualified independent actuary. The major

assumptions (onaweighted average basis) used in these valuations were:

2018 2017
Rate of increase insalaries 2.2% 1.9%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment and deferred pensions 1.0% 1.0%
Discountrate applied to scheme liabilities 1.7% 1.6%
Inflation assumption 1.6% 1.7%
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At the balance sheet date, scheme members were assumed ta have the following life expectancies at age 65:

2018 2017
Pensioner now aged 65 221 220
Pensioner now aged 40 239 236

Sensitivity analysis

Changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions by 1%, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected

the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Defined benefit obligation

Increase Decrease
As at 30 September 2018 £m £m
Discountrate applied to scheme liabilities 0.5 (0.6)
Rate of increase in salaries 0.1 (0.1)
Rate of increase in pensions in payment (0.6) 0.6
Inflation assumption (0.5) 04
Mortality rates (change by 1 year) (0.3) 0.3

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plans, it does pravide an approximation

of the sensitivity.
The present value of the scheme liabilities of the unfunded schemes was:
2018 2017
£m £m
Net pension liability (10.3) (10.4)
The movement in the liability during the period was as follows:
2018 2017
£m £m
Deficitin the schemesat 1 October 2017 (10.4) (10.8)
Current service cost (0.1) (0.3)
Contributions 0.5 0.5
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (0.2) (01)
Remeasurements:
- arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.1 0.6
- arising from changes in experience adjustments - (0.1)
Acquisition (0.1) -
Currency adjustment (0.1) (0.2)
Deficit in the schemes at 30 September 2018 (10.3) (10.4)
Thefollowing amounts have been chargedinarriving at profit for the year inrespect of these schemes:
2018 2017
£m £m
Current service cost (reported in employee remuneration) (0.1) (0.3)
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (reported in finance income and expense) (0.2) (0.1)
Total amount charged (0.3) (04)
The following amounts have beenrecagnised directly to other comprehensive income:
2018 2017
£m £m
Remeasurements 0.1 0.5
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20. Provisions
Onerous Restoration
contracts costs Other Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 October 2017 6.2) (14.8) (9.1) (30.1)
Createdintheyear (1.4) (1.3) (4.9) (7.6)
Unwind of discount (0.2) (0.4) - (0.6)
Utilisedinthe year 24 36 0.9 6.9
At 30 September 2018 (5.4) (12.9) (13.1) (31.4)
Represented by:
Current (2.3) (1.1) - (3.4)
Non-current (3.1) (11.8) (13.1) (28.0)
(5.4) (12.9) (13.1) (31.4)

Provision for onerous contracts is made when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group froma contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The timing of the utilisation of these pravisions is variable, dependent
onthe contract expiry dates, whichvary between one and ten years.

Provision for restoration costs represents estimates of expected costs tobe incurred inrestoring asite toits original condition when

itisvacatedat the end of the lease term. These provisions will be utilised at the end of the lease terms, which vary between one and
tenyearsinlength.

Other provisions include the estimated cost of an ongoing free travel provision provided to employees of Travellers Fare Limited, anhistoric
acquisition (now part of Select Service Partner UK Limited). The benefitis alifetime benefit and has been calculated using life expectancies
anddiscountedto a present value using a suitable discount rate. The remaining amount represents probable expected costs in several
commercially sensitive areas.

21. Capital and reserves

Share capital and share premium

Share Share
Number of capital premium
shares £m £m
Issued, called up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £0.01 each
At 30 September 2017 475,226,453 4.7 461.2
Ordinary sharesissuedin the year 4,246,082 0.1 -
Effect of the share consolidation (see below) (15,464,269) - -
At 30 September 2018 464,008,266 48 461.2
Comprised of:
Issued, called up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £0.01033 each 464,008,266 4.8 461.2

Ashare consolidation was undertaken on 16 April 2018, with shareholders receiving 30 new ordinary shares of 1 and 1/30 pence nominal
value inexchange forevery 31 existing ordinary shares of 1 pence nominal value. This cansolidation was undertaken in order to maintain the
comparability of the Company's share price before and after the special dividend.

Ordinary shares

The ordinary shareholders are entitledtoreceive natice of, attend, and speak at and vote at general meetings of the Company.
Ordinary shareholders have one vote for each ordinary share held by them.

Employee benefit trust

The SSP Group Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) was established in 2006 and now operates in connection with the Company's share option plans.
The SSP Group plc Share Incentive Planwas established in 2014, in connectionwith the Company's UK Share Incentive Plan (UK Trust). The SSP
Group plc Share Plans Trust was established in 2018, in connection with the Company's share option plans including the Performance Share
Plan (Share Plan Trust). Details of the Company's share plans are set out in the Directors' remunerationreport onpages 39to 54.

As at 30 September 2018, the Trustees of the EBT, the UK Trust and the Share Plan Trust respectively held 27976 (2017: 28909), 374
(2017:271)and 212,387 (2017:nil) ordinary shares of the Company with a combined value of £1./m (2017:£0.2m).
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Reserves
Details of reserves (other thanretained earnings) are set out below:

Capital Cash flow
redemption  Translation hedging Other
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m £m Em
At 1 October 2016 1.2 338 (12.3) - 22.7
Net loss onhedge of net investments in foreign operations - (1.5) - - (1.5)
Current tax credit on loss on hedge of netinvestment in foreign - 03 - - 03
operations
Other foreign exchange translation differences - (174) - - (17.4)
Current tax charge on losses arising on exchange translation differences - (0.4) - - (04)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges - - 1.2 - 1.2
Cash flow hedges - reclassified to income statement - - 4.0 - 4.0
Tax charge on cash flow hedges - - (0.3) - (0.3)
Obligation to acquire non-controlling interest - - - (18.9) (18.9)
At30 September 2017 1.2 148 (7.4) (18.9) (10.3)
Net loss onhedge of net investments in foreign operations - (1.0 - - (1.0
Current tax credit on loss on hedge of netinvestment - 0.3 - - 0.3
inforeign operations
Increase in non-controlling interest equity - - - (0.5) (0.5)
Other foreign exchange translation differences - (5.6) - - (5.6)
Current tax credit on gains arising on exchange translation differences - 0.6 - - 0.6
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges - - 13 - 13
Cash flow hedges - reclassified to income statement - - 4.5 - 4.5
Tax charge on cash flow hedges - - (1.1) - (1.1)
At 30 September 2018 1.2 9.1 (2.7) (19.4) (11.8)
Capital redemptionreserve
The capital redemptionreserverelates to the cancellation of the deferred ordinary sharesin 2015.
Translationreserve
The translationreserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising since 1 October 2010, the transition date to IFRS, from the
translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries with non-Sterling functional currency, as well as from the translation of liabilities
that hedge the Group's net investment in foreign subsidiaries.
Cash flow hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of the Group's interest rate swaps.
Otherreserve
The other reserve consists of the initial recognition of afinancial liability to purchase a further 16% of TFS, inorder to take the Group's
shareholding to 49%, and the purchase of shares ina subsidiary undertaking by anon-controlling interest.
Non-controlling interests
2018 2017
£m £m
At 1 October 2017 64.7 321
Share of profit for the year 255 184
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (21.6) (12.9)
Capital contribution frominterests 124 8.4
Non-controlling interest arising on acquisition’ - 214
Equity issued to holders of non-controlling interests 2.0 -
Currency adjustment (1.2) (2.7)
At 30 September 2018 81.8 64.7

! During the year ended 30 September 2017, the Group acquired 15.1% of the issued share capital of TFS on 13 December 2016, with a further 17.9%
of theissued share capital acquired on 3 March 2017, bringing the total shareholding to 33%.
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22.Share-based payments

The Group has granted equity-settled share awards to its employees under the Performance Share Plan (PSP), the UK Share Incentive Plan
(UK SIP) and the International Share Incentive Plan (International SIP).

Details of the terms and conditions of each share-based payment plan and of the Group's TSR comparator group are given in the Directors'
remunerationreport onpages 39to 54.

Performance Share Plan

The PSP awards are based on two independent performance canditions, which apply to separate numbers of shares under the award and are
assessed independently. 25% of the award isbased on S5P's Total Shareholder Return (TSR relative to acomparator group and /5% of the
award isbased onanEarnings Per Share (EPS) performance condition.

Expense in the year

The Groupincurredacharge of £11.3min 2018(2017:£11.6m)inrespect of the PSP

2018 2017

Number of Number of

shares shares

Outstandingat 1 October 2017 10,690,957 7597296
Granted during the year 2,172,901 3,510,060
Exercised during the year (4,046,584) -
Lapsed during the year (787,643) (416,399)
Outstanding at 30 September 2018t 8,029,631 10,690,957
Exercisable at 30 September 2018 191,662 -
Weighted average remaining contracted life (years) 11 1.2
Weighted average fair value of awards granted (£) 417 348

! This includes the dividend equivalent shares which have been awarded in line with the terms of the rules of the PSP.
The exercise price for the PSP awards is £nil.

Details of awards granted in the year

Thefair value of equity-settled awards granted inthe year with the TSR performance candition was determined using an option pricing model
(based on similar principles to aMonte Carlo model). The following inputs were used for the option pricing model:

2018
Weighted average share price at grant (£) 6.46
Weighted average exercise price -
Expected volatility 23%
Expected life (years) 3.0
Vesting period (years) 3.0
Expected correlation between the share price of TSR comparators 28%

Expectedvolatility was determined with reference to the historic volatility for the constituents of the Group's TSR comparator group over
aperiod commensurate with the expected life of the awards.

Awards subject to EPS performance criteria have been valued with reference to the share price at the date of the award.
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UK Share Incentive Plan

The UK Share Incentive Plan (UK SIP') is a share matching scheme which entitles participating employees to be given up to two free ordinary
shares (matching shares) for each SSP Group plc ordinary share purchased (partnership shares). Both the partnership and matching shares are
placedintrust forathree-year period. The UK SIP has beenin place since December 2014 onwards.

Foreach 12 month plan period from January 2016 to December 2018, the actual entitlement to matching shares was fixed at one matching
share forevery two partnership shares purchased. For the period from January 2015 to December 2015, the actual entitlement was fixed at

ane matching share for every ane partnership share purchased. The Group incurred a charge of £0.1minrespect of the matching element of
the UKSIPin 2018 (2017:£0.1m).

International Share Incentive Plan

The International Share Incentive Plan (15IP') is a share matching scheme which entitles participating employees to be given up to two free
ordinary shares (matching shares) for each SSP Group plc ordinary share purchased (partnership shares). Both the partnership and matching
sharesare placed in trust for athree-year period. ISIP has beenin place since September 2015.

Foreach 12 month plan period fromNovember 2016 to October 2019, the actual entitlement to matching shares was fixed at one matching
share for every two partnership shares purchased. For the period fromNovember 2015 to Octaober 2016, the entitlement was fixed at one

matching share for every one partnership share purchased. The Group incurred a charge of £0.3minrespect of the matching element of the
ISIPin2018(2017:£0.2m).

23. Cash flow from operations

2018 2017
Note £m £m
Profit for the year 142.7 111.2
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 10 90.3 89.3
Amortisation 11 9.3 8.1
Share-based payments 6 11.7 119
Finance income 7 (2.8) (0.9)
Finance expense 7 18.0 20.5
Share of profit of associates 12 (4.8) (3.4)
Taxation 8 40.2 336
304.6 2703
(Increase)/decrease intrade and other receivables (54.1) 39
Increaseininventories (2.5) (2.4)
Increase in trade and other payables (including provisions) 62.1 8.4

Cash flow from operations 310.1 280.2
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24. Financial instruments

(a) Financial assets and liabilities by category

2018 2017
£m £m
Financial assets

Other financial assets 5.1 10.3
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments and accrued income) 160.8 1305
Cashand cash equivalents 147.8 1781
3137 3189

Financial liabilities
Bank loans (485.9) (448.8)
Finance leases (1.7) (1.8)
Derivative financial instruments (3.2) (9.0)
Trade and other payables (excluding other taxation and social security) (476.8) (392.4)
(967.6) (852.0)

(b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Thefair values of all financial assets and financial liabilities by class, together with their carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet, are
as follows:

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
2018 2018 2017 2017
£m £m fm £m
Loans and receivables
Cashand cash equivalents 147.8 147.8 1781 1781
Trade and otherreceivables 160.8 160.8 130.5 1295
Other financial assets 51 51 10.3 103
Total loans and receivables 313.7 313.7 318.9 3179
Non-derivative financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Bank loans (485.9) (490.4) (448.8) (452.4)
Finance lease liabilities (1.7) (1.7) (1.8) (1.8)
Trade and other payables (476.8) (476.8) (392.4) (392.4)
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (964.4) (968.9) (843.0) (846.6)
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps (3.2) (3.2) (9.0) (9.0)
Total derivative financial liabilities (3.2) (3.2) (9.0) (9.0)
Bank loans

Fair value is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the
balance sheet date. Bank loans are categorised as level 2 financial liabilities, whereby inputs which are used in the valuation of these financial
liabilities and have asignificant effect on the fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Finance lease liabilities
Fairvalueisbasedonthe present value of the future lease payments, discounted at the rate implicit inthe lease.

Other non-derivative financial instruments (excluding bank loans)
Due to the short-termnature of non-derivative financial instruments (excluding bank loans), the fair value is approximate to the carrying value.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments relate to interest rate swaps and are valued using relevant yield curves and exchange rates as at the balance
sheet date.

Fair value hierarchy
All derivative financial liabilities are categorised as level 2 under which the fair value is measured using the inputs other than quoted prices
observable for theliability, either directly or indirectly.
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(c) Credit risk

The Group's concentration of creditrisk inrelationto trade receivables is not considered material. The balances relate to anumber of
customers for whom there is norecent history of default. The ageing of trade receivables at the balance sheet date was as follows:

2018 2017
£m £m
Totaltrade receivables 69.6 62.2
Less: impairment provision for trade receivables (3.9) (2.4)
65.7 59.8
Of which:

Not yet due 41.2 414
Overdue, between 0 and 6 months 217 16.5
Overdue, more than 6 months 6.7 43
Impairment provision for trade receivables (3.9) (2.4)
65.7 59.8

The movement inthe allowance for impairment inrespect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:
2018 2017
£m £m
At 1 October 2017 (2.4) (1.6)
Chargedinthe year (1.8) (0.9)
Utilised inthe year 0.3 0.2
Currency adjustment - (0.1)
At 30 September 2018 (3.9) (2.4)

Otherclasses of assetsintrade and other receivables donot include any impaired assets.

(d) Credit quality of cash at bank and short-term deposits
The credit quality of cashat bank and short-term deposits has been assessed by reference to Moody's externalratings as follows:

2018 2017

£m Em

High grade 56.1 574
Upper medium grade 247 74.1
Medium grade 10.2 74
Non-investment grade 51 52
Unrated 174 71
1135 151.2

Cashinhand andin transit 343 26.9

147.8 178.1
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24. Financial instruments continued

(e) Financial risk management

Themain financialrisks of the Grouprelate to the availability of funds to meet business needs, the risk of default by counterparties to
financial transactions, and fluctuations ininterest and foreign exchange rates. In this regard, the treasury function is mandated by the Board
tomanage thefinancial risks that arise inrelation to underlying business needs. The function has clear policies and operating parameters,
anditsactivitiesareregularly reviewed by the Boardto ensure compliance. The function does not operate as a profit centre and speculative
transactions are not permitted.

Financial instruments, including derivatives, are used on occasion to manage the main financial risks arising during the course of business.
Theserisks are liquidity risk and market risk and are discussed further below.

Liquidity risk
The Group's objective inmanaging liquidity risk is to ensure that it canmeet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Inorder to
achieve this, the treasury department maintains an appropriate level of funds and facilities to meet each year's planned funding requirement.

2018
Carrying Contractual 1year 1to 2to
amount cash flows or less <2years <5years >5 years
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bank loans (485.9) (524.4) (110.5) (40.6) (373.3) -
Finance lease liabilities (1.7) (1.9) (0.8) (0.6) (0.5) -
Trade and other payables (476.8) (476.8) (476.8) - - -
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps used for hedging (3.2) (2.2) (3.6) (0.1) 15 -
(967.6) (1,005.3) (591.7) (41.3) (372.3) -
2017
Carrying Contractual 1year 1to 2to
amount cash flows orless <2years <Syears >5years
£m £m £m £m fm £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bank loans (448.8) (502.5) (44.4) (44.3) (413.8) -
Finance lease liabilities (1.8) (2.8) (1.3) (0.7) (0.8) -
Trade and other payables (392.4) (392.4) (392.4) - - -
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps used for hedging (9.0) (8.6) (4.7) (3.9 - -
(852.0) (906.3) (442.8) (48.9) (414.6) -
Market risk

Market risk is therisk that changes inmarket prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the Group's income or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments. These are discussed further below.

Currencyrisk

Although the functional currency of the Group is Sterling, the Group's operating cash flows are transacted inanumber of different currencies.
The Group's policy inmanaging this financial currency risk is to use foreign currency denominated borrowings to ensure that interest costs
ariseincurrencies thatreflect the operating cash flows, thereby minimising net cash flows inforeign currencies. As the mix of foreign currency
cash flows generated by the business changes over time, there may be a requirement to restructure borrowings (via financial instruments or
other treasury products) tomaintain thishedge. The Board reviews financial currencyrisk at least once ayear.

The currency profile of the cash balances of the Group at 30 September 2018 was as follows:

2018 2017
Cash at bank and in hand £m £m
Sterling 36.5 51.2
Other currencies 111.3 1269
147.8 178.1

The Group applies hedge accounting to caver the risk of foreign exchange differences arising between the functional currency of the foreign
operationandthe Group's functional currency, i.e. Sterling. The designated exchangerisk is the spot fareign exchange risk because the hedging
instruments are not derivatives, but fareign currency-denominated bank loans. The fair value of the bank loans used as hedging instruments
was £ 266.1m as at 30 September 2018 (2017/: £ 285.3m). There was no ineffectiveness recognised in the income statement arising from
hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

No sensitivity analysis is provided inrespect of currency risk as the Group's currency exposure mainly relates to translation risk
asdiscussedabove.
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Interestraterisk
The Group has enteredinto aseries of interest rate swaps in order to hedge its interest rate exposure fromits variable rate term loan facilities.
Theimpact of all of these transactions isreflected in the table below.

The interestrate and currency profile of the Group's bank loans at 30 September 2018, after taking into account interest rate swaps and
before adjustment for unamortised bank fees of £44m (201 /:£3.6m), was as follows:

Floating-rate liabilities Fixed-rate liabilities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
£m Em £m £m £m £m

Currency
Sterling (107.4) (45.4) (112.4) (136.3) (219.8) (181.7)
Euro (42.6) (40.3) (127.9) (121.0) (170.5) (161.3)
US Dollar (7.3) (7.7) (22.1) (23.1) (29.4) (30.8)
SwedishKrona (6.6) (7.6) (19.9) (227) (26.5) (30.3)
NorwegianKrone (9.9) (10.6) (29.8) (31.9) (39.7) (42.5)
India Rupee (4.5) (5.5) - (0.3) (4.5) (5.8)

(178.3) (117.1) (312.1) (335.3) (490.4) (452.4)
Interestrate swaps

Allinterestrate swap contracts exchanging floating-rate interest amounts for fixed interest amounts are designated as cash flow hedges to
reduce the Group's cash flow exposure resulting fromvariable interest rates on borrowings. The interest rate swaps and the interest payments
on theloan occur simultaneously and the amount accumulated in equity is reclassified to the income statement over the period that the
floating rate interest payments on debt affect the income statement.

Thefair value of the interest rate swaps was £ 3.2mas at 30 September 2018 (201 /:£9.0m).

In 2018, credit of £1.3m (2017: credit of £1.2m)was recognised in other comprehensive income representing the effective portion of changes
inthefairvalue of the interest rate swaps inthe year. There was no ineffectiveness recognised in the income statement in either year.

In 2018, a credit of £4.5m (2017: credit of £4.0m) in other comprehensive income arose on the reclassification of the cumulative changes in fair
value of the interest rate swaps to the income statement (see note 7).

Sensitivity analysis

Achange of 50 basis points ininterest rates at the balance sheet date would have increased/(decreased) equity by the amounts in the table
below. Thisis drivenby changes in the carrying value of derivative financialinstruments. At 30 September 2018, these were infully effective
hedge relationships and the movement would have had no impact on the income statement.

This calculation assumes that the change occurred at the balance sheet date and has been applied tarisk exposures existing at that date.
Inaddition, all other variables, in particular, foreign currency rates, have been assumed to remain constant.

2018 2017
£m £m

Equity
Increase 5.2 2.9

Decrease (5.3) (2.9)




98 ‘ SSP Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

24. Financial instruments continued

(f) Capital management

The Group's policy is tomaintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investar, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development. The Group's capital isrepresented by the share capital andreserves (as set out innote 21), retained earnings, and net debt
(see below). The funding requirements of the Group are met by a mix of medium-termborrowings, short-term borrowings (under its RCF)
andavailable cash (as detailed inthe table below). During the year, the Group continued to monitor covenant compliance and has passed
comfortably the requirements in its borrowing facilities. As part of its banking arrangement, the Group has to comply with the financial
covenantsrelating to Net Debt Cover and Interest Cover. These covenants are tested bi-annually.

Asat 30 September 2018, the Group had aleverage of 1.1xunderlying LTM (last 12 months) EBITDA (2017: 1.1x).

The following table shows the movement innet debt of the Group during the year:

At beginning Cash Non-cash Translation At end of

of the year flow changes  differences the year

£m £m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 1781 (30.2) - (0.1) 147.8
Debt due within one year:

Bank loans (31.1) 33.2 (33.3) - (31.2)

Finance leases (0.3) - - - (0.3)

Other financial assets 10.3 (5.2) - - 5.1

Debt due after one year:

Bank loans (417.7) (70.0) 339 (0.9) (454.7)

Finance leases (1.5) - 0.1 - (1.4)

Total (262.2) (72.2) 0.7 (1.0) (334.7)

There were no changes to the Group's approach to capital management during the year.

25. Operating leases

The Group leases anumber of operating units under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have variable terms, escalation
clauses andrenewalrights.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments far future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases, whichfall due as follows:

2018 2017

£m £m

Lessthan1year 3941 3075
Between 1and5 years 1,0175 764.9
More than 5 years 466.2 3521
1,877.8 1,424.5

These commitmentsrepresent only the fixed guaranteed amount of rent payable. Any variable rent payable is dependent on future revenues,
andisnot acommitment as at this balance sheet date andis therefore not part of the disclosure above.

26. Commitments
Capital commitments at the end of the financial year, for which no provision has been made, are as follows:
2018 2017
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided 66.6 30.7

27.Related parties

Related party relationships exist with the Group's subsidiaries, associates (note 12), key management personnel, pension schemes (note 19)
andemployee benefit trust (nate 21).

Subsidiaries

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, and transactions between subsidiaries, have been eliminated on consolidation and
arenot disclosed in this note. Where the Group does not own 100% of its subsidiary, significant transactions with the other investors in the
non-wholly owned subsidiary (investor’), other thanthose listed innote 21, are disclosed within this note (in the table on page 99). Sales and
purchases withrelated parties are made at normal market prices.
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Associates
Significant transactions with associated undertakings during the year, other than those includedinnote 12, are included in the table below.

Related party transactions

2018 2017

£m £m

Purchases fromrelated parties’ (5.9 (5.4)
Management fee income 21 25
Otherincome 17 15
Other expenses? (11.5) (6.5)
Amounts owed by related parties at the end of the year 2.2 4.2
Amounts owed to related parties at the end of the year (0.5) (0.8)
Operating lease commitments (20.3) -

! The majority of purchases fromrelated parties relates to purchases from The Minor Food Group PCL (E5.2m; 2017: £4.8m) which owns 51% of Select
Service Partner Co. Limited.
2 The majority of other costs relate to £8.9m concession fees (2017: £5.3m).

The Group has provided a number of guarantees to third parties and has given guarantees to partners of consolidated non-wholly owned
subsidiaries inrespect of obligations of its associates, relating to, for example, concession agreements, franchise agreements and financing
facilities. Inaddition, certain subsidiaries benefit from guarantees provided by the Group's non-controlling interest partners to similar third
parties (inrespect of abligations of the subsidiaries). These guarantees are consistent with those provided in the normal course of business
inrespect of the Group's wholly owned subsidiaries.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management persannel of the Group is set out belowinaggregate for each of the categories specified inIAS 24
‘Related Party Disclosures' The Group considers key management personnel to be the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and
Non-Executive Directors.

2018 2017

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits (5.1) (4.1)
Post-employment benefits (0.4) (0.4)
Share-based payments (2.4) (2.3)
(7.9) (6.8)

28. Business combinations

The Group acquired part of the Stockheim Group, a travel concessionbusiness based in Germany, for EUR 22m (£19.6m), with effect from

1 January 2018. The business aperates 25 food and beverage outlets in airports and railway stations, including at Disseldorf and Cologne and
therefare strengthens SSP's presence in travel locations across Germany. SSP acquired 100% of the shares in Stockheim (Hbf-Koln) GmbH
and Stockheim Systemgastronomie GmbH & Co. KG (together Stockheim).

The goodwill calculation is summarised below:

Measurement
Bookvalue  adjustment Fair value
Fair value of assets acquired £m £m Em
Property, plant and equipment 35 - 35
Intangible assets - 0.6 0.6
Net assets (0.8) (0.2) (1.0
Netidentifiable assets 2.7 0.4 31
Goodwill on acquisition - 16.5 16.5

Cash consideration 2.7 16.9 19.6
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28. Business combinations continued

Reconciliation of consideration to cash flow statement

2018

£m

Cash consideration 19.6
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired (0.6)
Acquisition of investment in Stockheim, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired 19.0

The Boardbelieve that the excess of consideration paid over the fair value of the net identifiable assets is best considered as goodwill
onacquisitionrepresenting relationships with airports, extensive knowledge of the German travel catering market and future
operating synergies.

Includedintheresults for the year ended 30 September 2018 s revenue of £ 24.1mand an operating profit of £2.1minrespect of Stockheim
for the 9month period, from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018.

If the acquisition of Stockheimhad been made at the beginning of the financial year, the estimated contributionto the results of the Group for
the year ended 30 September 2018 would have been£31.8m torevenue and £3.0m to operating profit.

Obligation to acquire additional share of subsidiary undertaking

During the year ended 30 September 2017, the Group acquired 33% of the issued share capital of Travel Food Services Private Limited (TFS),
aleading operator of food and beverage concessions in travel locations inIndia. As part of the acquisition the Group agreedto acquire afurther
16% shareholding, bringing the total ownership to 49%.

The acquisition provided anentry point for the Group into the Indian market and the Group expects to benefit from TFS established
strong local presence. By virtue of the agreement with the other shareholders, the Group has control over TFS'relevant activities including
establishing budgets and operating plans, appointment of key management personnel and ongoing review of performance and reporting
procedures andas suchis consalidating TFS and its group companies.

The consideration payable for the additional 16%is based onamultiple of TFS' 2018 Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciationand
Amortisation (EBITDA) and has been valued with reference to most recent financial statements and internal budgets and forecasts,
discountedwithasuitable discountrate and subject toacap of INR 1.9bn.

Thediscountrateis pre-taxandreflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and a specific risk premiumrelevant
tothe TFSbusiness. This discount rate is considered tobe equivalent to the rate amarket participant would use.

Onacquisition, the Group recognised afinancial liability of £ 18 9m inrespect of its abligation to acquire afurther 16% of TFSbyend of
calendaryear 2018 The liability as at 30 September 2018 was £ 20.5m (discounted). The increase of this liability since acquisition reflects the
TFSupdated assumptions (if any) onthe 2018 forecasted EBITDA, due ta the business exceeding expectations compared to the time of the
original acquisition, adjustments for the subsequent foreign exchange revaluation and the unwind of discounting,

29. Post balance sheet event
InAugust 2018, the Group signed an agreement to issue US Private Placement notes (the ‘Notes') of US$175m.

The Notes represent SSP's inaugural issue inthe US Debt Private Placement market and carry a fixed rate of interest. The Notes were issued
inOctober 2018 in five series: US$40m at 4.35%, maturing in October 2025; US$40m at 4.50%, maturing in October 2028,US$40m at
4.60%, maturing in October 2030, £21m at 2.85% maturing in October 2025 and £ 21mat 3.06% maturing in October 2028,
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As at 30 September 2018
2018 2017
Notes £m fm
Fixed assets
Investments 31 939.7 9321
939.7 9321
Current assets
Debtors due withinone year 32 0.3 364
Liabilities falling due within one year
Creditors 33 (128.3) (11.9)
Net current (liabilities)/assets (128.0) 245
Net assets 811.7 956.6
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 34 4.8 47
Share premium account 34 461.2 461.2
Capitalredemptionreserve 34 1.2 1.2
Profitand loss account 34 3445 489.5
Total equity shareholders’ funds 811.7 956.6
These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 November 2018 and were signed onits behalf by:
0=
Jonathan Davies
Chief Financial Officer
Registerednumber: 5/35966
As at 30 September 2018
Capital
Share Share  redemption Profit and Total
capital premium reserve  loss account equity
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 October 2016 47 461.2 1.2 526.9 994.0
Loss for the year - - - (17.6) (17.6)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders (note 34) - - - (29.0) (29.0)
Share-based payments - - - 9.2 9.2
At30 September 2017 47 461.2 1.2 489.5 956.6
Loss for the year - - - (10.0) (10.0)
Issue of ordinary shares under share option schemes 0.1 - - - 0.1
Dividends paid to equity shareholders (note 34) - - - (145.8) (145.8)
Share-based payments - - - 10.8 10.8
At 30 September 2018 4.8 461.2 1.2 3445 811.7
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30. Accounting policies
SSP Group plc (the Company) is a company incorporated in the UK.

These financial statements present information about the Company as an individual undertaking and not about its Group. The separate
financial statements are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framewark
(FRS 101)under the historical cost accounting rules.

As permittedby FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions:

* thecashflowstatement andrelated notes;

* disclosuresinrespect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;

» disclosuresinrespect of capital management;

* disclosuresrequiredby IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement’and IFRS / Financial Instrument Disclosures' and

* theeffects of newbut not yet adoptedIFRSs.

Whererelevant, equivalent disclosures have been given in the consolidated financial statements. The principal accounting policies adopted

are the same as those set out innote 1 to the consolidated financial statements except as noted below. The following accounting policies have
beenapplied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the Company's balance sheet and related notes.

The Company uses Sterling as its presentational and functional currency and all values have been roundedto the nearest £0.1munless
otherwise stated.

Under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own income statement. The loss
for the financial year (2017:loss) is disclosed innote 34 to these accounts. The Company has no other recognised gains or losses in the current
or preceding year and, therefare, no statement of comprehensive income is presented.

Going concern

SSP Group plcis the ultimate parent company of the SSP Group. The Company balance sheet has been prepared onagoing concern basis,
having regardto SSP Group's trading forecasts for the next 12 months. See page 59 for consideration of the Group's going concern basis.

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are statedat cost less provision for impairment losses.

Impairment

The carrying values of the Company's assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carryingamount of the fixed asset may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
Animpairment loss is recognisedwhenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. When a subsequent event or
change incircumstances causes the recoverable amount of anasset to increase, the decrease inimpairment loss isreversed through the
income statement.

Taxation

The charge for taxationisbased on the results for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of temporary differences
between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes. Taxis recognised in the profit and loss account except where
itrelatestoitems taken directly to equity, inwhich case it isrecognised in equity. Deferred tax is recognised inrespect of all temporary
differencesbetweenthetreatment of items for taxation and accounting purposes which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet
date, except as otherwise required by FRS 101.

Deferred taxassetsarerecognised to the extent that it isregarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered.

Share-based payment compensation

The Company has granted equity-settled share awards to Group employees. Equity-settled awards are measured at fair value at grant date.
The fair value of awards granted to employees of the Company is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Company's estimate of the number of shares that will actually vest. The cost of awards to employees of subsidiary undertakings is accounted
foras anadditional investment.
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31. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Shares in Group

undertaking

£m
Cost
At 1 October 2017 9321
Additions 76
At 30 September 2018 939.7
Net book value
At 30 September 2018 939.7
At 30 September 2017 9321
Impairment

The Directors have assessedwhether the Company's fixed asset investments require impairment under the accounting principles set out in
FRS 101. To make this assessment, future cash flows were forecast for the next five years with growth rates of between 2.0% and 6.0% per
annum thereafter. These cash flows were discounted by applying discount rates of between 6.8% and 21.1%. The values applied to the key

assumptions are derived from a combination of externaland internal factors based on past experience together withmanagement's future

expectations about business performance.

This assessment did not result inany impairment in 2018 (2017: £nil).

32.Debtors

2018 2017
Due within one year £m fm
Amount receivable from Group undertakings - 36.0
Other debtors 0.2 0.2
Deferred taxation 0.1 0.2
0.3 36.4

33. Creditors
2018 2017
Due within one year £m £m
Amounts payable to Group undertakings (116.7) -
Accruals and deferred income (8.2) (7.8)
Trade and other payables (0.7) (0.6)
Other taxation and social security (2.7) (3.5)
(1283) (11.9)
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34. Capital and reserves

Share capital and share premium

Share Share
Number of capital premium
shares £m £m
Issued, called up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £0.01 each
At 30 September 2017 475,226,453 47 461.2
Ordinary shares issuedin the year 4,246,082 0.1 -
Effect of the share consolidation? (15,464,269) - -
At 30 September 2018 464,008,266 4.8 461.2
Comprised of:
Issued, called up and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £0.01033 each! 464,008,266 4.8 461.2
Reserves
Capital
redemption Profit and
reserve  loss account Total
£m £m £m
At 1 October 2016 1.2 526.9 528.1
Loss for the year - (17.6) (176)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders - (29.0) (29.0)
Share-based payments - 9.2 9.2
At 30 September 2017 1.2 489.5 490.7
Loss for the year - (10.0) (10.0)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders - (145.8) (145.8)
Share-based payments - 10.8 10.8
At 30 September 2018 1.2 3445 345.7

Ashare consolidationwas undertaken on 16 April 2018, with shareholders receiving 30 new ordinary shares of 1 and 1/30 pence nominal
value inexchange for every 31 existing ordinary shares of 1 pence nominal value. This consolidation was undertaken in order ta maintain the

comparability of the Company's share price before and after the special dividend.

Profit and loss account

The Company's loss for the financial year was £ 10.0m(2017: loss of £176m).

Dividends
2018 2017
Em £m
Interim dividend paid in the year of 4.8p per share (2017:3.2p) (22.2) (15.2)
Special dividend paid in the year of 20.9p per share (100.1) -
Prior year final dividend of 4.9p per share paid in the year (2017: 2.9p) (23.5) (13.8)
(145.8) (29.0)

The proposed dividend of 54 pence per share, amounting to afinal dividend of £25.2m, isnot included as a liability in these financial
statements, and, subject to shareholder approval, will be paid on 29 March 2019 to shareholders on the register on 1 March 2019.
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35. Employee share plans

Awards over shares of the Company have been granted to employees of the Company under the Performance Share Plan (PSP) and the UK
Share Incentive Plan (UK SIP).

Details of the terms and canditions of each share-based payment plan and of the Group's TSR comparator group are given in the Directors'
remunerationreport onpages 39to 54.

PSP
2018 2017
Number of Number of
shares shares
Outstanding at 1 October 2017 3,220,624 2,253,794
Granted during the year 597,769 1,007,262
Exercised during the year (1,218,678) -
Lapsed during the year (83,439) (40,432)
Outstanding at 30 September 2018 2,516,276 3,220,624
Exercisable at 30 September 2018 31,222 -
Weighted average remaining contracted life (years) 1.0 11
Weighted average fair value of awards granted in the year (£) 4.08 343
Expense recognised for the year (Em) 3.8 37

The exercise price for the PSPis £nil.
Informationon awards grantedin the year canbe found in note 22 to the Group accounts.

UK SIP
See note 22 tothe Group accounts for information on awards granted under the UK SIP in 2018,

36. Directors’ remuneration

Theremuneration of the Directors of the Company is disclosed in note 27/ to the Group accounts and the Directors' remunerationreport on
pages 39to 54.

37.Related parties

The Company has identified the Directors of the Company as related parties for the purpose of FRS101. Details of the relevant relationships
withtheserelated parties are disclosed in the Directors' remuneration report and note 2/ to the Group accounts.

The Company has no transactions with or amounts owed to or from subsidiary undertakings that are not 100% owned either directly by the
Company or by its subsidiaries.

38. Contingent liabilities

The Company isamember of a VAT group and consequently is jointly liable for the VAT group's liability. The Company's contingent liability at
30 September 2018 was approximately £5.9m (2017/:£6.6m).

Inaddition, the Company is aguarantor on Group borrowing facilities. The borrowings under the facility at 30 September 2018 were £415.9m
(2017:£446.6m).In October 2018, the Company became a guarantor under the Notes Purchase Agreement for US Private Placement Notes
(see note 29 for details).

The Company has also provided guarantees inrelation to certain operating liabilities of operating subsidiaries. All such liabilities are expected
tobe paid by the relevant subsidiary in the normal course of business.

39. Other information

The fee for the audit of the Company's annual financial statements was £0.1m (2017:£0.1m).

The average number of persons employed by the Company (including Directors) during the year was 60 (201 /:54).
Total staff costs (excluding charges for share-based payments)were £138m(2017:£10.8m).
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40. Group companies

Inaccordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a full list of subsidiaries, associates and other investments (held directly

andindirectly by the Company) at the year end are as disclosed below.

Part A - Subsidiaries

Principal Class and Principal Class and
?ctivity percentage (activity percentage
catering of shares catering of shares
and/orretail  held (100% and/orretail  held (100%
concessions ordinary concessions ordinary
unless shares* unless unless shares* unless
otherwise otherwise otherwise otherwise
Name stated) stated) Name stated) stated)
Subsldiaries(all of whichareincluded Denmark
in the Group consolidation): Monarch A/S
AbuDhabi Lufthavnsboulevarden 14, 1.sal, 2770,
SSP Emirates LLC 51%12 Kastrup, Denmark
Mussafah, SHMBX AreaME11, Building 85, Mezzanine Select Service Partner Denmark A/S
floor, Hamed Al-Kurby Building, P.O.Box 133357 Abu Lufthavnsboulevarden 14, 1.sal, 2770,
Dhabi, United Arab Emirates Kastrup, Denmark
Australia SSP Denmark Financing ApS Holding
SSP Australia Catering Pty Limited Ikufthavn[s)boulevirden 14,1.sal,2770, company
Level 3,69 Christie Street, St Leonards, NSW 2065, astrup, Denmar
Australia Egypt
Austria SSP Egypt JSC
SSP Osterreich GmbH CairoInternational Airport, Airmall Building,
Office Park 3/Top 144, 1300 Wien-Flughafen, Austria LstFloor, Cairo, Egypt
Belgium Estonia
. . : Select Service Partner EestiA/S
Rail Gourmet Belgium NV Inactive ; .
Prins Bisschopssingel, 36-3 B-3500, Belgium company Endla 45, 10142 Tallinn, Estonia
Rail Gourmet Services Belgium NV Inactive Finland
Prins Bisschopssingel, 36-3B-3500, Belgium company Select Service Partner Finland Oy
SSP Aérobel SPRL HelsinkiAirport, Vantaa, FI-01530, Finland
Esplanade 1/85,1020, Bruxelles, Belgium France
SSP Belgium SPRL Barset R2§taurants Aéroport Il_yon Sai|’1t Ex’upéry SAS
Korte Ambachtstraat 4, 9860, Oosterzele, Belgium Immeuble l'Arc, BP 197, Lyon Saint Exupéry Aéroport,
oot 69125, Lyon, France
ambodia Les Buffets Boutiques et Services des Autoroutes de Inactive
Select Service Partner (Cambodia) Limited Inactive 49%7 France SNC company
No 4B, Street Ang Tamign, Sangkat Kakab, company 5, rue Charles de Gaulle, Immeuble Equalia 94140,
Khan Poh Sen Chey, Phnom Penh, Cambodia Alfortville, France
Canada Select Service Partner SAS
SSP Canada Airport Services Inc. 5,rue Charles de Gaulle, Immeuble Equalia 94140,
30thFloor, 360 Main Street, Winnipeg MBR3C 4G1, Alfortville, France
Canada Société D'Exploitation du Chalet de la Porte Jaune
. SASU
SSP Canada Food Services Inc. ) )
McLachlan Brown Anderson Solicitors, 938 Howe éve.nuFe de Nogent, Bois de Vincennes, 75012,
Street, 10thFloor, Vancouver BCV6Z 1N9, Canada arts, France
. SSP Aéroports Parisiens SAS Holding
SSP Québec Food Services Inc. 100%! .
2200-1010 rue Sherbrooke O Montréal (Québec) i,l;ueCh“arlEsdeGaulle,lmmeuble Equalia 94140, company
H3A2R7, Canada ortville, France
China SSP France Financing SAS
Select Service Partner Hainan Co. Limited® Ergggbhl/faigﬂingrzzgls' 322 Avenue duPrado,
2/F,Departure Halls, Passenger Terminal Building, '
Haikou MeilanInternational Airport, Hainan, SSP Orly SASU
Haikou 571126, China 5, rue Charles de Gaulle, Immeuble Equalia 94140,
SSP Shanghai Co. Limited® Alfortville, France
Intl Airside and Int| Departure Area Landside, 3/F, SSP Paris SASU
Pudong Int'l Airport Terminal, No.6000, Yingbin Road, 5,rue Charles de Gaulle, Immeuble Equalia 94140,
Pudong New District, Shanghai, China Alfortville, France
Cyprus SSP Province SAS
SSP Catering Cyprus Limited Holding and 2i;gft(5/ﬂla;lﬁfadnvac(e3aulle,Immeuble Equalia 94140,
67 Limassol Avenue, Vision Tower 1stFloor, 2121 Management '
Aglantzia, Nicosia, Cyprus, P.O.Box 14144, Services Germany
CY-2154 Aglantzia, Nicosia, Cyprus company SSP Deutschland GmbH
SSP Louis Airports Restaurants Limited Holding 60% The Squaire 24, 60549 Frankfurtam Main, Germany
67 Limassol Avenue, Vision Tower 1stFloor, 2121 company SSP Financin I
N g Germany GmbH Holding
Aglantzia, Nicosia, Cyprus, PO.Box 14144, The Squaire 24,60549 Frankfurtam Main, Germany company

CY-2154 Aglantzia, Nicosia, Cyprus

SSP Premium Gastronomie GmbH
The Squaire 24, 60549 Frankfurt am Main, Germany
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Principal Class and Principal Class and
activity percentage activity percentage
(catering of shares (catering of shares
and/orretail  held (100% and/orretail  held (100%
concessions ordinary concessions ordinary
unless shares* unless unless shares* unless
otherwise otherwise otherwise otherwise

Name stated) stated) Name stated) stated)

Greece Norway

Select Service Partner Restaurants Hellas SA Rail Gourmet Togservice Norge AS® 50%!

Athens International Airport, Building 17 Toyenbekken 21, Oslo, 0188, Oslo, Norway

Office 2/06-01, 190 19 Spata, Greece Select Service Partner AS

HongKong Henrik Ibsens veg 7, 2060 Gardermoen, Norway

Select Service Partner Asia Pacific Limited Holdingand SSP Norway Financing AS Holding

Unit 1702-05, Wing OnKowloon Center, Management Henrik Ibsens veg 7, 2060 Gardermoen, Norway company

345 NathanRoad, YauMa Tei, Kowloon, HongKong, Services 0

. man
S.AR.China company
Gourmet Foods LLC Inactive 16.17%12

Select Service Partner Hong Kong Limited -

Unit 1702-05, Wing On Kowloon Center, POBox 3340, Ruwi, Sultanate of Oman, 112, Oman company

345 NathanRoad, YauMa Tei, Kowloon, Hong Kong Philippines

SSP China Development Limited® Holding 3 Select Service Partner Philippines Corporation Holding 52%*

Unit 1702-05, Wing OnKowloon Center, company JME Building No. 35, Calbayog Street, Barangay, company

345 NathanRoad, YauMa Tei, Kowloon, HongKong Highway Hills, City of Mandaluyong, NCR,

H Second District, Philippines

ungary
. SSP-Mactan Cebu Corporation® 26% 122

S.SP Hungary Caterlpg Kft . ’ Terminal 1 Mactan Cebu International Airport, Pusok,

Liszt FerencInternational Airport, Terminal 2B, Lanu-Lapu City. Cebu 6015 Philinpines

1185 Budapest, Hungary P P Y. ' PP

) Russia
India
Select Service Partner Russia LLC®

Mumbai Airport Lounge Services Private Ltd 14.652%!° ) o )

1BRashid Mansion, Ground Floor, Dr. Annie Besant Road, F1)414QO’ I\goacow_ region, Khimki, Sheremetyevo Airport,

Worli, Mumbai, 400 018, India remises 3 nrussta

Travel Food Services Chennai Private Ltd 33%*10 Slegere

1B Rashid Mansion, Ground Floor, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Select Service Partner (Singapore) Pte Limited

Worli, Mumbai, 400 018, India 112RobinsonRoad, #05-01,068902, Singapore

Travel Food Services (Delhi) Private Ltd 33%!10 Spain

1B Rashid Mansion, Ground Floor, Dr. Annie Besant Road

: g B ' Foodlasa, SLU

Worli, Mumbai, 400 018, India CaminodelaZarzuela, 19-21, 2%plta.,

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Ltd 19.8%*"1! 28023, Madrid, Spain

New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal 3, |Gl Airport, Select Service Partner SAU

New Delhi, 110037, India CaminodelaZarzuela, 19-21, 2%plta.,

Travel Food Services Kolkata Private Ltd 33%L10 28023, Madrid, Spain

1B Rashid Mansion, Ground Floor, Dr. Annie Besant Road . A . .

: g B ' Select Service Partner Spain Financing SLU Holding

Worli, Mumbat, 400018, India CaminodelaZarzuela, 19-21, 2%plta., company

Travel Food Services Private Ltd 33%7 28023, Madrid, Spain

1B Rashid Mansion, Ground Floor, Dr. Annie Besant Road .

: ) ' o ' SSP Airport Restaurants, SLU

Worli, Mumbai, 400018, India CaminodelaZarzuela, 19-21, 2%plta.,

Travel Retail Services Private Ltd 29.7%*13 28023, Madrid, Spain

1B Rashid Mansion, Ground Floor, Dr. Annie Besant Road, -

Worli, Mumbai, 400 018, India

. Scandinavian Service Partner AB

Travel Food Works Private Ltd . 33%! Arlanda Airport, PO Box 67,5-19045,

1B Rashid Mansion, Ground Floor, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Stockholm-Arlanda Sweden

Worli, Mumbai, 400 018, India '

Ireland SSP Newco AB Inactive

refan Arlanda Airport, POBox 67,5-19045, company

RG Onboard Services (Ireland) Limited Inactive Stockholm-Arlanda, Sweden

6thFloor, 2 Grand Canal Square, Dublin 2, Ireland company SSP Sweden Financing AB Holding

Select Service Partner Ireland Limited Arlanda Airport, POBox67,5-19045, company

6thFloor, 2 Grand Canal Square, Dublin 2, Ireland Stockholm-Arlanda, Sweden

SSP Investment Financing Ireland Unlimited Company Financing 3 Switzerland

6thFloor, 2 Grand Canal Square, Dublin 2, Ireland company Rail Gourmet Holding AG Holding

Israel Zeughausgasse 9a, CH-6301, Zug, Switzerland company

Select Service Partner Israel Ltd Select Service Partner (Schweiz) AG

DerechMenachemBegin 132, Azrieli One Center, Shopping center/Bahnhofterminal, 8058 Zurich-

Round Building, 6701101, Tel Aviy, Israel Flughafen, Switzerland, PO Box: Postfach 2472

Luxembourg Taiwan

SSP Luxembourg SA SSP Taiwan Limited

Aeroportde Luxembourg, [-1110 Luxembourg 1F,No.13,Ln. 84, He 1stRd, Keelung City,

Mauriti Jhongjheng District, 202, Taiwan, Republic of China

auritius -

Travel Food Services Global Private Ltd Inactive 33%*10 U

Intercontinental Trust Limited, Level 3, Alexander company Select Service Partner Co. Limited® 49%!

House, 35 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius 99 BerliJucker Building, 16thFloor, SoiRubia,

Netherlands Sukhumvit 42 Road, Prakanong, Klongtoey,

Bangkok, Thailand

Rail Gourmet Netherlands BV Holding

Schipholboulevard 231,1118, company

Amsterdam Schiphol, Netherlands

SSP Nederland BV
Schipholboulevard 231,1118,
Amsterdam Schiphol, Netherlands
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40. Group companies
Principal Class and Principal Classand
activity percentage activity percentage
(catering of shares (catering of shares
and/or retail held (100% and/or retail held (100%
concessions ordinary concessions ordinary
unless shares* unless unless shares* unless
otherwise otherwise otherwise otherwise
Name stated) stated) Name stated) stated)
UK US continued
Belleview Holdings Limited Inactive Jackson Airport Concessions, LLC Inactive
169 EustonRoad, London, NW1 2AE, UnitedKingdom ~ company CT Corporation System, 1200 S. Pine Island Road, company
("SSP Group Head Office’) Plantation FL 33324, United States
Belleview Limited Inactive Select Service Partner LLC
SSP Group Head Office company Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street,
Cretegame Limited Inactive Wilmington, New Castle DE 19801, United States
SSP Group Head Office company SSP America BOS, LLC 70%
- . . . : CT Corporation System, 155 Federal Street, Ste 700
Millie's Cookies (Franchise) Limited Inactive P ystem, ' '
SSP Group Head Office company BostonMA 02110, United States
o ST SSP America CID, LLC 90%
Millie's Cookies Limited Agency ° '
CT Corporation System, 400 E Court Ave,
SSPGroup Head(Ofﬁce) company Des Moines IA 50309, United States
Millie's Cookies (Retail) Limited Agency )
SSPD&BDFW, LLC Inactive
S5P Group Head Office company 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 900, Dallas County, company
Millies Limited Inactive Dallas TX 75201, United States
55P Group Head Office company SSP America DEN, LLC Inactive
Rail Gourmet Group Limited Holding The Corporation Company, 1675 Broadway - company
SSP Group Head Office company Suite 1200, Denver C0 80202, United States
Rail Gourmet UK Holdings Limited Holding and SSP America DFW, LLC Inactive
SSP Group Head Office Management CT Corporation System, 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 900,  company
Services Dallas County, Dallas TX 75201-3136, United States
company SSP America DFWI, LLC 90%
Rail Gourmet UK Limited CT Corporation System, 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 900,
SSP Group Head Office Dallas County, Dallas TX 75201-3136, United States
Select Service Partner Limited Agency SSP America EWR, LLC 60%
SSP Group Head Office company Corporation Trust Centre, 1209 Orange Street,
Select Service Partner Retail Catering Limited Inactive Wilmington, New Castle DE 19801, United States
SSP Group Head Office company SSP America Gladco, Inc
: . CT Corporation System, 600N 2nd Street, Suite 401
Select Service Partner UK Limited orp Y ' ] ' '
SSP GroupHead Office Harrisburg, PA17101-1071, United States
P SSP America Houston, LLC Inactive
P AirL A 4
ggP G:E)u:Jnll-ll;eag Office cogr?;acayny CT Corporation System, 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 900, company
<SP A A Dallas County, Dallas TX 75201-3136, United States
P Asia Pacific Holdings Limited Holdi
SSP GrS:Jp Ia-lcelago%ctlengs e c;mpl)rz]a%y SSPHudson SAT, LLC Inactive
1999 Bryan Street, Suite 900, Dallas County, company
SSP Euro Holdings Limited Holding Dallas TX 75201, United States
SSP Group Head Office company SSP America IAH 16 707%
SSP Financing Limited Holdingand CT Corporation System, 1999 Bryan Street, Suite 900,
SSP Group Head Office Treasury Dallas County, Dallas TX 75201-3136, United States
company SSP America, Inc.
SSP Financing No. 2 Limited Financing 3 CT Corporation System, 818 W 7th Street, Suite 930
SSP Group Head Office company LosAngeles, CA90017, United States
SSP Financing UK Limited Holding and SSP America IND, LLC Inactive
SSP Group Head Office Management 150 West Market Street, Suite 800, Indianapolis, IN company
Services 46204, United States
company X
. . ] SSP America JFK, LLC 82%
SSP Group Holdings Limited Holding ¢ Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street,
SSP Group Head Office company Wilmington, New Castle DE 19801, United States
SSP South America Holdings Limited Inactive SSP America KCGIJFK T7,LLC 55%
S5P Group Head Office company Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street,
Whistlestop Airports Limited Inactive Wilmington, New Castle DE 19801, United States
SSP GroupHead Office company SSP AmericaLAX, LLC 51%
Whistlestop Foods Limited Agency qupgration Trust Center, 1209 Orangg Street,
SSP Group Head Office company Wilmington, New Castle DE 19801, United States
Whistlestop Operators Limited Inactive SSP AmericaLGA, LLC 70%
SSP Group Head Office company Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street,
e Wilmington, New Castle DE 19801 United States
. ) SSP AmericaMCO, LLC 65%
ATL DineandFly, LLC Inactive CT Corporation System, 515 East Park Avenue,
1210 Peachtree Street, NE, Atlanta, GA30361, company Tallahassee, FL 32301 United States
United States ' '
i . o SSP AmericaMDW, LLC 51%
Creative PTI, LLC Inactive 62.8% CT Corporation System, 208 SO Lasalle Street,
CT Corporation System, 160 Mine Lake Court, company Suite 814, Chicago, IL 60604, United States
Suite 200, RaleighNC 27615-6417, United States
. SSP America Milwaukee, LLC 61.5%
Flavor of ATL, LLC Inactive CT Corporation System 301 S.Bedford Street, Suite 1,
CT Corporation System, 289S Culver Street, company Madison WI 53703, United States
Gwinnett, Lawrenceville GA30046, United States
. SSP America Minneapolis, LLC 51%
Harry's Airport!® 51%

111 Monument Circle, Suite 2700, Indianapolis,
IN46204, United States

6121 Excelsior Blvd., Suite 101B, St. Louis Park,
MN 55416, United States
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Part B - Associates
Principal Classand .
activity percentage Pr;':'c.lfal Class a?d
(catering _ of shares activty percentage
and/or retail held (100% "
concessions ordinary ) and/or rgtall heg.i (100%
unless shares* unless COTCESS'C’"S 0; '"aiy L
Name stated) stated) Name stated) stated)
SUSSPCzntlm'JEdMSN LLC 90% celgm
merica b .
i Railrest SA® 49%
CT Corporation System 301 S.Bedford Street, Suite 1, R )
Madison W1 53703, United States Rue DeFrance 95,Be-1070 Brussels, Belgium
SSP America MSP, LLC 80% Cyprus
1010Dale StreetN, StPaul, MN 55117-5603, Cyprus Airports (F&B) Limited 29.988%°
United States LarnacaInternational Airport, 6650, Larnaca, Cyprus
SSP America MSY, LLC Inactive Denmark
Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, company Motorvei 9
L ; jscenterselskabetaf 1990 A/S 50%
Wilmington, New Castle DE 19801, United States Lufthavnsboulevarden 14, 1. sal. 2770,
SSP America OAK, LLC Inactive Kastrup, Denmark
Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, company B
Wilmington, New Castle DE 19801, United States Enico SAS 50%
. pigo b
SSP America PDX, LLC ) 80% Continental Square |, Batiment Uranus, 3 place de
q p
CT Corporation System, 780 Commercial Street SE, Londres, Aeroport Paris-Charles de Gaulle, 93290,
Suite 100, Salem OR 97301, United States Tremblay-en-France, France
SSP America PHX, LLC 7765% Epi fci 9
' ) ) pigo Présidence Sarl Management 50%
3800N. Central Avenue, Suite 460, Phoenix, AZ Continental Square|, Batiment Uranus, 3placede ~ Services
85012, UnitedStates Londres, Aeroport Paris-Charles de Gaulle, 93290,  company
SSP America PHX T3, LLC Inactive Tremblay-en-France, France
3800N. Central Avenue, Suite 460, Phoenix, AZ company nglie
85012 UnitedStates FLFLT | Retail Bhub P Ltd 14.553%"
) ravel Retail Bhubaneswar Private Lt X o
g?zgrrsg:;ct?oi[;e'slgel-rg 160 Mine Lake Court, b28% Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off. JVLR.
Suite 200, Raleigh NC 27615-6417, United States JFT_g:LS:WE”l(iaSt)'l'\g“mb:"4(:30060’ I:ddla PP
. ravel Retail GuwahatiPrivate Lt . o
g?EAme”Cs_’ SASN' t'—c 818W 7thStreet. Ste 930 70% Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off. JVLR.
orporation oystem, reet, ote J h i(East) M bai, 400060, Indi
Los Angeles CA 90017, United States ogeshwar (East), Mumbai, ndie
. . FLFL Travel Retail Lucknow Private Ltd 14.553%"°
SSP America SAT, LLC Inactive Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off. JVLR.
1999 Brya_nStreet,SutteQDO, Dallas County,DallasTX company Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai, 400 060, India
75201 UnitedStates FLFL Travel Retail West P Ltd 14.553%"°
. ravel Retail West Private Lt X o
Eif:grr;g:lact‘aoiEsA'slile_ri 711 Capitol Way S, Ste 204 o0% Knowledge House, Shyam Nagar, Off. JVLR.
on oy : ! Y2 . J hwari(East), Mumbai, 400 060, Indi
Olympia, WA 98501-1267, United States ogeshwari (East). Mumbai nde
t
SSP America SEA I, LLC Inactive Qatar
CT Corporation System, 711 CapitolWay S,Ste 204, company Qatar Airways SSPLLC® 49%
Olympia, WA 98501-1267, United States P.0.Box: 22553, Doha, Qatar
SSP America Services, Inc, Management us
82Q Bear TavernRoad, West Trenton NJ 08628, Services Aero Service Partners LLC Inactive 49%
United States Company 5800 Fleur Drive /4225 Fleur Drive, #106, company
SSP America SFO, LLC 65% DesMoines,IA50321, United States
qupgration Trust Center, 1209 Orangg Street, Midway Partnership, LLC® 50%18
Wilmington, New Castle DE 19801, United States CT Corporation System, 208 SO Lasalle Street, Suite
SSP America SFO I, LLC Inactive 814, Chicago, IL 60604, United States
quppration Trust Center, 1209 Orang_e Street, company SSP America BTR, LLC2 51%
Wilmington, New Castle DE 19801, United States Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street,
SSP America SMF, LLC 60% Wilmington, New Castle DE 19801, United States
CT Corporation System, 818 W 7th Street, Ste 930 N
Los Angeles CA90017, United States }Sej( hares includes rof 1o eauivalent inother turisdicti
) * Ordinary sharesincludes references to equivalentinotherjurisdictions.
SSP America Tampa, LLC ’ 52% 1 SSPhas control as defined by IFRS 10'Consolidated Financial Statements'.
CT Corporation System,1200 S Pine Island Road, 2 55p( h Las defined by IFRS 10°C. lidated
#250, Plantation FL 33324, United States P does nothave controlas defined by onsolidate
. ) Financial Statements".
SSP America Texas, LLC Holding 3 Includes 100% of preference shares.
Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, company 4 Holding held directly by the Compan
Wilmington, New Castle DE 19801, United States ang ) VY pany.
. ° Thisundertakinghasa31 Marchyearend.
SSP America Texas, Inc. ) 6 Theseundertakings have a31 Decemberyearend.
BLE@%EL?E{?EEE‘E& %gggE;ylaggtJﬁiggth;zgo' ; 100% of the shares are held by Select Service Partner Co. Limited (Thailand).
' ' 49.98% of the shares are held by SSP Louis Airports Restaurants Limited.
SSP America (USA), LLC Holding } 9 44.4% of the shares are held by Travel Food Services Private Ltd.
\svo_lrp‘?ratm”Lruszce”fegéiggg{aﬂgg S(tjrget, company 10.100% of the shares are held by Travel Food Services Private Ltd.
iImington. New Castle «United States 1 60% of the shares are held by Travel Food Services Private Ltd.
SSP Four Peaks PHX, LLC 69.885%* 12 49% of the shares are held by Travel Food Services Global Private Ltd.
CT Corporation System, 3800N Central Avenue, 13 90% of the shares are held by Travel Food Works Private Ltd.
Suite 460, Phoenix AZ85012, United States 14 100% of the shares are held by SSP AmericaRDU, LLC.
SSP America SJC, LLC Inactive 5 90% of the shares are held by SSP America PHX, LLC.
Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, company 16 The principal place of business of the unincorporated entities listed above
principalp p
Wilmington, New Castle DE 19801, United States is 20408 Bashan Drive, Suite 300, Ashburn, VA 20147, USA.
SSP America SLC, LLC Inactive 7' SSPhas control as defined by IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements.
1108East South Union Avenue Midvale, UT 84047, company 18 50% of the Class Ashares are held by SSP America, Inc.

United States

19 49% of the shares are held by Travel Retail Services Private Ltd.

20 2% of the shares are held by the other shareholder as bare nominee

2l 91% of the shares are held by the other shareholder as bare nominee.

22 50% of the shares are held by Select Service Partner Philippines Corporation.
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SSPGroupple
169 Euston Road
London

NWT 2AE

+44 207543 3300
www.foodtravelexperts.com

Company number. 05735966

Investor relations
+44 2037145251
investorrelations@ssp-intl.com

Mediarelations
press.office@ssp-intl.com

Recruitment
www.sspcareers.com/UK

Customer service
www.eatonthemove.com
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